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City of Seattle

Request For Proposal (RFP) # FAS-3102
Multi-City Business License and Tax Portal Solution

Addendum
Update 02/07/13

The following is additional information regarding RFP #FAS-3102, titled Multi-City Business License and Tax Portal Solution released on January 11, 2013.  The Proposal due date has been updated from Tuesday, February 12, 2013 @ 4:00 pm to Thursday February 28, 2013 @ 4:00 pm.     
This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded/clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.

From:  Carmalinda Vargas, Sr. Buyer

City of Seattle Purchasing

Phone:  206-615-1123; Fax 206-233-5155

Email Address:  Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	RFP Additions/Revisions/
Deletions

	1 
	01/23/13
	01/24/13
	Due to the size of the RFP, the time necessary to solidify partnerships, and the volume of outstanding questions, we respectfully request a 4-week extension on the proposal deadline.  This will allow us to develop the best response for the cities.


	The Proposal due date has been updated from Tuesday, February 12, 2013 @ 4:00 pm to Thursday February 28, 2013 @ 4:00 pm
	

	2 
	01/14/13
	
	
	Insurance Requirements have been updated. – 
PENDING
	DELETION & REVISION:  Delete Attachment 21 in its entirety and replace it with Attachment 21A – 2013 Tax portal Insurance Requirement.

[image: image1.emf]Attachment  21A_2013  Insurance Requirements_RFP3102.doc




	3 
	01/14/13

	02/05/13
	
	Software as a Service (SAAS) Contract language has been updated.
For those submitting a standard proposal for an implementation system use Attachment 24 – Technology Agreement. 

	DELETION & REVISION:  Delete Attachment 22 in its entirety and replace it with Attachment 22A – 3102 SAAS Agreement.  

[image: image2.emf]Attachment 22A_  3102 SAAS Agreement.doc


ADDITION- Technology Agreement: 

Attachment 24 
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	4 
	01/16/13
	01/16/13
	Are the Cities looking at a Custom Development or a COTS Solution for the Portal?
	The Cities’ preference is for a COTS solution.



	

	5 
	01/16/13
	01/16/13
	Can you provide more details about the B&O License & Tax management systems?  
	The details to the system can be found in Attachment Five – Technical Requirement report Appendix B and in Attachment 3 – Feasibility Study Appendices.

	

	6 
	01/16/13
	01/16/13
	With different back-office B&O License & Tax management systems and as part of this project, are any or ALL of the 5 cities looking for a back-office COTS solution to help them manage the B&O license & Tax processes?  In other words, since the Cities are looking for a common portal, will they consider a common back-office software hosted by each of the Cities?
	The scope of this RFP does not include replacement of back-end systems.



	

	7 
	01/16/13
	01/16/13
	Where applicable by City, are the Cities looking as well to enable the filing of the other Tax Types (Utility, Admission, Gambling, Commercial Parking, & Other) as outlined in Attachment 6 of the RFP documents?
	As part of the long term use of the portal a City would have the ability to add other tax types to the system.  The scope of the initial implementation is business license registration and B&O tax filing.


	

	8 
	01/16/13
	01/16/13
	Can you share the approved budget for this project? 
	The City would like the Vendor to include the true estimated cost to perform the work irrespective of the City’s budgeted funds for this project.   
	

	9 
	01/17/13
	01/22/13
02/01/13

	Typically only corrections, clarifications or mutually agreed strikeouts may be accommodated within vendor standard agreements as client terms and conditions do not adequately handle the essential requirements of software licensing. Your RFP states that, “Under no circumstances shall vendor submit its own boilerplate of terms and conditions”. Before city and vendor unnecessarily expend time and effort with this proposal: Will a vendor be seriously considered should substantially all of their standard terms and conditions be required while negotiating strikeouts to vendor agreements and exceptions to your terms and conditions?

	Per Section 12, Item 12.  The Vendor has a means to provide exceptions to the City’s Terms and Conditions.  

The City cannot provide a definitive response to this question. The City would need to review the strikeouts.

The City intends to have its own contract be the Master Agreement to all other documents including license and maintenance agreements, if applicable.   
Addition:  

The Vendor will necessarily be rejected.  It depends on the substance of those exceptions.  The City may not except suggested changes, therefore, Vendors should be judicious when taking exceptions to the City’s terms and conditions.

The City Terms and Conditions contains provisions that are derived to satisfy City Policy and City, State and Federal regulations (requirements).    

The City will not accept the Vendor’s Agreement.  The Vendor must work from the City’s
	Delete:  page 23
The City will not sign a licensing or maintenance agreement supplied by the vendor.  If the vendor requires the City to consider otherwise, the vendor is also to supply this as a requested exception to the contract and it will be considered in the same manner as other exceptions.


	10 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	How much total has been spent to date on the project?  (Consulting studies, staff time etc.)

	The information is not available.
	

	11 
	01/17/13
	01/22/13
	Has this RFP been sent to a list of vendors? (I.E. we found this RFP using our "Find RFP" service)

	Yes
	

	12 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Will the list of vendors who responded to the "letter of intent" be published?


	Yes on the City Purchasing Web Site:  http://thebuyline.seattle.gov/2013/01/11/multi-city-business-license-and-tax-portal-solution-rfp-fas-3102/
	

	13 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Other than the $200 million collected by 5 cities in 2011, what other revenue sources if any is expected to go through the new system? (It is important to know how much revenue the portal will be responsible for).


	As stated in the RFP, there is a desire for other taxes to be added to the portal but the initial phase of the project is the business license and Business and Occupation tax which comprises the $200 million listed in the RFP.
	

	14 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Is there a consultant (or other party) who has already received an award who will play a continuing role with this project? (I.E. the selected vendor resulting from this RFP would be expected to work with - or depend on - this party for guidance/technical details/communications between stakeholders, etc.)?
	Yes, various consulting firms have assisted in the project to date.
	

	15 
	01/17/13
	
	Are you open to a portal that in and of itself is a commercial off the shelf licensed software solution or do you prefer an SAP and/or other tool based customized software development owned by the five (or more) city consortium?
	See response #4
	

	16 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	What is more important? A) receiving a complete commercial off the shelf licensed software product (the completed portal) that offers regular updates or B) developing a custom solution that the consortium may sublicense functionality to other entities and bear the burden of 95% of the maintenance?


	Our preference is a commercial off the shelf software as stated in the RFP.
See response #4
	

	17 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	How important is business tax software experience to this procurement?


	Given that the scope of this work is for business and occupation tax collection, tax software experience is important.
	

	18 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Given recent legalization of marijuana in your state (I-502, Nov 7th 2012), is a vendor's prior experience collecting $millions in marijuana taxes a plus?


	The collection and distribution of licenses and taxes related to Marijuana is not local jurisdictions responsibility.


	

	19 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	“The proposed solution will provide the ability to interface with the Systems of Record (SOR) to transfer information between the portal and the SORs for each participating government agencies (cities, Department of Revenue)”. [From "Mandatory requirements" section of attachment #8 - Functional Requirements]. By initially populating the portal with basic BL account data the portal can function independently from the legacy BT systems in the event of loss of connectivity.  Is initial data population of all account information from each city participant desirable? 


	Refer to requirements attachments 8 through 11.


	

	20 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Is prompt implementation a priority? (Given the large list of requirements, have you considered prioritization at the level of individual functionality? 
	Having business license registration and the collection of Business and Occupation tax is a priority by Q2 2014.  
The vendor is responsible for preparing implementation strategy (see Attachment 16 Management Response).


	

	21 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Are you willing to prioritize desired functionality so that the most beneficial functions are promptly implemented?


	If vendors do not feel they cannot address all functionality in implementation then the vendor should address in an implementation strategy (see Attachment 16 Management Response).


	

	22 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Have the consequences of one city (a new one who joins the portal, for example) requiring extensive customization cost for limited benefit (such as the ability to renew their "one dance hall" via the portal), been addressed? 


	The benefit of implementing for the five participating cities is that 90% of the local Business and Occupation tax collected is through these five cities and these five cities are closely aligned in processes, data and procedures (See Attachment 2 and 3 Feasibility Report and Appendices) so the risk of any of the additional 35 cities who could join in the future being different from the five cities is very low.  


	

	23 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Do we know if the existing BL software (SOR) vendors are willing and/or able to provide APIs or web services to communicate with the portal vendor? [I.E. can the BL vendors push out data to the portal]? 
What happens if one vendor becomes unwilling or their interface is unable to function?


	Half of the existing BL software was built in house and the other half is either provide by the State of Washington Department of Revenue or done manually.  The city systems are able to work with the vendor to provide API’s or web services; we are working on a similar agreement with the Department of Revenue.


	

	24 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	How much time do the five cities expect will be required to obtain integration tools from BT software (SOR) providers to pull/push required data from their legacy systems? Has this been determined?


	The project is currently working with the five cities to obtain this information but we do not have a final schedule yet. We ask vendors for this in the recommended implementation planning management response (See Attachment 16 Management Response.
	

	25 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	If the SOR vendors are unwilling to create such APIs, are you willing to pay the very high cost of independently creating such APIs via reverse engineering? (for each new city at their individual base terminal cost, plus costs for unique requirements)?


	Majority of backend systems are built in-house and cities have IT staff to create the APIs (see Attachment 5 Technical Requirements report), we are asking the vendor to propose an integration strategy to address this specific concern.
	

	26 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Have you considered the impact on the portal of 3rd party vendor software changes at one or more city legacy BT systems? (Going out of business, nonsupport of obsolete versions, upgrades etc.)


	As stated in Attachment 5 Technical Requirements report, most of the systems are built in house and will be not be at risk for major changes during this project.  The integration with the Washington State Department of Revenue is currently in discussion with staff.


	

	27 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	How will staff ensure that decisions are made in a timely fashion (considering each may impact 5 jurisdictions)? 


	The portal project operates under a Steering Committee and will continue to do so during the course of this project. Vendor should recommend an appropriate response period to ensure timely completion to the project which the cities should response to question or issues.
	

	28 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Who will decide whether functionality desired by one city (which may affect only one account) is cost beneficial? 
	The five cities participating in this project are aligned in their functionality, data and processes and are committed to the same functionality for the cities with the exceptions being configured workflow and processes as there are some differences.  Refer to Attachments 1, 4, 5 and 7. 

	

	29 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Would this cost be paid by the one city or divided amongst the portal members?


	Please refer to Attachment 1 – Memorandum of Understanding for the specific funding agreement.
	

	30 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Are you open to adding one city at a time to the portal? I.E. a proposal based on per city deployment with payment tendered subsequent to each city going live?
	In the RFP we are asking proposers to provide us with recommendations for implementation.  Refer to  Attachment 16 – Management Response (section 9)


	

	31 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	As part of a proposal, may a vendor quote an optional per terminal cost for BT functionality with the highest rated business licensing solution? Such an option would include required interfaces in lieu of creating interfaces to current BL software providers? (This option would replace the SOR BT software at all cities using the portal).


	The five cities have no interest in replacing existing back-end systems of record as part of this project. 
	

	32 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Are consultants who have already worked on project specifications allowed to compete in this procurement?
	Yes.
	

	33 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Do you plan to utilize one lockbox vendor to facilitate payment processing? (some cities do use lockbox per documentation)


	No.

Cities that continue to use a lockbox will retain their independent lockbox provider.  Tax Returns and payments processed through the Portal will not go through the City’s Lockbox.  Only paper returns submitted manually will go to a Lockbox for processing.

	

	34 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Do you desire to transfer images (scanned checks/forms) derived from lockbox processing to the portal?
	See Question 33.
	

	35 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Assuming that all payments are routed to one merchant or bank account, who will be responsible for periodic dispersal to different cities?
	The vendor is responsible for daily dispersal to the different cities or direct settlement in each city’s bank account dependent on the requirement of the participating city.


	

	36 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Given the reality of merchant fees will any dispersing participant receive a small cut of the proceeds for payment processing?


	The payment processor should a reasonable convenience fees (if applicable) that would cover fees to make the Portal attractive to businesses.
Convenience fee(s)  should be listed in the cost proposal. 
	

	37 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	If you intend to require 100% of a staff members’ time dedicated to your project, should we expect the same commitment from city staff?


	Please refer to Attachment 16 Management Response –vendors are asked to provide recommendations.
	

	38 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	What interface requirements are desired (if any) to internal 3rd party city software (GL, permitting)?


	No interfaces to internal 3rd party city software has been identified other than the systems of record and the payment systems.


	

	39 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Is one or are twelve cds required? “The City also requests one (12) CDs or USB drives containing the vendor’s entire response.”


	We would like 12 CD’s or USB containing the entire vendor response.


	

	40 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Solicitation Schedule

Deadline for Questions

February 1, 2013 @ 2:00 p.m.

Does the City have a publish date for answers to questions? There are only 7 business days between the deadline for questions and the due date for proposals.
	No.  The City will release the final responses by the week of February 11, 2013.

See response #1
	

	41 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Will all participants receive a copy of all questions and the City’s answers?


	The City will attempt to notify the participants when an addendum is issued, however the City cannot guarantee email service, therefore it is up to the Vendor to obtain the Addendum from the City’s Purchasing web site:  http://thebuyline.seattle.gov/2013/01/11/multi-city-business-license-and-tax-portal-solution-rfp-fas-3102/
	

	42 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Index of Attachments

8 Functional Requirements Workbook

9 Technical Requirements Workbook 

10 Payment Requirements

11 Security Requirements

Does the City intend for the proposal responses to be provided in Excel, particularly with regard to Attachments 8, 9, 10, and 11?
	The City requires the responses in Excel.
	

	43  
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Index of Attachments

8 Functional Requirements Workbook

9 Technical Requirements Workbook 

10 Payment Requirements

11 Security Requirements

Is it acceptable to provide full descriptive responses to each requirement in a separate document that will be referenced from the Excel file?
	Yes
	

	44 
	01/17/13
	Pending
	Functional, Technical, Payment and Security Requirements

The Tax Portal requires a single payment processor to accept payments for multiple cities and interfaces with each city’s back-end treasury systems. Vendors should refer to the mandatory requirements in Section 6; in addition, the vendor must demonstrate compliance with:

· Payment Card Industry (PCI) standards.

· Electronic Fund Transfer Act (EFTA)

· Payment Application Best Practices (PABP)

Is it sufficient to have a 3rd party payment processor and payment gateway that is PCI, EFTA, and PABP compliant?
	Pending
	

	45 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Attachment 9, Other Technical Requirements

#360 The proposed solution will provide the ability to support multiple languages at the general information level such as:
English
Korean
Mandarin
Russian
Spanish
Somali
Vietnamese

Will the successful vendor be responsible for translating content to the languages stated (Korean, Mandarin, Russian, Spanish, Somali, Vietnamese) as part of this RFP, or is the requirement to be able to support the languages but the translation is a separate effort?
	There is no separate translation effort for this requirement.  The City and Vendor will work together on the actual translation – the requirement is that the proposed system be able to support multiple languages.
	

	46 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Attachment 9, Other Technical Requirements

#360 The proposed solution will provide the ability to support multiple languages at the general information level such as:
English
Korean
Mandarin
Russian
Spanish
Somali
Vietnamese

Will the knowledge base content need to be provided in multiple languages under this RFP?
	The knowledge base content will only be required to be translated if it falls under the general information content.
	

	47 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Attachment 9, Other Technical Requirements

#312 The proposed solution will provide the ability for city personnel to add notes or documentation to a business record.

Should notes added by City personnel be visible to the taxpayer/business owner?


	The requirement is for the ability to add notes - the successful vendor will work with the cities to further design the requirement and the viewing levels.
	

	48 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Attachment 9, Other Technical Requirements

#356 The proposed solution will provide the ability to minimize vertical scrolling.

Does the City prefer a design that seeks to keep all the information onscreen “above the fold”?
	This would be a preference but it also is a design decision which will be part of the implementation project. The requirement is to provide the ability to minimize the vertical scrolling.
	

	49 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Costing.

Will the city consider separately documented contract options that could yield cost savings or additional benefits?
	In the Cost proposals (Attachment 17 & 18) a vendor may document any assumptions which would yield cost savings or additional benefits.  
	

	50 
	01/17/13
	Pending
	On the minimum qualifications you stated that :"The vendors project manager must have had prior experience implementing the proposed solution to a government agency similar in size to the City of Seattle". Does that mean that this proposed solution is a current product on the market and is being used by other government entities? Since the drawing says this is a conceptual picture it leads me to believe that this product needs to be developed or customized to a large extent to meet this solution.
	Pending
	

	51 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Does the City currently have the budget approved for this project?
	Yes
	

	52 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Requirement number 340 states that “The proposed solution will provide the ability to use a standard recognized protocol to secure the communication channel (for example, Secure Socket Layer (SSL)) using TLS 1.1 or higher.” Since the only browser that supports TLS 1.1 is Mobile Safari, are customers restricted to using iPhones or iPads? This appears to be in conflict with Requirement number 354 which requires multiple device and operating system support. Which is the actual requirement? 
	These requirements are in tandem.  The City wanted to pull out the mobile requirement for Safari separately.
	

	53 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Requirement number 375 states that “the proposed solution will provide the ability to provide 24 x 7 X 365 availability of the system but may not include the same time availability for all services with the system. Can you explain? What services are not required to be 24 x 7 x 365?


	The cities are asking for 24x7x365 for most of the portal services.  Anything that requires direct interaction with city staff (web chat, email, etc) may not be required to be 24x7x365 given city hours and holidays.

See SLA – Attachment 23
	

	54 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	Requirement number 540 requests the respondent to “Describe the vendor's client operational service request model; e.g., sharing estimated response time, use of tracking indicators, escalation steps).” Can you provide your definition of a “client operational service request model” and its intended use?


	For example, if we need to initiate a service request, how do we contact you to do so?  After that contact is made, what steps are taken on your side to understand the issue, identify the problem, provide resolution, communicate throughout and ensure we are satisfied with the solution?  Please also describe your escalation process.  Please also describe your normal service level commitments associated with service requests.
	

	55 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 542 requests the respondent to “Describe the documentation and control of policies and their accessibility to employees and customers.”  Please document the policies to which you are referring and would like described.


	Security policies – how are they documented and who has access to them particularly as they apply to the system.
	

	56 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 554 requests the respondent to “Describe how remote user support is handled, e.g., use of 3rd party tool, disabling by user, enabled only when necessary.” Given that the portal is intended to run in a web-based environment, can you describe how this requirement applies?
	If we are having an issue that requires you to provide user support, how is that handled?  Something like WebEx?  How would sessions like that be administered and managed?
	

	57 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 561 asks “Which industry-standard certifications (e.g., BITS, Common Criteria/EAL) have certified the application?” What is the intent of this question given that BITS is intended for financial services and for the common criteria/EAL, to what level are you requiring?


	It’s more of an open-ended inquiry
	

	58 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 564 asks “Is the application compliant with the X.509 certificate standard?” Since PKI is specified, what is the rationale for X.509? Is this a different requirement as requirement number 480?
	You can be compliant with both.
	

	59 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 565 asks “Is the application compliant with the PCKS11 key distribution standard?”  Given that this standard refers to Smart Cards, is there an expectation that Smart Cards will be supported?
	Not necessarily though it would be useful to know if smartcards are supported.
	

	60 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 577 asks to “Describe the application's fire wall capabilities.” Since firewalls are typically separate devices and Requirement 475 includes “Operate boundary or perimeter firewalls on a platform specifically dedicated to firewalls" can you clarify which is the actual requirement?
	Requirement 475 is not mandatory.  Given that, what are the applications’ firewall capabilities?
	

	61 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 606 asks to “Describe the solution's compliance with required messaging format(s).” Could you document which messaging format is required?
	We are seeking to determine if you adhere to a standard messaging format – something like XML Schema, etc.
	

	62 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 553 asks to “Describe how support activities can be traced to the specific individuals performing them.” Is this different than requirements 392 and 393?
	Logs typically track activity – in this case changes made by users to the items noted in 392 and 393.  553 speaks more to transaction logging that would be inclusive of the above.
	

	63 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 556 asks to “Describe approach to visibility into security vulnerability data, as it applies to the solution.” Is this different than requirement 396?
	They overlap where 396 speaks to the ability and 556 asks for a description.
	

	64 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 568 asks to “Describe the application's password control management; e.g., timeout, complexity, reuse.” Is this different than requirements #341, 342, 343, 344, 345, 346, 348, 349, 350, 351, 352, 353.
	The requirements in the 3xx range speak to ability, 568 asks for a description.
	

	65 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 570 asks “Are passwords stored in encrypted format?” Is this different than of requirement 342?
	yes
	

	66 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 572 asks “Can the application enforce complex passwords?” Is this a different than requirements 342 and 350 and can you define “complex passwords?”


	They are different requirements.  Complex passwords are at least 8 characters long, contain at least 1 lower case character, 1 upper case character, 1 numeric character and 1 symbolic character.
	

	67 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 573 asks to “Describe the application's user account lifecycle management; e.g., automatically disabling unused accounts.” Is this different than requirements 350, 352 and 353?
	573 speaks to unused account de-provisioning.  The others speak to password policy and administration.
	

	68 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 574 asks to “Describe the application's handling of user session inactivity, e.g., automatically logs off user.” Is this different than requirement 352?


	Yes
	

	69 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 575 asks to “Describe the user provisioning function; e.g., delegated administration capability.” Is this different than requirements 253 and associated requirements?


	Yes – 575 speaks to how and by whom user provisioning is done.  253 et al asks if a business owner can create accounts.
	

	70 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 576 asks to “Describe the application's access model and role management function.” Is this different than Requirements 255 and associated requirements?
	Yes – 576 asks if users are assigned to roles and roles are given permissions.  255 et. al speaks to user provisioning.
	

	71 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 578 asks to “Describe the virus & spyware detection and elimination solution; e.g., integrated on the software.” Is this different than requirements 398, 399, 401 and 402?


	398/399 speaks to OWASP minimums. 401/402 speaks to compatibility with standard anti-malware environments.  578 asks about virus and spyware detection methods that are used.
	

	72 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 579 asks “Network Peer Entity Authentication: Do both users and processes identify and authenticate themselves prior to the exchange of data?” Is this different than requirements 467 and associated requirements?


	They are related but 467 says that a trusted connection must be used.  579 asks about what occurs on both sides for identity and authentication.
	

	73 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 581 asks to “Describe the solution's capability for high-availability.” Is this different than requirement 390?


	They could be related but are different.  581 speak to high availability capability.  390 talks about failover ability.
	

	74 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 582 asks to “Describe the solution's capability to sync/replicate to a remote site.” Is this different than requirements 388 and 389?


	They are completely different requirements.  388/389 talk about physical backups.  582 talks about data replication.
	

	75 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 583 asks to “Describe the solution's built-in backup function.” Is this different than requirement 387?


	They are different.  387 talks about “what” gets backed up.  583 talks about the backup solution used.
	

	76 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 586 asks to “Describe the solution's alerting capability; e.g., via email or snmp trap.” Is this different than requirements 325, 326 and 327?


	They are different.  325/326/327 speaks to what triggers alerts and how they are reviewed.  586 asks for a description of the alerting process and methods.
	

	77 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 587 asks to “Describe the application’s logging of READ access activity.” Is this different than requirement 338?


	They are different.  338 specifies that those functions need role restrictions.  587 talks about specific logging of read access activity.
	

	78 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 588 asks to “Describe the application’s logging of WRITE access activity.” Is this different than requirement 338?


	They are different, 588 speaks to logging of WRITE access activity in the application and 338 speaks to storing backups in a secured secondary location.
	

	79 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 589 asks to “Describe the application’s logging of MODIFY access activity.” Is this different than requirement 338?


	They are different, 589 speaks to logging of MODIFY access activity in the application and 338 speaks to the storing backups in a security secondary location.
	

	80 
	01/17/13
	01/24/13
	Requirement 591 asks to “Describe the application's handling of activity logs, e.g., rotate and archive.”  Is this different than requirement 394?


	They are different, 591 speaks to the handling of activity logs in terms of how they are rotated and archived.  394 speaks to records retention schedules and adherence to them.
	

	81 
	01/17/13
	02/05/13
	Requirement 594 asks to “Describe the solution's control of audit and log files; e.g., from unauthorized alteration from system users and/or by the vendor support staff.”  Is this different than requirement 395?
	They are different, 395 speaks to the ability to protect logs and 594 asks for a description of the control methods used.
	

	82 
	01/17/13
	02/05/13
	Requirement 604 asks to “Describe the application's use of encrypted activity logs.” Is this different than requirement 395?
	They are different, 395 speaks to the ability to protect logs and 604 speaks to the application’s ability to encrypt activity logs.
	

	83 
	01/17/13
	02/05/13
	Requirement 597 “Describe the application's capability to manage digital transaction signatures.”  Page 11 of Attachment 5 Technical Requirements Report specifies:  "Digital Signatures—Rather than using Digital Signatures, the Portal will use a combination of Authentication, Disclaimers, and Log Reports" as also expressed in Requirement #400. Which is the correct requirement? 
	They are different, 597 asks for a description of the capability to manage digital transaction signature.  400 says the application must provide the ability to use a combination of authentication, disclaimers and log reports.  They are both correct.
	

	84 
	01/17/13
	02/05/13
	Requirement 598 asks to “Describe the application's capability to utilize an external certificate authority.” Page 11 of Attachment 5 Technical Requirements Report specifies:  "Digital Signatures—Rather than using Digital Signatures, the Portal will use a combination of Authentication, Disclaimers, and Log Reports” as also expressed in Requirement #400. Which is the correct requirement?

	They are different, 598 asks if the application can use an external certificate authority.  400 says the application must provide the ability to use a combination of authentication, disclaimers and log reports.  They are both correct.
	

	85 
	01/17/13
	01/23/13
	There are a number of requirements that appear to be missing. Are there requirements for the following numbers:  001-096, 099-101, 115-116, 120, 122, 128, 137-139, 143, 147-148, 153-155, 161, 167, 175-176, 178, 180-181, 186-187, 191-193, 195-196, 200, 204-205, 208, 211-213, 226-227, 230-231, 233-234, 237-238, 241, 245, 250, 254, 262-263, 265, 272, 288-295, 298-299, 301, 303, 310, 314, 328-329, 336, 339, 347, 364-371, 373-374, 379-380, 382-383, 412, 435, 441-442, 481, 483, 488, 495-496, 505, 511?


	There are no requirements missing – this is the final list of requirements.  The Requirement ID number is an internal tracking number for the City.
	

	86 
	01/23/13
	01/24/13
	The minimum qualifications require at least five years experience providing tax solutions similar in scope.  As the solicitation calls for a licensing and tax solution, would the City be willing to amend the qualification to “at least five years experience providing business licensing or tax solutions similar in scope”?  For context, our subcontractor has an established licensing COTS product with a more recent tax component built into the solution.  We believe that our proposal would be of immense value to the cities but the requirement, as originally worded, potentially precludes us from submitting a proposal.

	Yes.

For context, our subcontractor has an established licensing COTS product with a more recent tax component built into the solution.”


	Revise – Minimum Qualifications – Section 5
STRIKE

· The vendor must have at least five years experience providing tax solutions similar in scope to government agencies of comparable size to the City of Seattle.

REVISE:

· The Vendor must have at least five years experience providing business licensing or tax solutions similar in scope

	87 
	01/23/13
	01/24/13
	Does the prime need to be able to meet the minimum qualifications or would the qualifications of the subcontractor be acceptable?
	The prime is ultimately responsible, and with the combined experience the qualifications of the subcontractor are acceptable.
	

	88 
	01/24/13
	01/24/13
	a) Did a vendor or a consultant help the Cities with the requirements and do the feasibility study, etc. in preparation for this RFP?

b) Is that vendor allowed to respond to the RFP?

c) Who is that vendor or consultant?
	a) See response 32

b) See response 32

c) Project Corp


	

	89 
	01/24/13
	01/24/13
	What is the purpose in including HIPPA for the payment processing? There does not appear to be any HIPPA related data identified for use within payment processing through the Portal. 
	These are standard security requirements for any payment processing for the City.
	

	90 
	01/24/13
	01/24/13
	What is the intent in including Regulation A? 
	These are standard security requirements for any payment processing for the City.
	

	91 
	01/24/13
	Pending
	Points are awarded for minority subcontracting. Why are points not awarded for the prime to be a minority business? In the current inclusion plan, a minority prime that does not subcontract with another minority firm receives no points for inclusion. This does not appear to meet the intent of the inclusion plan.
	A new form is pending 
	DELETION/REVISION:  Section 13 – Evaluation Process  

Inclusion Plan – Total Possible Points:   50   Revise to 100 points.  For a grand total 1050 ponts. 



	92 
	01/24/13
	02/05/13
	In the requested proposal format, Section 5, Mandatory Functional, Technical, Payment, and Security Requirements – Mandatory Response appears to be the same as Section 7, Functional, Technical, Payment, and Security Response – Mandatory Response. Which is the correct section for the response?
	Each section in attachment 8 – 11 has a mandatory response page which is required to be completed.
	

	93 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 562 asks, "Describe any application security assessments that have been performed by an objective third party.  Under what circumstances would the results be available?”  Is this the same requirement as requirement number 523?
	This is an additional security question to describe any application security assessments that have been performed by an objective third party.  Requirement 523 is the actual requirement for the providing the report.
	

	94 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 566 asks, "Describe how application integrates with enterprise identity management systems; e.g., Directory Services."   Is this different from requirements #341, 342, 343, 344, 345, 346, 348, 349, 350, 351, 352, 353?  Or is there a specification to use one of the Cities or DOR's directory services?
	This is an additional security question for a description of how the application integrates. 
	

	95 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 585 asks, "Describe how unsuccessful authentication attempts are handled, including but not limited to logging."  Is this different from requirement number 352?
	This is an additional security question for a description of how and 352 is the requirement to provide the ability.
	

	96 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 601 asks, "Describe the solution's use of encryption in storage; e.g., the algorithm model."  Is this different from requirement 455?
	This is an additional security question for a description of how and 455 is the requirement to provide the ability.
	

	97 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 602 asks, "Describe the solution's use of encryption in transit e.g., the algorithm model."  Is this different from requirement 455?
	This is an additional security question for a description of how and 455 is the requirement to provide the ability.
	

	98 
	01/24/13
	02/06/13
	Requirement 603 asks, "Describe the solution's use of encryption in transit e.g., the algorithm model."  Is this different from requirement 455?
	This is an additional security question for a description of how and 455 is the requirement to provide the ability.
	

	99 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Minimum Quals – First Bullet:  Could you elaborate on the “similarities on the scope” is it:

·  Transaction volume?

· Population size of the five Cities?

· Etc.?


	The City is seeking a vendor with prior experience providing business license or tax solutions similar in scope to the City (see #86).  It is the vendor's responsibility to explain to the City how their prior experience is relevant to this RFP.  Both population size and transaction volume are appropriate metrics that a vendor may draw upon to explain their prior experience.
	

	100 
	01/22/13
	Pending
	Minimum Quals – Can these qualifications be through a sub-contractor?  
	Pending  
	

	101 
	01/22/13
	02/05/13
	Will you be looking to have all 5 City business licenses at the time of proposal or before the contract is signed?
	After an Intent to Award announcement.  See RFP - Section 7 – Mandatory Participating Cities Business License & Associated Taxes.  

The vendor needs to meet all licensing requirements that apply to its business immediately after contract award or the City may reject the vendor
	

	102 
	01/22/13
	
	Do you need to have a nexus in all five cities and a City business license for all five cities?
	Pending
	

	103 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is the Prime Vendor the only one who needs to have a business license with the Cites?
	Yes.
	

	104 
	01/22/13
	
	Will the Cities be able to turn around the approval of the business license within the timeframe the RFP?
	Pending
	

	105 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is the City looking for resources that are fully dedicated to this project and will the Vendor need to be devoted 100% to this project?
	This project has to be up and running by Q2 of 2014, the City is looking for a dedicated Vendor.
	

	106 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Will the City and staff be dedicated as well?
	Yes
	

	107 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Does the City have a specific date in mind for the Q2 2014?
	No

The City will be reviewing the Vendor’s proposed project schedules.
	

	108 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is Q2 December for the City?
	No.  The City is on a calendar year -  end of July . 
	

	109 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Does the City have a preference for onsite personnel?  As a local company we would have personnel work out of our own office.  
	The City does not have a preference as long as the work can be completed.   The City is trying to utilize new technology and acknowledges some work can be done virtual, however believes a majority of the work will be done onsite.   


	

	110 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	The City is expecting an implemented system by Q2 2014.  Is that for all five cities?
	The City is looking to the Vendor to propose an implementation plan.  

Attachment 16 addresses the implementation strategy and seeks Vendor’s recommendation on how to implement the solution.
	

	111 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Do all five Cities use the same system or different systems?  
	The cities use different systems. Refer to Attachment 5 and Appendix B.
	Clarification:  The cities do not intend to replace their back-end systems. 

	112 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	If we are able to provide the 5 client based applications, but not able to interface with back-end systems will you be able to manually enter the information they receive on the online system? 
	The answer is yes and no as the requirements are clear there needs to be an interface to the back-end systems of record.

All five cities have some capability to enter the information (e.g. csv files) .
	

	113 
	01/22/13
	02/04/13
	
	Equal Benefits Contact Information
	Attachment 14:  Equal Benefits –If you have any questions how to  comply with the City’s Equal Benefits please contact Steven Larson – 206-684-4529 or via email steven.larson@seattle.gov 

	114 
	01/22/13
	02/04/13
	Insurance Requirements:  Can the vendor provide evidence of insurance at the time of award of contract?
	Refer to paragraph 2 in the Insurance Requirement form – Attachment 21A (Response #2)
	

	115 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is there any information available as to who or what is behind the engrossed bill that was produced in 2004 that started this whole project? 

Was there a corporation encouraging people to work together?
	In 2004 a bill was introduced to codify the standards by which the cities administer the local Business and Occupation tax through what is called the Model Ordinance.  In May of 2010 the participating cities began working with key lawmakers to further streamline local B&O reporting and collection which then lead to the Feasibility Study in 2011.
	

	116 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	It’s stated in the RFP that you don’t believe that a system currently exists in the format you can use. 

What kind of demonstration is the City looking to see from the Vendor?  
	The City is looking to see as much as the Vendor has so the City can determine if the Vendor is proposing is a viable solution.  
	

	117 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Mandatory Requirements:  If the City does not believe there is a system that exists today; how can Vendor’s meet the requirement for a PM who has implemented this system or a similar system?
	The City is looking for a solution that closely matched the requirement needs.  The City is not looking for a PM who is just experienced in implementing accounts payable solutions.  
	

	118 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	If we have a system that works and does a lot of the things the City is looking for, but might not have the phone integration or other simple things, then is the City open to a license solution which pretty much functions but needs some modifications.
	Yes.


	

	119 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	In the RFP, it states you must have a 3-tierd solution and then it is left open.  
Is this what the City meant?  
	Yes.  
There are a variety of solutions.  The City is looking to the Vendor to provide their solution and tell the City how it best meets the requirements.  
	

	120 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Are you looking for a system that has already been implemented or are you looking for newer systems with newer technologies and a company that has expedience in implementing these technologies? 


	The City prefers to have a system that is in existence and is working today, however the City recognizes that not all of the requirements may be in production.  The City’s preference is not to have an entirely customized system.     
	

	121 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Of all the functionality listed, what is the City’s highest priority that they would like to see in existence today?
	The Mandatory Requirements are the highest priorities.  
	

	122 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Other than the desires for the integration for the local general ledger and other permitting systems. What do you see as the future roll of the legacy business tax systems?
	There are five systems of record.  The data will need to be at the local control of the five Cities.  

The portal will be a communication hub to those five systems of record.  

The Cities have their I.T. behind them who will be working with the successful Vendor on those integration points.   It’s important the five Cities still have the data at back end at the end of the day.  That includes tax data, business license data and payment data.  
	

	123 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is it possible that at some point the Cities might be open to using the main system, which can basically function as their system, because there is only one integration at that point. 


	No.
	

	124 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	a) Basically you are asking for a full blown business licensing system.  

b) How is this system going to be utilized and will any single jurisdiction be utilizing or managing this as a back office solution?
	a) Yes as well as a business and occupation tax reporting system.
b) Think of it as a data flow between a business and a system of record.  It’s the business process, workflows, and it’s the rules. This solution will be communicating to those back ends.   


	

	125 
	01/22/13
	01/22/131
	When you refer to the “back end”, are you referring to those individual jurisdictions?
	Yes.  It is the system of record. 

Refer to the Feasibility Study and the Feasibility Study Appendices.  Attachments #2 & #3.
	

	126 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is it anticipated that the actual tax calculation will occur at the City level?
	We are looking for a tax calculation formula by city. Our preference is for all tax calculations to occur on the portal itself and the data to flow back into the systems of record.
	

	127 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Is there a copy of the multi-jurisdictional tax form available? 
	No.  

Each of the Cities have their information on their own web sites.  The Appendices and the Taxonomy (Attachments 3 & 7) has all of the data.  


	

	128 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Will you be creating a new multi-jurisdictional tax form as a result this project?
	No.  It is not a form.  

We are looking for one set of data that goes back to the system of record to obtain the appropriate city or cities business licenses.

Refer to the Taxonomy (Attachment #7)
	

	129 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	If a Vendor comes up with a proposal that states our recommendations and how to proceed, can the Vendor label this proprietary? 
	Refer to RFP, page 25 – Proprietary Proposal Material and the Vendor Questionnaire (Attachment 14).  


	

	130 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	a) Will the vendors be notified to changes in the forms via amendments?

b) Will you replace the forms in their entirety to make it less cumbersome and less risk of missing something? 
	a) Yes

b) Yes


	

	131 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Attachment 8 – Functional Requirements

Please elaborate on the mandatory requirements.  Is there a particular response that could only meet the requirement in terms of standard feature, configurable feature or modification required or can you answer either of those and still meet the requirement?

 
	The City does not have a preference for Mandatory requirements between "Standard Feature" and "Configurable Feature" (see instructions on the first worksheet of Attachments 8 - 11).  
To further explain the differences between the two terms by example:  In Microsoft Excel, the "Auto Sum" function would be a Standard Feature; the "Count" function would be a Configurable Feature (since it requires the users to develop an expression to perform the calculation).
The City does not have a preconceived opinion that a requirement could only be satisfied as a Standard Feature.
	

	132 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	What is the configuration of the evaluation committee?
	There will be representatives from the five cities and the Washington State Department of Revenue.  (DOR)
	

	133 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Are there any plans to have Washington Department of Revenue distribute licenses through this system?
	Through the requirements, the cities are working with DOR to create a seamless transaction between systems.  

There will most likely be some back end APIs
	

	134 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Functional Requirements – The numbering for Mandatory Requirements begins at 503 through 506.  Are there only 3 mandatory requirements for this section?
	Yes.

The requirement ID numbers are an internal City Control number only
For Attachments 8, 9, 10 & 11 the first tab of every requirement list the city’s mandatory requirement, which must be met.    
	 

	135 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	If the City considers phasing this project, what would be the most valuable work first? i.e.would you do the work that fulfills 90% of all the cities and also try to implement unique requirements, such as a finger printing system?


	The city has a list of priorities; B&O taxes, business licensing, etc.

This RFP also includes a request for regulatory and other taxes.   

The City expects a long term relationship with the Vendor and therefore has provided a thorough list of requirements the city anticipates needing.
	

	136 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Does the City expect a percentage or a portion of what you determine is critical to be up and running by 2Q 2014?


	Refer to Attachment 16 - Management Response for implementation approach.
	

	137 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Does the City expect every single requirement to be completed by 2Q 2014?
	No.  The City is prioritizing their requirements.  
	

	138 
	01/22/13
	Pending
	Is the City accepting ACH Credit payments?
	PENDING


	

	139 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Attachment 10 – Payment Requirements.  Can you clarify #607?
	The City is looking for the flexibility for those cities that do not have real time access to the payment system.  They may need another approach, like nightly uploads to the payment information.
	

	140 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	The successful vendor has 100% responsibility to have an Interface from the portal to the SOR and the other direction.  

That means the Vendor has to be involved in the SOR’s solution, learn it and understanding it to create the interface.  Is that the City’s understanding as well?
	Yes.  

The Vendor will need to understand the SOR’s solution to create the interface.  The Vendor will be working with City staff who understands system of record and work with the Vendor to create the APIs.
	

	141 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Are there any Vendors who supply APIs that currently exist? 
	Depends on the backend system.  Refer to the Appendices.
	

	142 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Do you expect the cost proposal to be packaged separately for the rest of the RFP?
	No
	

	143 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Are we proposing for four (4) or five (5) Cities?  
	The initial proposal and cost proposal is for five (5) cities.
	

	144 
	01/22/13
	01/22/13
	Could there be additional cost per other Cities who join the portal?
	Yes.


	

	145 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	In Attachments 8 through 11, we are requested to define how our solution supports the requirements as a “Standard Feature” or a “Configurable Feature.”  If, for example, our solution supports square footage calculations as a standard feature that the Cities can configure to support Bellevue’s calculation method as well as Seattle’s calculation method, is that a “Standard Feature” or a “Configurable Feature”?


	See explanation for #131.
	

	146 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Tax Portal Functional Requirements

Req #: 103, 104, 105, 110, 111

Tax Portal Technical Requirements

Req #: 304, 305
Is additional clarification available on what is needed and intended by the requirements that pertain to "modify city specific workflows"? 

For example, does this refer to what happens with registrations, returns, and correspondence after these actions are initiated by the taxpayer, based on various city’s parameters? 

An example would be helpful, if possible.    
	See Attachment 6 – Appendix C Use cases for specific examples.
	

	147 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Addendum Q &A: 01/25/13

Questions/answers 2 and 3
Answers to questions 2 and 3 indicate that there will be a replacement to attachments 21 and 22 that will be called, 21a and 22a, respectively. 

Should responses be based on the existing attachments, or will new versions be forthcoming?  
	See responses #1 & #2. 
	

	148 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 6 
Transaction Volumes by City

Is it possible that data is incorrect or a label is missing in Attachment 6? 


It appears that cities are duplicated in columns with differing results for the same row. For example, it appears that Seattle has 19,082 Quarterly Filers for B&O Taxes in cell C6 but cell I6 also shows Seattle has 76,330 Quarterly Filers for B&O Taxes. 

Additionally, it appears that the city of Bellingham only appears once (column G), but the others cities appear twice.


	The columns to the right are the total documents filed annually. 


	

	149 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	What are the repercussions should the implementation go past your stated deadline due to either vendor or city staff delays? (The answer may help us better determine implementation priority factors).


	Please refer to Attachment 16 - Attachment 16 addresses the implementation strategy and seeks Vendor’s recommendation on how to implement the solution.  The portal must be functioning at a mutually agreed upon level by Q2 2014.
	

	150 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Given two of the five group members are currently using the WA state website:  

How is the state's portal inadequate? (What improvements are needed beyond that model?)

What are the highest pain points of the state's existing portal?


	The cities are embarking on this effort to provide a single place for our business customers to register, file and pay.  We have asked in the requirements that there be the ability to send data back and forth between the portal and the Dept of Revenue sites in order to share agreed upon data in an effort to provide a seamless transaction between the systems.
	

	151 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Is the state's Business & Occupation Tax automation web model preferable? (as viewed on the states website).


	We currently do not have a preference for anyone’s particular tax site and are looking for a vendor to provide us the best possible business license and registration tax portal that meets our requirements.

	

	152 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Does the group desire something more similar to the Seattle web model? If the preference is for a Seattle-like website, please note that Seattle website processes appear "linear" (enter information, click, next web page loads, enter more info, click, etc). For the Portal, are you open to an 'Amazon' like alternative that requires fewer clicks? (Or should the existing 'feel' of Seattle's website be used as a model?)


	We currently do not have a preference for anyone’s particular tax site and are looking for a vendor to provide us the best possible business license and registration tax portal that meets our requirements.
	

	153 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Does the group plan to accept a similar formula as the state for a processing/convenience fee? (For example, a recent charge of $135 assessed a $15 convenience fee on the state portal).
	Please see question 36.
	

	154 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Is active NAIC use already implemented & standardized at all 5 cities?


	No it is not, that is part of the data cleanup work the cities have identified that will need to be done.
	

	155 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Have all 5 cities already defined licensing requirements based on NAIC coding (such additional approval/permits). To the degree requirements do not align might it make sense to implement those as a later phase? Would a proposal that specifically recommends that approach be considered? 


	The scope of the initial implementation would be business license registration and Business and Occupation tax filing.  Regulatory licenses would come after the initial phase has been completed.
	

	156 
	02/01/13
	
	In an attempt to meet your aggressive contract time constraint requirements (15 days), might the city be open to piggy backing on (accepting the terms of) a very recent agreement a successful vendor has entered into for very similar procurement at a large Washington County?
	Pending
	

	157 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	It was stated at the pre-bid conference that unpublished priorities have been determined. All requirements (technical & functional) may not be financially practical or may require too much time.  As most large projects typically begin with a gap/fit analysis, how would you prefer to accomplish completion of a written gap/fit document within your 15 day contract execution window?
	The City does not envision a separate contract for a Fit/Gap Analysis.  If material changes to the project scope, schedule, or budget are identified as a result of the Fit/Gap Analysis (or other project activities) a contract amendment will be negotiated with the vendor.
	

	158 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Accomplishing the Gap/Fit requirement often exposes less costly alternatives. Are you willing to agree to first create a complete Gap/Fit document with the selected vendor before a Portal agreement is executed?
	See Response #157
	

	159 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Many requirements and deadlines (for example: "Having business license registration and the collection of Business and Occupation tax operational by Q2 2014"), require the vendor to bear all of the risk for both city and vendor performance. Given the stated lack of flexibility in your proposed agreement, can we expect any resulting agreement to require city to cooperate to the level necessary in order to achieve an operational Portal by Q2 2014? 


	The cities will be cooperating to have the portal operationally by a mutually agreed upon timetable.  Refer to Attachment 16 – Management Response where the cities ask the vendor to provide a timetable and options for go-live approaches. 
	

	160 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	[Referring to Q&A #25] What level of assistance/resources should the vendor expect a given city to provide, to complete any required interfaces (the portion out of the vendor's control) in a timely fashion?
	Please refer to Attachment 16 – Management response section 1.7. 
	

	161 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Upon completion of the vendor web services at each participant site, will each city accept responsibility for uptime of both the 3rd party city hosted systems of record (SOR) and the project created web services?
	This will be part of a service level agreement between the vendor and the cities.
	

	162 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	[Referring to Q&A #26] You answered: "Most of the systems are built in house and will be not be at risk for major changes during this project".  Given your answer, will each city (rather than the vendor) accept responsibility for this risk?
	This will be an integral part of the project charter which will be a mutually agreed upon deliverable between the vendor and the cities.
	

	163 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	[Referring to Q&A #27]- Will the steering committee or a designee be able to make a decision on the project within 24 hours?
	See Response #162
	

	164 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	[Referring to Q&A #35]- Would you like to insert human review/approval of payment dispersals to participating cities? If so might you wish to make the dispersals weekly?

	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	165 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	As the portal may allow collection of more transaction detail than the existing custom systems (SOR), would the successful vendor be allowed to create summarized transactions from payments/credits that originate from such 3rd party (SOR) systems?
	See Response #164
	

	166 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP Addendum #1 dated 1/25/2013 - Item #25
Can you please confirm that the responsibility for creating APIs from the backend applications is that of the Cities' IT staff?  Is the City's response saying that there may be the possibility that a City Jurisdiction will not be able to create these APIs?

	See Response #164
	

	167 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP - p. 34 References
Has the City worked with any vendor in the past who submitted a Letter of Intent for this RFP?  If so, which one(s)?
	Please refer to question 88.
	

	168 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP -p. 11 "Mandatory Participating Cities Business License & Associated Taxes"
Is a 2012 City of Seattle license sufficient proof of license?  We have not yet received the 2013 Seattle Business license.
	Yes, the new one should be provided once received by the City of Seattle.

	

	169 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP -p. 11 "Mandatory Participating Cities Business License & Associated Taxes"
It is clear that a business license for each participating city must be obtained prior to contract signing.  However, it is not clear when one must show proof of business license application.  During the pre-proposal conference, a question was asked and it was stated that proof of application must be provided at time of proprosal submission, but this clarification did not make it into any update, so we are still not clear if proof of application is required at time of proposal submission or if only needed after the successful vendor is announced and prior to contract signing.
	Please see Response #101
	

	170 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP - p. 16 Payment Schedule
The City has asked for a SaaS solution which is typically a subscription based service.  Is the City willing to accept a payment schedule that is aligned with a subscription service or paid on a monthly or annual basis?
	Yes, this is provided for in Attachment 17.
	

	171 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP - p. 30, Proposal Organization
Specifically how are sections 5 & 7 different?  Both instruct the vendor to respond to attachments 8, 9, 10 & 11.  Item 5 instructs the vendor to include narrative in the worksheets for the attachments and so does item 7; therefore, what do you want to see and how do they differ?
	Each section in attachment 8 -11 has a mandatory response page which needs to be completed.
	

	172 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	RFP - RFP Updates for Attachment 21A & 22A
Will the City extend the Q&A period for vendors to address questions regarding the pending Attachments 21A -2013 Tax Portal Insurance Requirement and 22A - 3012 SaaS Agreement?
	Yes.  For Attachment 21A and 22A the deadline for questions is February 13, 2013 @ 2:00 pm.
	

	173 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 6 - For licensing purposes, can you extrapolate the number of "general" & "super-users" per city along with the anticipated number of unique public portal users?  Using the license volume numbers would overstate the numbers as the premise is that the same business licensee is licensed in multiple jurisdictions.
	This information is unavailable.
	

	174 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 106
How many users need to be able to 
a) access and 
b) update articles in the knowledge base?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	175 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	How many users will be accessing the system in each City?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	176 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical Requirement 527
This requirement does not appear to apply to a SaaS delivery.  Is the city sure they want SaaS?  Some requirements seem to be written for a non-SaaS proposal - will those not be scored if a SaaS-proposal is delivered?
	As stated in the RFP, the City's preference is for a SaaS solution.  However, in order to provide the broadest range of viable solutions, the City is also open to alternative solutions (see RFP p. 8).  If the requirement (such as Technical Requirement #527) is not appropriate for the vendor's SaaS solution, please so note in the Description field.
	

	177 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Supported Payment Methods
Which payment methods should the portal offer (ACH/ECP, PayPal, CC)?
	Please refer to Attachment 10 Payment Requirements mandatory requirements.
	

	178 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Supported Payment Methods
Should the portal restrict the citizens use of Credit Cards for tax or other payments due to transaction fees?
	The requirement is outlined in Attachment 10.
	

	179 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Supported Payment Methods
Should the portal allow citizen to update credit card information and process one time payments with additional payment information other than information saved on file?
	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	180 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Renewals
Will licensing be setup on automatic renewal where the citizen is automatically charged and payment is attempted after a pre-set time or will the citizen initiate the renewal? (email prompting from billing system required?)
	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	181 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
Does each city charge late fees in the same manner with the same rates?  Or does each jurisdiction differ?
	Each city has a defined process which would need to be incorporated into individual city business rules and workflows.
	

	182 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
Do the cities plan to offer any incentives for licensing purchase?
	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	183 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
What is your process for handling late, failed or delinquent payments?
	Each city has a defined process which would need to be incorporated into individual city business rules and workflows.
	

	184 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
Is there a defined 
escalation process to be followed, or are you seeking recommendations?
	Each city has a defined process which would need to be incorporated into individual city business rules and workflows.
	

	185 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
Do you wish to continue doing it the same way, or are there enhancements you'd like to make to the process in the future?
	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	186 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
How will each city be notified of a successful payment? Does each city need a data feed for reconciliation or is only one joint feed required? What types of information would be required by each city (address, payment info, what was purchased or what taxes were paid, additional information?)
	This is not a stated requirement and is something that can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	187 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Late fees / discounts
For recurring payments, how is the city notified that a business/citizen has failed their payments?
	The cities do not allow reoccurring payments.
	

	188 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Product offering - Will tax payments ever allowed to be paid with installments (recurring billing)?
	If a taxpayer is determined to have underpaid their tax liability, they will be sent an “invoice” and will be able to pay that invoice on the portal.
	

	189 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	General – 

Does the city have a common spreadsheet available that maps the following in a single location

a. License and License fees, with thresholds for payments (at what rates are the license fees increased/decreased), and whether partial 6 month payments are allowed

b. The B&O tax classifications for each city, and corresponding rates.  

c. A listing of regulatory/or additional licenses that are required for each city, and corresponding incremental costs

d. Tax Thresholds, at one point is tax owed/not owed by a filer based on gross reciepts

e. Deductions by city

f. Exemptions by city.

g. A listing of how state processing fees are currently applied, and a listing of exceptions, by city.
	Please see Attachment 3 – Feasibility Study Appendices.
	

	190 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	General - Is it possible to get all the tax return forms for each city, (currently these can only be obtained if a business registered in each city)?
	The form data for all participating cities is contained in Attachment 7.
	

	191 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	NAICS - Does the city have NAICS to Regulatory Licensing Mapping for each city?  If so please provide.
	No, this is currently not available. Not every city uses NAICs code currently.
	

	192 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	NAICS - Can a company have more than one NAICS code, and therefore pay multiple B&O taxes?
	Not every city uses NAICs code currently.
	

	193 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	NAICS - Are tax calcs done on primary NAICS, or primary and secondary NAICS?
	Not every city uses NAICs code currently.
	

	194 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Changes to Tax Returns - Are return amendments within the scope this RFP, if so, please provide amendment return instructions and forms for each city.

	Amendments are part of the requirements but they are not part of the implementation phase for the Q2 2014 rollout.  The vendor should demonstrate the ability (per the requirement) for amendments to be processed through the portal solution.
	

	195 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical Requirement 308
Please clarify.  Elsewhere it was stated that Misc Taxes are not within the scope of this RFP
	The scope of the initial implementation is for business licensing and Business and Occupation Taxes.  However the long term goal of this portal is for additional taxes and additional cities and the requirements reflect the long term goal.
	

	196 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical Requirement 421 & 422
Can you clarify whether providing an IVR system or integrating with an IVR system is within the scope of this RFP.   Will the winning bidder also need to procure the phone number, or will the city procure the phone number?  Will there be a common phone number for all cities - or will IVR route appropriately?
	Integration with existing IVR systems is in the scope of this project.
	

	197 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical Requirement 468
Can you please clarify the intent around this requirement.  There are multiple feature sets listed.  Two are related directly to quickbooks, upload and download.  The third is printing from the portal. What type of data do your foresee being uploaded from quickbooks to the portal, and vice-versa.  Please define the use cases.
	This requirement speaks to the need from the business community to provide an upload capability from accounting software (such as quickbooks) to process a tax return. We would also expect (from focus group research) that a printable form with the data filled out might be required by businesses who want to retain a paper version for their records. This will be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	198 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical Requirement 471 & 472
Can you clarify what each city might want to migrate to the portal.  Is it contact info and email, or complete business information, or is also a complete historical account dating back to the origin of the business.  What expectation does the joint group have around the migration of potential duplicates to the portal.  Please also clarify expectations around the joint effort to migrate such data upon launch so that proper data transformation and QA.QC might take place.

	The cities want to be able to migrate customer account data to the portal so that existing customers do not have to reenter customer data when they first begin to use the portal.  The cities will begin this effort prior to the vendor coming on board.
	

	199 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 9 - Please clarify this statement.  Are you proposing that the vendor is responsible for internal city email servers?
	No, the vendor is not responsible for internal city email servers.
	

	200 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 499, 248, and others
In general please clarify whether the proposed system needs to incorporate penalities and interest calculators to overdue amounts, or whether this is to be acquired via webservices from each system of Record
	The requirement states the information will be coming from the systems of record. 
	

	201 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 097
Please clarify the term snapshot in this requirement.  Is this simply asking to store data from previous filings, is it a pdf, or some other desired format?
	Please see question 197.
	

	202 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 098
Please clarify “at once” in some cases, filing periods might be different due to revenue in each jurisdiction, so some filings might be done later, or separately.  
	Yes, this is true that sometimes the filing for B&O tax would be done at separate times.  However the requirement is for the ability to file for all pertinent jurisdictions at the same time and have to be done in separate transactions.
	

	203 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 109
Please clarify the extent at which “previous filings” information will be available electronically, by jurisdiction.  This type of flow is best supported when this information is in the portal, or is this going to have to be obtatins from systems via webservice calls.
	The requirement speaks to being able to query a system of record and retrieve existing information and then ask a series of “what’s changed” questions to update the information.
	

	204 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 113
In relation to amended returns, will the cities current backend be used to handle actual amendments, and the portal to be used only as data transfer mechanism?
	At this point this is the stated requirement.
	

	205 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 226
Please clarify, “have the ability to have data entry web page contextual email inquiries available”.  Requirement intent is unclear.
	The requirement is for the ability to send a contextual email based on information entered on a web page.
	

	206 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 269
Web conferencing, are you refering to gotomeeting type capability, or is it web-telephone call.  Do you want the vendor to provide a teleconference line for meetings as part of this?
	Yes, a gotomeeting type capability to be able to troubleshoot with a business customer if they are having trouble with a web page.
	

	207 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 270
Would you like business users to have an environment where they can ask quesitons and have direct exchanges with other business users, and to look up answers from other business users to similar questions?
	Yes.
	

	208 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 121 & 124
As per requirement 113 above, is the portal doing the amendment or bridging communications where the amendments are done off-portal?
	Requirement 121 speaks to the ability for a business user to request an amendment. Requirement 124 speaks to the data from amended returns to be available via the portal and come from the system of record.
	

	209 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 125
What if city systems are not available? Will each city be ok with submitting overdue amounts?  If a bill in the portal is paid offline, will city staff update the portal and the local city system?
	If a bill comes in outside of the portal, the City staff will ensure the information is updated in the system of record and the portal. 
	

	210 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 132
In regards to Exemptions, for instance in Seattle and Bellingham for "Farm Animals, Edibles Raised" - can we assume the definitions are the same?
	Exemptions would be done separately for each city with business rules and workflows.  Where there is a common definition it could be feasible that two cities would use the same definition.
	

	211 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 132
Are the cities considering moving to a common exemptions/deductions model within the scope of this product?  Has there been any discovery done on this that can be shared?
	The idea of this portal is to keep local control and flexibility so the portal must be able to have business rules and workflows that allow the cities to have different exemptions and deductions.
	

	212 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 140
What differences will generate prompts?  Or any difference, such as a difference in earnings.  This could be burdensome on the users, but each rule prompt requires additional workflow and cost.
	The requirement is that the solution to have the ability to prompt if there are differences. This can be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	213 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 134
Do you want to disclose amounts of overdue payments, or just that it is overdue?
	The requirement is that the solution to have the ability email reminders for any unfiled returns. What this means will be detailed further in the design phase of the project.
	

	214 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 144
Where do we get the ununsed credit amounts from?  Is this a webservice, or is this loaded in by cities somehow?
	This data is available in the systems of record for each city.
	

	215 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 166
Is there any connection between NAICS and deductions/Exemptions?
	Not every city currently uses NAICs code.
	

	216 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 172
Is the UBI provided as a service, or is UBI assigned manually?
	The Department of Revenue assigns the UBI and the portal project will continue to work with DOR on how the portal and the DOR systems can work together to get a UBI for a new business.
	

	217 
	02/01/13
	02/06/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 198, 199, 202
Is there currently an established matrix to provide the connection between NAICS and regulatory licenses.  Can the city provide this?
	No there is not.
	

	218 
	02/01/13
	Pending
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 184
Please clarify “transmits” in this statement. Is this a report on data transfer with failures?  
	Pending
	

	219 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 185
Are you refering to a shopping cart?
	This is in the Payment requirement and it reads as it should. 
	

	220 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 492 & 188
Multiple Income Tax Credit, Service Income Apportionment, Multiple Activites Tax Credit.  Are these the only tax credit calculators included in the scope?
	These are the credits that are currently in place for all Cities.  We will need the capability to set up additional credits that might apply to one or more cities.   


	

	221 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 189
This requirement reads as if SOR’s are providing late fees, penalties at time of payment.  Is this happening via webservices, what happens if the city does not have webservices, or if the system is unavailable at time of payment?
	This is in the Payment requirements and reads as it should – at time of payment the portal will use the system of record to find any interest, late fees and credits to use for the final total amount.  How that happens and what happens if the system is not available is part of the design phase of this project.  The requirement is for the solution to provide this ability.
	

	222 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 257
Under what conditions will a city create an account for the user?
	A possible condition would be a walk-in customer who does not have access to a computer and will only use a kiosk at a City.
	

	223 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 - Functional Requirement 251
Is the USPS service already in place, or is this something the vendor needs to provide?
	There will need to be a service available to the portal.  Some cities may already have this in place for their existing systems.
	

	224 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 8 – Functional Requirement 498
Are you asking for an ESRI integration, or simply to plot the address on a map?  Is there validation here that is different than the USPS validation?  Do the cities have BING, GOOGLE or other map interface licenses?
	This requirement is for the cities to track where licenses and taxes are being paid for reporting purposes.  It is a separate requirement from 251.
	

	225 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	What is the number of users from each city who will field live chat questions?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	226 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	What is the number of users who will
 1) access and
 2) update information via the portal at each city?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	227 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Are there planned or pending upgrades to the cities' backend systems that may impact the project schedule?
	There are no pending upgrades to backend systems that will impact the schedule. This will be an integral part of the project charter which will be a mutually agreed upon deliverable between the vendor and the cities.
	

	228 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical requirement 509
The proposed solution will manage user accounts (adding, copying, removing, assigning rights, resetting passwords, controlling security locks. Are there any current identity management solutions in use (Active Directory, for example)? Would there need to be an integration to any identity provider?
	Any current identity management solutions are internal to an individual city. 
	

	229 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Attachment 9 - Technical requirement 500
 The proposed solution will include a secure internal built-in email feature, where messages would remain contained within the solution and only notification of messages would be emailed outside the solution environment. Please describe the term "built in email". Does this mean a messaging tool that can allow information to pass back and forth within a secure portal?  
	The proposed solution needs to be secured through some controlled encryption model.  
	

	230 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	What expectations do you have regarding how to measure success of the portal? What metrics will be involved and how do you expect to have access to them?
	This will be an integral part of the project charter which will be a mutually agreed upon deliverable between the vendor and the cities.
	

	231 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	What kind of data and transactional volumes are you expecting daily, weekly, monthly, annually? What specific time periods are expected to have peak volumes and how large will those spikes be?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	232 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	What kind of post-production monitoring and alerting are you expecting?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	233 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	Have you established technology metrics around system health and performance? If so, what are they?
	We do not have this information available.
	

	234 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	will you publish a list of which vendor asked which question
	No.  

Only the questions and answers will be published.
	

	235 
	02/01/13
	02/05/13
	How do the cities anticipate funding the acquisition, implementation, and on-going costs of this system?
	The funding for the acquisition and implementation has been fully budgeted by the City of Seattle.  The ongoing costs and reimbursement for the acquisition and implementation is part of the Interlocal Agreement the cities are in the process of developing and are scheduled to have in place by Fall 2013.
	

	236 
	02/07/13
	02/07/13
	
	
	Revise – Section 1:  Future Contract Assignment

The City of Seattle reserves the right, and fully expects to transfer  assign any contract resulting from this RFP to a municipal non-profit corporation formed by the cities.  The five cities have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding covering this effort (see Attachment 1).  In addition, additional cities in Washington State may join the municipal non-profit corporation.  They may also use the Tax Portal and pay appropriate then-current subscription charges.
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Software As A Service Contract

Note:  This contract indicates terms and conditions required by The City. All submitting companies agree to the terms and conditions of this contract.  Vendors may submit requests for exceptions at the time of proposal submittal; and the City may consider such requests but is not obligated to accept such requests.  The City may also make changes to best reflect the project and interests of the City prior to submittal of the final Contract for signature.

City of Seattle


CONTRACT FOR MULTI-CITY BUSINES LICENSE AND TAX PORTAL SOLUTION

CONTRACT #3102

This Contract is made and entered into by and between City of Seattle (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation; and ________________ (Address: --), a corporation of the State of _______, and authorized to do business in the State of Washington.


Vendor Business:


Name of Representative: 





Vendor Address:




Vendor Phone:




Vendor Fax:




Vendor e-mail:




WHEREAS, the purpose of this contract is to procure a Multi City Business License and Tax Portal Solution; and


WHEREAS, Vendor was selected  as a result of a Request for Proposal process initiated by the City of Seattle and the Department of Finance and Administrative Services in January 2013​​ as  required by Seattle Municipal Code since costs are anticipated to exceed $44,000 in value; and


WHEREAS, the City of Seattle will join with other Washington cities in a municipal non-profit corporation for the development, Implementation, and oversight of an Multi-City Business License and Tax Portal; and 

WHEREAS, funds for this purpose are authorized through the City of Seattle annual budget. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performance of the Statement of Work contained herein, as attached and made a part hereof, the City and Vendor mutually agree as follows:

1. Term of Contract


The term of this contract shall begin on the date of the last party signature (“Effective Date”). This contract shall be for five (5) years with five (5) one (1)-year extensions allowed at the option of the City.  Such extensions shall be automatic, and shall go into effect without written confirmation, unless the City provides advance notice of the intention to not renew.  The vendor may also provide a notice to not extend, but must provide such notice at least 180 days prior to the otherwise automatic renewal date.

2. Survivorship


All purchase transactions and deliverables executed pursuant to the authority of this Contract shall be bound by all of the terms, conditions, prices and price discounts set forth herein, notwithstanding the expiration of the initial term of this Contract or any extensions thereof.  Further, the terms, conditions and warranties contained in this Contract that by their sense and context are intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Contract. In addition, the terms of the sections titled Overpayments to Vendor, Warranties, Section Headings, Incorporated Documents and Order of Precedence, Publicity, Review of Vendor Records, Indemnification, Dispute Resolution and Limitations of Liability, shall survive the termination of this Contract.

3. Statement of Work

Vendor shall provide the products services and tasks as described in the Contract attachments.  The Statement of Work may also be termed “work” herein.  

4. Expansion Clause


This contract may be expanded as mutually agreed, if such expansion is approved in writing by the Buyer from the City Purchasing Office of the Department of Finance and Administrative Services, City of Seattle.  No other City employee is authorized to make such written notices.  The Buyer will ensure the expansion meets the following criteria collectively:  (a)  it could not be separately bid, (b) the change is for a reasonable purpose, (c) the change was not reasonably known to either the City or vendors at time of bid or else was mentioned as a possibility in the bid (such as a change in environmental regulation or other law); (d) the change is not significant enough to be reasonably regarded as an independent body of work; (e) the change could not have attracted a different field of competition, and (f) the change does not vary the essential identity or main purpose of the contract.  The Buyer shall make this determination, and may make exceptions for immaterial changes, emergency or sole source conditions, or for other situations as required in the opinion of the Buyer.  Certain Work Orders or changes are not considered an expansion of scope, including an increase in quantities ordered, the exercise of options and alternates in the bid, change in design and specifications that does not expand the work beyond the limits provided for above, or ordering of work originally identified within the originating solicitation. If such changes are approved, changes are conducted as a written order issued by the City Purchasing Buyer in writing to the Vendor.


5. Work Order Process

The Vendor shall furnish all Systems and Hosted Services goods and services (“Deliverables”) pursuant to work orders issued under this Contract. Each work order shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Contract, and incorporated into this Contract by this reference. The Vendor shall furnish all Systems and Hosted Services Deliverables specified in the Work Order in an aggregate, single, complete transaction and not as separate items.  For each work order under this Contract, Vendor shall commence work upon issuance of a notice to proceed by the City. Work orders under this Contract may be generated by the City under the following conditions:

5.1. The Work Order is within the scope of the original solicitation and contract or is within the allowed conditions for expansions under Section 4 (Expansion Clause) above;

5.2. The City issues a request to change quantities of any deliverable;

5.3. The City orders additional custom features, modifications, or interfaces for the hosted system prior to or after the acceptance period.

5.4. The City chooses to host the system internally.


For any subsequent work order(s) requested by either party, the Vendor shall submit a detailed proposal for the change. The Vendor shall analyze, record, estimate and submit to the City, for its approval, the proposed scope for the changed or new work, a work schedule, and a rate or price adjustment for completion of the work to be changed or added.  Once this proposal is received and approved by the City, a new work order will be issued for the changed or additional work. Upon the City’s written approval and notice to proceed, the Vendor shall implement the change or additional work and invoice for the changed or additional work consistent with the City’s approval notice and the terms and conditions of this Contract. 


The City may, at its option, add, delete or modify any part of any work order by giving Vendor notice of such change within the time period specified in the applicable work order.  Within seven (7) days after the date of such notice, the Vendor shall deliver to the City an amended work order reflecting the change in description, schedule and/or dollar amount due using the unit prices as proposed for the specific work order in Vendor’s Proposal.

The Vendor shall not proceed unless authorized by a mutually agreed upon amendment.  Such extra work shall be in compliance with Section 4 (Expansion Clause) and shall be authorized in writing only by the City Purchasing Buyer, Department of Finance and Administrative Services.  Any costs incurred due to the performance of extra work will not be reimbursed until or unless an amendment is agreed upon.

The City does not guarantee utilization of goods and services provided for in this Contract for which the City has not issued a work order(s).  

6. Documentation

Vendor shall provide two sets of Documentation for use in electronic format compatible with Microsoft Corporation’s then generally available Office products and printed format in accordance with the terms of this Contract.  Upgrades and revisions to this Documentation shall be provided while Vendor is providing Services therefore.  There shall be no additional charge for the Documentation or updates thereto, in whatever form provided.  If Vendor maintains its technical, maintenance and installation documentation on a web site, Vendor may fulfill the obligations set forth in this section by providing the City access to its web‑based Documentation information.  

The City reserves the right to withhold payment for a deliverable, modification or enhancement until it receives all documentation associated with the same.  


7. Payment Procedures

The Maximum Amount payable under this Contract shall be as set forth in Exhibit ___, Statement of Work.

Vendor shall only invoice upon the City’s approval of the deliverable and in a manner consistent with the payment schedule attached, if any.  Once the City has received and approved the invoice, the City will provide payment within thirty (30) days.  The aggregate amount represents the full and final amount to be paid by the City for all expenses incurred and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Any fees invoiced by vendor for late payment, if any, shall not exceed 1% per month, per RCW 39.76.011.

The City shall not be obligated to pay any other compensation, fees, charges, prices or costs, nor shall Vendor charge any additional compensation for completing the work order of the Statement of Work. All costs invoiced to the City, shall be associated with an active and open work order.

Invoices for hardware and software installed in City facilities and other work performed under this Contract shall be submitted, in writing to the City’s Project Manager.  Invoices shall include such information as prescribed in the Specifications or Statement of Work, and is necessary for the City to determine the exact nature of all expenditures and shall reference this Contract.  Additional payment terms or invoice instructions may be mutually agreed upon by the City and the Vendor. 


Payment does not constitute whole or partial acceptance; City acceptance of the System shall only occur by formal written notice to that effect

Overpayments to Vendor

.   The City may credit erroneous payments or overpayments against amounts invoiced by Vendor.  If the City does not take such credits, Vendor shall promptly, but in all cases within 30 days, refund to the City the full amount of any erroneous payment or overpayment upon Notice of an erroneous payment or overpayment to which Vendor is not entitled.  

Credits

.  Any credits due the City under this Contract may be applied against Vendor’s invoices with appropriate information attached, upon giving of Notice required herein, if any, by the City to Vendor.

Increases.


Vendor shall not increase the Maximum Amount due from the City under this Agreement for hosted services/systems during the initial term of this Agreement except as otherwise specifically described in this Contract.  Vendor may increase its Hosted Service Charges at the end of the Initial Term for each Renewal Term, upon 90 days prior Notice to the City.  Such Charges shall be increased no more than the United States published indices such as Producer or Consumer Price Index (PPI or CPI) or other government data may be referenced to help substantiate the Vendor’s documentation, per Renewal Term.   If the Charges are increased, then, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the City may upon 30 days prior Notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract in accordance with Section 41, Termination.


7.1. Advance Payment Prohibited

The City does not accept requests for early payment, down payment or partial payment, unless the Bid or Proposal Submittal specifically allows such pre-payment proposals or alternates within the bid process.  Maintenance, subscriptions may be paid up to one year in advance provided that should the City terminate early, the amount paid shall be reimbursed to the City on a prorated basis; all other expenses are payable net 30 days after receipt and acceptance of satisfactory compliance.

7.2. Travel  

If the specifications and scope of work for this purchase have specifically identified travel and/or other direct costs that the City intends to reimburse, then the following requirements shall apply.  All such expenses must be pre-approved in writing by the Project Manager. If the specifications and scope of work do not clearly identify such costs for compensation, than no compensation will be given.  


· City will reimburse the Contractor at actual cost for expenditures that are pre-approved by the City in writing and are necessary and directly applicable to the work required by this Contract provided that similar direct project costs related to the contracts of other clients are consistently accounted for in a like manner.  Such direct project costs may not be charged as part of overhead expenses or include a markup.  Other direct charges may include, but are not limited to the following types of items: travel, printing, cell phone, supplies, materials, computer charges, and fees of subconsultants or subcontractors.


· The billing for third party direct expenses specifically identifiable with this project shall be an itemized listing of the charges supported by copies of the original bills, invoices, expense accounts, subconsultant/subcontractor paid invoices, and other supporting documents used by the Contractor to generate invoice(s) to the City.  The original supporting documents shall be available to the City for inspection upon request.  All charges must be necessary for the services provided under this Contract.


· The City will reimburse the actual cost for travel expenses incurred as evidenced by copies of receipts (excluding meals) supporting such travel expenses, and in accordance with the City of Seattle Travel Policy, details of which can be provided upon request.  


· Airfare: Airfare will be reimbursed at the actual cost of the airline ticket.  The City will reimburse for Economy or Coach Fare only.  Receipts detailing each airfare are required.


· Meals:  Meals will be reimbursed at the Federal Per Diem daily meal rate (excluding the “Incidental” portion of the published Federal M&I Rate) for the city in which the work is performed.  Receipts are not required as documentation.  The invoice shall state “the meals are being billed at the Federal Per Diem daily meal rate”, and shall detail how many of each meal is being billed (e.g. the number of breakfasts, lunches, and dinners).  The City will not reimburse for alcohol at any time.


· Lodging:  Lodging will be reimbursed at actual cost incurred up to a maximum of the published Runzheimer Cost Index for the city in which the work is performed (the current maximum allowed reimbursement amount can be provided upon request).  Receipts detailing each day / night lodging are required.  The City will not reimburse for ancillary expenses charged to the room (e.g. movies, laundry, mini bar, refreshment center, sundry items, etc.)

As an alternative, lodging may be billed at the published Federal Per Diem daily lodging rate for the city in which the work is performed.  If this method is used, receipts are not required for documentation.  If this method is used, the invoice shall state that "the lodging is being billed at the Federal Per Diem daily lodging rate."

· Vehicle mileage:  Vehicle mileage will be reimbursed at the Federal Internal Revenue Service Standard Business Mileage Rate in affect at the time the mileage expense is incurred (currently that rate is 56.5 cents per mile.)  Please note: payment for mileage for long distances traveled will not be more than an equivalent trip round-trip airfare of a common carrier for a coach or economy class ticket.

· Rental Car: Rental car expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost of the rental.  Rental car receipts are required for all rental car expenses.  The City will reimburse for a standard car of a mid-size class or less.  The City will not reimburse for ancillary expenses charged to the car rental (e.g. GPS unit).

· Miscellaneous Travel (e.g. parking, rental car gas, taxi, shuttle, toll fees, ferry fees, etc.):  Miscellaneous travel expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Receipts are required for each expense of $10.00 or more.


· Miscellaneous other business expenses (e.g. printing, photo development, binding): Other miscellaneous business expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Receipts are required for all miscellaneous expenses that are billed.


· Subcontractor: Subcontractor expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Copies of all subcontractor invoices that are rebilled to the City are required.

7.3. Disputed Work

Notwithstanding all above, if the City believes in good faith that some portion of Work has not been completed satisfactorily, the City may require Vendor to correct such work prior to The City payment.  In such event, the City will provide to Vendor an explanation of the concern and the remedy that the City expects.  The City may withhold from any payment that is otherwise due, an amount that the City in good faith finds to be under dispute, or if the Vendor does not provide a sufficient remedy, The City may retain the amount equal to the cost to The City for otherwise correcting or remedying the work not properly completed.


8. Taxes, Fees and Licenses

8.1. Taxes:  Where required by state statute, ordinance or regulation, Vendor shall pay for and maintain in current status all taxes that are necessary for contract performance.  Unless otherwise indicated, The City agrees to pay State of Washington sales or use taxes on all applicable consumer services and materials purchased.  No charge by the Vendor shall be made for federal excise taxes and The City agrees to furnish Vendor with an exemption certificate where appropriate.  

8.2. Fees and Licenses:  Vendor shall pay for and maintain in a current status, any license fees, assessments, permit charges, etc., which are necessary for contract performance.  It is the Vendor’s sole responsibility to monitor and determine any changes or the enactment of any subsequent requirements for said fees, assessments, or charges and to immediately comply with said changes during the entire term of this Contract. Vendor must pay all custom duties, brokerage or import fees where applicable as part of the contract price.  Vendor shall take all necessary actions to ensure that materials or equipment purchased are expedited through customs.  

8.3. Vendor is to calculate and enter the appropriate Washington State and local sales tax on the invoice.  Tax is to be computed on new items after deduction of any trade-in, in accordance with WAC 458-20-247. 

9. Timely Completion

9.1.  Time is of the Essence:  The City has an immediate need to implement the System and/or Software and equipment for the management and operation of the City.  Therefore, time is of the essence in all matters relating to this Contract

10. License for Use 

The Vendor grants to the City a nonexclusive license to use, and access the System and Hosted Services in whole or in part for supporting the internal operations of the City of Seattle and to relicense to other Washington Cities.  The licenses hereunder are granted as of the earlier of the date of first access or delivery of the Vendor Technology, Deliverables, System, and Hosted Services and continue until the City returns or ceases to use and access the Vendor Technology, Deliverables, System and Hosted Services.

11. Software Upgrades and Enhancements


Vendor shall:


11.1. Supply at no additional cost updated versions of the Software to operate on upgraded versions of operating systems, upgraded versions of firmware, or upgraded versions of web browsers;

11.2. Supply at no additional cost interface modules that are developed by Vendor for interfacing the Software to other Software products.; and

11.3. Supply at no additional cost updated versions of the Software that encompass improvements, extensions, maintenance updates, error corrections, or other changes that are logical improvements or extensions of the original Software supplied to City

11.4. Unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing, Vendor shall maintain any and all Third-party Software products at their most current version or no more than one version back from the most current version and at no additional charge.  However, Vendor shall not maintain any Third-party Software versions, including one version back, if any such version would prevent the City from using any functions, in whole or in part, or would cause Deficiencies in the System.  If implementation of an upgrade to a Third-party Software product requires personnel in addition to the Staff proposed in the Response for the Hosted Services, the City and Vendor shall discuss whether to implement such an upgrade and, if mutually agreed upon in writing, any additional Charges to be paid by the City for such upgrade.  Any additional costs that are charged by a Third-party Software manufacturer for an upgrade to a Third-party Software product that is not covered by such product’s maintenance agreement shall be charged to and paid for by Vendor.

12. Warranties 


a. 
Deliverables

.  Vendor represents and warrants that each Deliverable shall meet and conform to its applicable Specifications as provided herein following its Acceptance and during the Term.  Vendor also represents and warrants that the System and Hosted Services, in whole and in part, shall operate in accordance with the Detailed System Design Deliverables, the Performance Standards, the other Acceptance Criteria, the Documentation, and this Contract following their Acceptance and during the Term.


b. 
Hosted System Services.  Vendor represents and warrants that: (a) It shall perform all Services required pursuant to this Agreement in a professional manner, with high quality, (b) It shall give the highest priority to the performance of the Services, (c) Time shall be of the essence in connection with performance of the Services for Deliverables.  Vendor shall immediately re-perform Services which are not in compliance with such representations and warranties at no cost to the City.

12.1. Warranty Against Planned Obsolescence 



The Vendor warrants that the products and services proposed to and acquired by the City under this Contract are new and of current manufacture, and that it has no current plans for announcing a replacement line that would be marketed by Vendor as a replacement for any of the products provided to the City under this Contract and would result in reduced support for the product line within which the System furnished to the City is contained.  The Vendor further warrants that, in the event that a major change in hardware, software, or operating system occurs that radically alters the design architecture of the System and makes the current design architecture obsolete within three (3) years after full execution of this Contract, and if the City continues its annual maintenance Contract with the Vendor, the Vendor shall provide the City with a replacement hardware, software, or operating system(s) that continues the full functionality of the systems, at no extra cost to the City.

12.2. No Surreptitious Code Warranty Note:  if external use new, if internal use old.

12.2.1 Vendor warrants to the City that the System, Hosted Services and Vendor Technology provided to the City under this Contract contain or shall contain no Self-help Code or any Unauthorized Code. Vendor further warrants that Vendor shall not introduce, via modem or otherwise, any code or mechanism that electronically notifies Vendor of any fact or event, or any key, node, lock, time‑out, or other function, implemented by any type of means or under any circumstances, that may restrict the City’s use of or access to the Software, Data, or Equipment, in whole or in part, based on any type of limiting criteria, including without limitation frequency or duration of use for any copy of the Software provided to the City under this Contract.

12.2.2 Vendor shall defend the City against any claim, and indemnify and hold harmless the City against any loss or expense arising out of any breach of this warranty.  No limitation of liability, whether contractual or statutory, shall apply to a breach of this warranty.

12.3. Title Warranty and Warranty against Infringement 

Vendor hereby warrants and represents to City that Vendor is the owner of the Vendor Technology, Hosted Services and System licensed hereunder or otherwise has the right to grant to the City, the licensed rights to the Vendor Technology, Hosted Services, and System provided by Vendor through this Agreement without violating any rights of any third party worldwide. Vendor represents and warrants that:  (i) Vendor is not aware of any claim, investigation, litigation, action, suit or administrative or judicial proceeding pending or threatened based on claims that the Vendor Technology, System or Hosted Services infringe or misappropriate any patents, copyrights, or trade secrets of any third party, and (ii) the Vendor Technology, System and Hosted Services do not infringe upon or misappropriate any patents, copyrights, trade secrets or any other intellectual property rights of any third party. The City shall receive prompt Notice of each notice or claim of copyright infringement or infringement or misappropriation of other intellectual property right worldwide received by Vendor with respect to the Vendor Technology, Hosted Services, or System delivered under this Agreement. 


Vendor shall, at its expense, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its employees, officers, directors, contractors and agents from and against any claim or action against the City which is based on a claim that any Deliverable or Service any part thereof under this Agreement infringes a patent, copyright, utility model, industrial design, mask work, trademark, or other proprietary right or misappropriates a trade secret, and Vendor shall pay all losses, liabilities, damages, penalties, costs, fees (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) and expenses caused by or arising from such claim. The City shall promptly give Vendor notice of any such claim. . In the event a final injunction or order is obtained against the City’s full use of the Deliverables/Services/System or any portion thereof as a result of any such claim, suit or proceeding, and if no further appeal of such ruling is practicable, Vendor shall, as mutually agreed upon and at Vendor’s expense:


a. procure for the City the right to continue full use of the Hosted System; or


b. replace  or modify the same so that it becomes non‑infringing (which modification or replacement shall not affect the obligation to ensure the Deliverables/Services/System conforms with applicable Statement of Work); or


c. if the product was purchased and the actions described in item (1) or (2) of Section 11.4, are not practicable, refund the full purchase price and remain liable for all damages suffered by the City as a result of the loss of the infringing product and any other continued utility of which to the City is adversely affected by the removal of the infringing product, and hold the City harmless from any further liability therefore under any applicable Order, Settlement, or other Contract. 

In no event shall the City be liable to Vendor for any lease, rental, service, or maintenance payments after the date, if any, that the City is no longer legally permitted to use the Hosted Services because of such actual or claimed infringement. 

No settlement that prevents the City from continuing to use the Hosted Service, other products or Software documentation as provided in this Contract shall be made without the City’s prior written consent.  In all events, the City shall have the right to participate at its own expense in the defense of any such suit or proceeding through counsel of its own choosing.


The indemnification obligation set forth in this section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract.


12.4. No Liens



The Vendor warrants that Vendor is authorized to provide full use of the Hosted Services to the City as provided herein and that such Hosted Services is not subject to any lien, claim or encumbrance inconsistent with any of the City’s rights under this Contract and that the City is entitled to and shall be able to enjoy quiet possession and use of the Hosted Services without interruption by Vendor or any other person making a claim under or through the Vendor or by right of paramount title.

12.5. Maintenance Services Warranty  


The Vendor warrants that, in performing the services under This Contract, the Vendor shall strictly comply with the descriptions and representations as to the services, including performance capabilities, accuracy, completeness, characteristics, Statement of Work, configurations, standards, function and requirements, which appear in this Contract and in the Vendor’s response to the City’s Request for Proposal. Errors or omissions committed by the Vendor in the course of providing Services shall be remedied by the Vendor at its own expense.

12.6. Equipment Warranty

The Vendor warrants and represents that the Equipment provided to meet the requirements of the Statement of Work shall be free from all defects, shall be in good operating order, and shall operate in conformity with the descriptions and standards as set forth in the Vendor’s Proposal and the City’s RFP during the contract term.  Vendor shall promptly, without additional charge, repair or replace the equipment or any part thereof that fails to function as required herein.

12.7. Merchantability and Fitness Warranty



Vendor represents and warrants that the Software, other products and Software Documentation will be merchantable and will be fit for the particular purposes established in the City’s RFP and the Vendor’s response to the City’s RFP.

12.8. Warrant of Compliance with Applicable Law

a. Vendor warrants that the System and Hosted Services shall comply with all applicable federal, State and local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances.  Contractor warrants that, throughout the Term of this Agreement, the System and Hosted Services shall comply with changes to and new applicable federal, State and local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances.

b. Vendor represents and warrants that it shall comply with all applicable local, State, and Federal licensing, accreditation and registration requirements and standards necessary in the performance of the Services.        

12.9.  Written Commitments.


Any written commitment by Vendor within the scope of this Contract shall be binding upon Vendor. Failure of Vendor to fulfill such a commitment may constitute a material breach and shall render Vendor liable for damages under the terms of this Contract. For purposes of this section, a commitment by Vendor includes but is not limited to:  (i) Purchase Prices, Charges, discounts, and options committed to remain in force over a specified period of time; and (ii) any warranty or representation made by Vendor in its Response or contained in any Vendor publications, written materials, schedules, charts, diagrams, tables, descriptions, other written representations, and any other communication medium accompanying or referred to in its Response or used to effect the sale to the City.


12.10. Survival of Warranties and Representations


The representations and warranties of the Vendor made pursuant to this Contract shall survive the delivery of the System, the payment of the purchase price, and the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract.

12.11. Warranty Services and Hosted Services. 


General Responsibilities

.  The Vendor warrants the hosted service for the term of this agreement.  During the Warranty Periods, Vendor shall provide Services as described below in this Section as the Warranty Services at no additional cost to correct Deficiencies in the System and Hosted Services and to repair and maintain the System and Hosted Services in accordance with the Specifications.  Vendor shall perform these Warranty Services after the Warranty Periods and during Hosted Services at Charges described in Exhibit A, Statement of Work.  Vendor’s Warranty Service responsibilities shall include but not be limited to the following while assisting THE CITY in operating and maintaining the System and Hosted Services:


12.12.1 Promptly repair or replace the System and Hosted Services, or any portion thereof, that has Deficiencies;

12.12.2  Maintain the System and Hosted Services in accordance with the Specifications and terms of this Agreement and meet all availability and system performance service levels as specified in the Statement of work and/or Service Level Agreement.(SLA)  In the event the Hosted System requires failover activities, then the Vendor shall be responsible for continuance of the Hosted System and the City shall not be subject additional costs unless otherwise specified in this agreement

12.12.3  Upon request by the City, re‑perform any Service that fails to meet the requirements of this Contract at no additional cost;

12.12.4  Coordinate with the City all tasks related to correcting problems and Deficiencies connected with the Software or the Equipment.

12.12.5 Inquiry Assistance.  Contractor shall respond to inquiries from the City, and with the following, as applicable:


12.12.5.1 Responses to questions relating to the Software, including without limitation isolating problems to the Software, Data or Equipment;

12.12.5.2 The development, on a best efforts basis, of a temporary solution to or an emergency bypass of a Deficiency;

12.12.5.3 Corrections and repairs of errors, problems or Deficiencies with the Software, to the extent technically feasible; and

12.12.5.4 Clarification of Documentation.

13. Enhancements. 

Vendor shall provide the City with all Enhancements and associated documentation that are provided as general releases to the Software, in whole or in part, as part of the Hosted Services.  Such Documentation shall be adequate to inform the City of the problems resolved including any significant differences resulting from the release which are known by Vendor.  Vendor warrants that each such Enhancement general release shall be tested and perform according to the Specifications.  Vendor agrees to correct corrupted Data that may result from any System Deficiency introduced by the Enhancement at no cost to the City.

Enhancements to correct any Deficiency shall be provided to the City at no additional cost and without the need for a Work Order.

Should the Vendor not be able to correct the hosted system so that it complies with the specifications in the Statement of Work and/or Service Level Agreement, to the City’s reasonable satisfaction in a timely manner, the City may terminate this Contract and Section 39 of this Contract shall be executed.  

14.  Ownership of Data 

Except for the licensed System Software and its related documentation, all data and work products produced under this Contract shall be considered work made for hire under the U.S. Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. 101 et seq, and shall be owned by the City.  

The City shall own all right, title and interest in and to the City’s Confidential Information (defined in Section 36 and the City’s intellectual property, and the City’s Property.   To the extent Vendor produces any Data, Vendor shall take all actions necessary and shall transfer ownership of the Data to the City following its development.  The Data shall be deemed City of Seattle work made for hire for all purposes of copyright law, and copyright shall belong solely to the City.  In the event that any such work is adjudged to be not a work made for hire, Vendor agrees to assign and hereby assigns all copyright in such work to the City.  Vendor shall, assist the City or its nominees to obtain copyrights, trademarks, or patents for all such works.  The Vendor agrees to execute all papers and to give all facts known to it necessary to secure United States copyrights and to transfer or cause to transfer to the City right, title and interest in and to such works.  


15. Protection of Persons and Property

15.1. Person



The Vendor and the City shall each take reasonable precautions for the safety of employees of the other, and shall each comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations to prevent or avoid any accident or injury to a person on, about or adjacent to any premises where work under this Contract is being performed.

15.2. Property




The Vendor shall take reasonable steps to protect the City’s property from injury or loss arising in connection with the Vendor’s performance or failure of performance under this Contract.

15.3. No Smoking



The Vendor shall not allow any employee of the Vendor or any sub or agent thereof to smoke inside any City facility.


16.  Notices

16.1. Contract Notices, 

All official contract notices shall be delivered to the following addresses (or such other address (es) as either party may designate in writing):


If to the City


delivered by the U.S. Postal Service, it must be addressed to:
 
Carmalinda Vargas
 
City of Seattle Purchasing and Contracting Services 



PO Box 94687

Seattle, WA  98124-4687


If delivered by any other company, it must be addressed to:
 

Carmalinda Vargas
 

City of Seattle Purchasing and Contracting Services 




Seattle Municipal Tower




700 5th Ave., #4112


Seattle, WA  98104-5042




Phone: 206-615-1123




Fax:  206-233-5155




E-Mail: Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov




If to the Vendor:


delivered by the U.S. Postal Service or any other company, it must be addressed 


To:


Address:



Phone:


16.2. Project work, invoices and communications shall be delivered to the City Project Manager: 

City of Seattle  

Attention:




If to the Vendor:


I delivered by the U.S. Postal Service or any other company, it must be addressed 


To:


Address:




Phone:


17. Security


Vendor shall provide to the City an attestation by an objective third party or third party software, stating that the _________________ application has been tested for common security vulnerabilities as articulated by the "OWASP Top-10".  These include SQl injection, cross-site scripting, cross-site request forgery, and others.  See www.owasp.org for details.  This testing must be performed at the expense of the vendor and by an objective third party or use third party software.


The attestation may be simply an executive summary of the technical report, stating that the application has been tested against the aforementioned standard, and found to be free of security defect.  The vendor will work in good faith to resolve any security issues Identified based on risk imposed from those issues.


The City may require the Vendor re-test the _______________ Web portal Hosted System if there are significant changes such as addition of functionality, structural or architecture changes, or the addition of infrastructure components.


18.  Vendor Authorizations 

Vendor represents and warrants that:


18.1.  Vendor is a [corporation duly incorporated], validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its state of incorporation and has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Contract; 

18.2. The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract has been duly authorized by Vendor and no approval, authorization or consent of any governmental or regulatory agency is required to be obtained in order for Vendor to enter into this Contract and perform its obligations under this Contract; 

18.3. Vendor is duly authorized to conduct business in and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which Vendor will conduct business in connection with this Contract;

18.4. Vendor has obtained all licenses, certifications, permits, and authorizations necessary to perform the Services under this Contract and currently is in good standing with all regulatory agencies that regulate any or all aspects of Vendor’s performance of the Services. Vendor will maintain all required certifications, licenses, permits, and authorizations during the term of this Contract at its own expense.  Vendor must maintain any certifications that were specified as a minimum requirement in the selection process.  If during the period of the contract, a new certification is established as a minimum requirement for similar applications, the vendor shall, within a reasonable time, obtain that certification.

18.5. Vendor has the full power and authority to grant to the City, the rights described in this Contract without violating any rights of any third party and that there is currently no actual or threatened suit by any such third party based on an alleged violation of such rights by Vendor.  Vendor further represents and warrants that the person executing this Contract for Vendor has actual authority to bind Vendor to each and every term, condition and obligation to this Contract, and that all requirements of Vendor have been fulfilled to provide such actual authority.


19. Ability to Perform


 Vendor represents and warrants that:


19.1. Vendor has and shall continue to have the financial ability, by itself or through a line of credit or other financial support, to provide THE CITY with at least six months of Services, including Hosted Services during any period of this Contract, without reimbursement for the Services or expenses; 

19.2. Vendor has and shall continue to have the financial resources to fund the capital expenditures required under this Contract without advances by THE CITY or assignment of any payments by THE CITY to a financing source; 

19.3. Each subcontractor providing a substantial amount of the Services under this Contract has and shall continue to have the financial resources to carry out its duties under this Contract; and 

19.4. Vendor’s methods of accounting are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and are capable of segregating costs by release, stage, segment, or cost objective in order to support Change Order accounting.

19.5. Vendor represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and experience necessary to provide Work and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities.


20. Affirmative Efforts for Utilization of Women and Minority Subcontracting, Non-Discrimination 

· Employment Actions:  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, creed, age, color, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, political ideology, ancestry, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification.  Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their creed, religion, race, age, color, sex, national origin, marital status, political ideology, ancestry, sexual orientation, gender identity, or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to employment, upgrading, promotion, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay, or other forms of compensation and selection for training.  


· In accordance with Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 20.42, Contractor shall actively solicit the employment and subcontracting of women and minority group members when there are commercially useful purposes for fulfilling the scope of work.  


· In the event Subcontracting is considered appropriate and feasible to contract performance, the Contractor shall develop a Subcontracting Plan, which also may be referred to as an Inclusion Plan.  The Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan shall specify the Contractor’s affirmative efforts and an agreement to the City for subcontracting to women and minority businesses, and/or diverse employment.  The Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan, as submitted and/or as agreed upon with the City thereafter, shall be incorporated as a material part of the Contract. In preparing the Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan, Contractors shall actively solicit qualified, available and capable women and minority-owned businesses to perform the subcontracting work for the contract.  The Contractor shall submit the Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan to the City with the solicitation and/or prior to contract execution. At the request of the City, Contractor shall promptly furnish evidence of the Contractor’s compliance with these requirements, which may include a list of all subcontractors and/or WMBE subcontractors, and may include a request for copies of the executed agreements between the Contractor and subcontractors, invoices and/or performance reports.


· If upon investigation, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services finds probable cause to believe that the Contractor has failed to comply with the requirements of this Section, the Contractor shall be notified in writing.  The Director of Finance and Administrative Services shall give Contractor an opportunity to be heard with ten calendar days’ notice.  If, after the Contractor’s opportunity to be heard, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services still finds probable cause, s/he may suspend the Contract and/or withhold any funds due or to become due to the Contractor, pending compliance by the Contractor with the requirements of this Section.


· Any violation of the mandatory requirements of this Section, or a violation of Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 14.04 (Fair Employment Practices), Chapter 14.10 (Fair Contracting Practices), Chapter 20.45 (City Contracts – Non-Discrimination in Benefits), or other local, state, or federal non-discrimination laws, shall be a material of contract for which the Contractor may be subject to damages and sanctions provided for by the Vendor Contract and by applicable law.   In the event the Contractor is in violation of this Section shall be subject to debarment from City contracting activities in accordance with Seattle Municipal Code Section 20.70 (Debarment).


21. Equal Benefits

21.1. Compliance with SMC Ch. 20.45: The Vendor shall comply with the requirements of SMC Ch. 20.45 and Equal Benefits Program Rules implementing such requirements, under which the Vendor is obligated to provide the same or equivalent benefits (“equal benefits”) to its employees with domestic partners as the Vendor provides to its employees with spouses.  At The City’s request, the Vendor shall provide complete information and verification of the Vendor’s compliance with SMC Ch. 20.45.   Failure to cooperate with such a request shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.  (For further information about SMC Ch. 20.45 and the Equal Benefits Program Rules call (206) 684-0430 or review information at http://www.seattle.gov/contracting/equalbenefits.htm

21.2. Remedies for Violations of SMC Ch. 20.45:  Any violation of this Section shall be a material breach of Contract for which the City may: 

21.3. Require the Vendor to pay actual damages for each day that the Vendor is in violation of SMC Ch. 20.45 during the term of the Contract; or

21.4. Terminate the Contract; or 

21.5. Disqualify the Vendor from bidding on or being awarded a City contract for a period of up to five (5) years; or

21.6. Impose such other remedies as specifically provided for in SMC Ch. 20.45 and the Equal Benefits Program Rules promulgated thereunder.


22. General Legal Requirements

22.1. General Requirement:  Vendor, at no expense to The City, shall comply with all applicable laws of the United States and the State of Washington; the Charter and ordinances of The City; and rules, regulations, orders, and directives of their administrative agencies and the officers thereof.  Without limiting the generality of this paragraph, the Vendor shall specifically comply with the following requirements of this section.

22.2. Licenses and Similar Authorizations:  Vendor, at no expense to The City, shall secure and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Contract all required licenses, permits, and similar legal authorizations, and comply with all requirements thereof.

22.3. Performance Standard.   All duties by Vendor or designees shall be performed in a manner consistent with accepted practices for other similar Work. 

23. Changes to City Programs.


23.1. The parties acknowledge that the City programs supported by this Contract may be subject to continuous change during the term of this Contract. Except as provided in this Section, Vendor has provided for or will provide for adequate resources, to reasonably accommodate such changes.  Should Vendor be unable to accommodate those changes, the City has the right to terminate the contract.

23.2. The parties also acknowledge that the Vendor was selected, in part, because of its expertise, experience, and knowledge concerning applicable federal and/or State laws, regulations, policies, or guidelines that affect the performance of the Services and System.

23.3. In keeping with the City reliance on the Vendor’s knowledge, experience and expertise, the Vendor will be responsible for identifying changes in applicable federal or State legislative enactments and regulations and the impact of such changes on the performance of the Services or Deliverables or the City’s use of the Services or Deliverables.  The Vendor must timely notify the City of such changes and must work with the City to identify the impact of such changes on how the City uses the Services or Deliverables.

23.4. Noncompliance.  The Vendor will be responsible for any fines, penalties, or disallowances imposed on the City or Vendor arising from any noncompliance with the laws, regulations, policies, and guidelines that affect the Services or Deliverables that are to be provided or that have been provided by the Vendor, its Subcontractors or agents.


24. Indemnification

Vendor shall defend, indemnify, and save City harmless from and against all claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees resulting from such claims, by third parties for any or all injuries to persons or damage to property of such third parties arising from intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions of Vendor, its officers, employees, or agents, or Subcontractors, their officers, employees or agents.  Vendor’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and save City harmless shall not be eliminated or reduced by any alleged concurrent City negligence.

25. Insurance

Except as specified otherwise, Vendor shall obtain at time of award and maintain in force, minimum coverages and limits of liability of insurance specified below.  If the Vendor fails to obtain or maintain these coverages, the City may withdraw its intent to award.  All costs are borne by the Vendor.

25.1. MINIMUM COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY. Vendor shall at all times during the term of this Contract maintain continuously, at its own expense, minimum insurance coverages and limits of liability as specified below:

25.1.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance, including:





- Premises/Operations






- Products/Completed Operations





- Personal/Advertising Injury





- Contractual 




- Independent Contractors 


- Stop Gap/Employers Liability

- Products/Completed OPNS.  Add’l Inusred for Three (3) Years Following End Of Contract

with minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage (“CSL”), except:





$1,000,000    Personal/Advertising Injury




$2,000,000   Products/Completed Operations Aggregate





$2,000,000  General Aggregate

$1,000,000    Each Accident/Disease/Employee Stop Gap/Employer’s Liability

25.1.2.  Automobile Liability insurance, including coverage for owned, non-owned, leased or hired vehicles with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 CSL.

25.1.3.  Worker’s Compensation for industrial injury to Vendor’s employees in accordance with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington. 

25.1.4.  Professional Liability Errors and Omissions, with coverage of not less than $10 million per occurrence.

25.1.5. Technology Errors & Omissions (E&O) with coverage of $10,000,000



25.1.6. Crime Fidelity, Theft, Disappearance & Destruction Liability (to include Employee Dishonesty, wire transfer, forgery & mail coverage) WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $5,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate.

25.1.7. Information Technology -Network Security (Cyber) Liability WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $10,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate. This shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for any actual or alleged breach of duty, neglect, error, act, mistake, omission, or failure arising out of Service Provider's Internet and Network Activities including coverage for, but not limited to, the following events:


· An attack that has the intent to affect, alter, copy, corrupt, destroy, disrupt, damage, or provide unauthorized access or unauthorized use of Service Provider's or Vendor’s computer system;

· Computer Crime or Information Theft;


· Denial of Service;


· Extortion;


· Introduction, implantation, or spread of a Computer Virus;


· Loss of Service;


· Identity Theft;


· Infringement


· Electronic data loss and restoration;


· Unauthorized Access or Use, including the gaining of access to Service Provider's or  participating cities computer systems by an unauthorized person or persons or an authorized person in an unauthorized manner


25.2. CITY AS ADDITIONAL INSURED.  The CGL/MGL insurance and all other coverages as specified herein must be endorsed to include “The City of Seattle as Additional Insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability without any exclusion, restriction, or other limitation upon the existence of coverage thereunder for claims or suits brought by the Vendor and/or any of the Additional Parties against the Vendor and/or any of the Additional Parties.”  In addition, the Contractor’s liability insurance shall contain either a cross liability endorsement or separation of insureds provision which permits the limits of liability under the Contractor's policies to apply separately to each Additional Insured.


25.3. NO LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  The limits of liability specified herein in subparagraph 25.1 are minimum limits of liability only and shall not be deemed to limit the liability of Vendor or any Vendor insurer except as respects the stated limit of liability of each policy.  Where required to be an additional insured, the City of Seattle shall be so for the full limits of liability maintained by Vendor, whether such limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.

25.4. MINIMUM SECURITY REQUIREMENT.  All insurers must be rated A- VII or higher in the current A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide and licensed to do business in the State of Washington unless coverage is issued as surplus lines by a Washington Surplus lines broker.

25.5. SELF-INSURANCE.  Any self-insured retention not fronted by an insurer must be disclosed.  Any defense costs or claim payments falling within a self-insured retention shall be the responsibility of Vendor.

25.6. EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE. Prior to performance of any scope of work under this Contract, Vendor shall provide certification of insurance acceptable to the City evidencing the minimum coverages and limits of liability and other requirements specified herein.  Such certification must include a copy of the policy provision documenting that the City of Seattle is an additional insured for commercial general liability insurance on a primary and non-contributory basis.  Certification should be issued to The City of Seattle, Risk Management Division, and Seattle, WA and shall be delivered in electronic form either as an email attachment to riskmanagement@seattle.gov or faxed to (206) 470-1270.


26. Review of Vendor Records

Vendor and its Subcontractors shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence relating to this Contract, including but not limited to protection and use of City’s Confidential Information, and accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature invoiced in the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall retain all such records for six (6) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract.  Records involving matters in litigation related to this Contract shall be kept for six (6) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Contract whichever is later.


All such records shall be subject at reasonable times and upon prior notice to examination, inspection, copying or audit by personnel so authorized by the City’s Contract Administration and/or the Office of the Auditor and federal officials so authorized by law, rule, regulation or contract, when applicable, at no additional cost to the City.  During this Contract’s term, Vendor shall provide access to these items at a mutually agreeable time and place.  Vendor shall be responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by Vendor or any of its Subcontractors. Vendor shall incorporate in its subcontracts this section’s records retention and review requirements.


It is agreed that books, records, documents and other evidence of accounting procedures and practices related to Vendor’s cost structure, including overhead, general and administrative expenses, and profit factors shall be excluded from City’s review unless the cost or any material issue under this Contract is calculated or derived from these factors.


27.  Independent Contractor 

The relationship of Vendor to The City by reason of this Contract shall be that of an independent Vendor.  This Contract does not authorize Vendor to act as the agent or legal representative of the City for any purpose whatsoever.  Vendor is not granted any express or implied right or authority to assume or create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of or in the name of The City or to bind The City in any manner or thing whatsoever.


It is the intention and understanding of the Parties that Vendor shall be an independent Vendor and that the City shall be neither liable for nor obligated to pay sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of employment,  nor to pay any social security or other tax that may arise as an incident of employment.  The Vendor shall pay all income and other taxes as due.  Industrial or other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the Vendor shall not be deemed to convert this Contract to any employment contract.  It is recognized that Vendor may or will be performing professional Work during the term for other parties and that The City is not the exclusive user of the Work that Vendor will provide.


28. Assignment and Subcontracting

29.1
Vendor shall not assign or subcontract any of its obligations under this Contract without mutual written consent, which shall not be granted or withheld without reasonable cause.  Any subcontract made by Contractor shall incorporate by reference all the terms of this Contract except for Equal Benefit provisions. Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors comply with the obligations and requirements of the subcontract, except for Equal Benefit provisions.  Seattle’s consent to any assignment or subcontract shall not release the Contractor from liability under this Contract, or from any obligation to be performed under this Contract, whether occurring before or after such consent, assignment, or subcontract. 

29.2
The City of Seattle reserves the right, and fully expects to assign any contract resulting from this RFP to a municipal non-profit corporation formed by the cities.  The five cities have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding covering this effort (see Attachment 1).  In addition, additional cities in Washington State may join the municipal non-profit corporation.  They may also use the Tax Portal and pay appropriate then-current subscription charges.


. 

29. No Conflict of Interest.


Contractor confirms that Contractor does not have a business interest or a close family relationship with any City officer or employee who was, is, or will be involved in the Contractor selection, negotiation, drafting, signing, administration, or evaluating the Contractor's performance.  


30. No Gifts or Gratuities.


Contractor shall not directly or indirectly offer anything of value (such as retainers, loans, entertainment, favors, gifts, tickets, trips, favors, bonuses, donations, special discounts, work or meals) to any City employee, volunteer or official, that is intended, or may appear to a reasonable person to be intended, to obtain or give special consideration to the Vendor.  Promotional items worth less than $25 may be distributed by the vendor to City employees if the Vendor uses the items as routine and standard promotions for business. Any violation of this provision may result in termination of this Contract.  Nothing in this Contract prohibits donations to campaigns for election to City office, so long as the donation is disclosed as required by the election campaign disclosure laws of the City and of the State.

31. Current and Former City Employees, Officers, and Volunteers.


Throughout the life of the contract, Contractor shall provide written notice to City Purchasing and the City Project Manager of any current or former City employees, officials or volunteers that are working or assisting on solicitation of City business or on completion of the awarded contract.  The Vendor must be aware of the City Ethics Code, Seattle Municipal Code 4.16 and advise Contractor workers as applicable.


32. Contract Workers with 1,000 Hours


Throughout the life of the Contract, Contractor shall provide written notice to City Purchasing and the City Project Manager of any contract worker that shall perform more than 1,000 hours of contract work for the City within a rolling 12-month period.  Such hours include those that the contract worker performs for the Contract, and any other hours that the worker performs for the City under any other contract.  Such workers are subject to the requirements of the City Ethics Code, Seattle Municipal Code 4.16.  The Contractor shall advise their Contract workers as applicable.


33. Errors & Omissions:  Correction

Vendor shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, and the coordination of all designs, drawings, Statement of Work, and other services furnished by or on the behalf of the Vendor under this Contract.  The Vendor, without additional compensation, shall correct or revise any errors or omissions in the designs, drawings, Statement of Work, and/or other Vendor services immediately upon notification by The City.  The obligation provided for in this section with respect to any acts or omissions during the term of this Contract shall survive any termination or expiration of this Contract and shall be in addition to all other obligations and liabilities of the Vendor.

34. Data Storage and Retention

Vendor agrees to store and retain City data in accordance with City record retention requirements for the type of data being stored, or to work with the City to develop a plan to meet those requirements through alternate means.  

35. Confidentiality 

35.1. Vendor’s Confidential Information:

35.1.1. The Vendor understands that any records (including but not limited to bid or proposal submittals, the Contract,  and any other contract materials) it submits to the City, or that are used by the City even if the Contractor possesses the records, are public records under Washington State law, RCW Chapter 42.56. Public records must be promptly disclosed upon request unless a statute exempts them from disclosure. The Vendor also understands that even if part of a record is exempt from disclosure, the rest of that record generally must be disclosed.


35.1.2. If the City receives a public disclosure request made pursuant to RCW 42.56, the City will not assert an exemption from disclosure on behalf of the Contractor. For materials that the Vendor has properly marked, the City may notify the Contractor of the request and postpone disclosure for ten business days to allow the Contractor to file a lawsuit seeking an injunction preventing the release of documents pursuant to RCW 42.56.540.  Any notification is provided as a courtesy and is not an obligation on behalf of the City. Unless the Contractor obtains and serves an injunction upon the City before the close of business on the tenth business day after the date of the notification, the City may release the documents. It is the Contractor’s discretionary decision whether to file the lawsuit.


35.1.3. In order to request that material not be disclosed until receipt of notification of a public disclosure request, you must identify the specific materials and citations very clearly on the City Vendor Questionnaire that you believe are exempt from disclosure.  The City will not withhold material for notification if the Contractor simply marked confidential on the document header, footer, stamped on all pages, or offered a generic statement that the entire document is protected.  Only material specifically listed and properly cited on the Vendor Questionnaire will be temporarily withheld until the City provides notification of a public disclosure request.   


35.1.4. If the Contractor does not obtain and serve an injunction upon the City within 10 business days of the date of the City’s notification of the request, the Contractor is deemed to have authorized releasing the record.


35.1.5. If the Contractor does not submit a request within the Vendor Questionnaire, the Contractor is deemed to have authorized releasing any and all information submitted to the City. 


35.1.6. Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor must not take any action that would affect (a) the City’s ability to use goods and services provided under this Contract or (b) the Contractor’s obligations under this Contract.


35.1.7. The Contractor will fully cooperate with the City in identifying and assembling records in case of any public disclosure request.


35.2.  City’s Confidential Information:  


35.2.1. The following are hereby designated to be the City’s Confidential Information:  the City’s Data (including , but not limited to records, files, forms, documents, and other data regardless of format), meta-Data either described or embedded in the Data and City documents, City employee information including but not limited to names, address, Social Security numbers, e-mail addresses, telephone numbers, financial profiles, credit card information, driver’s license numbers, medical data, law enforcement records, and such other Confidential information as may be designated by the City to the Vendor.  

35.2.2. Except for disclosure of the City’s Confidential Information to the City in order to comply with RCW 42.56, the Vendor shall maintain all Confidential Information of the City in strict confidence, at least to the same extent as it protects the confidentiality of its own confidential information of like kind, but in no event with less than reasonable care.  

35.2.3. Vendor shall not at any time use, publish, sell, reproduce or disclose any Confidential Information, except for disclosure to the City in order to comply with RCW 42.56 and except to authorized officers, employees, contractors and agents requiring such information under confidentiality requirements in accordance with Appendix ____Non-Disclosure Agreement.(Optional)  The use or disclosure by Vendor of any City information not necessary for, or directly connected with, the performance of Vendor’s responsibility with respect to Services is prohibited except upon the express written consent of the City.

35.2.4. The Vendor shall take all steps necessary, including without limitation oral and written instructions to all authorized officers, employees, contractors and agents to safeguard the City’s Confidential Information in accordance with applicable federal and State law and regulation and this Contract against unauthorized disclosure, reproduction, publication or use, and to satisfy their obligations under this Contract including Appendix____Non-Disclosure Agreement.  

35.2.5. The Vendor, and its officers, employees, contractors and agents shall at all times comply with all security standards, practices, and procedures which are equal to or exceed those of the City with respect to information and materials which come into the Vendor’s possession

35.2.6. The Vendor shall not move the City’s confidential information to another geographical location without the City’s written permission.

35.2.7. The City reserves the right to monitor, audit or investigate Vendor’s use of the City’s Confidential Information collected, used, or acquired by Vendor under this Contract.

35.2.8. The Vendor shall immediately report to the City any and all unauthorized disclosures or uses of the City Confidential Information of which it or its officers, employees, employees, contractors and agents is aware or has knowledge.  The Vendor acknowledges that any publication or disclosure of City Confidential Information to others may cause immediate and irreparable harm to the City.  If the Vendor should publish or disclose such Confidential Information to others without authorization, the City shall immediately be entitled to injunctive relief or any other remedies to which it is entitled under law or equity without requiring a cure period.

35.2.9. The use or disclosure by Contractor of any City information not necessary for, nor directly connected with, the performance of Contractor’s responsibility with respect to Services is prohibited, except upon the express written consent of the City

36. Publicity


No news release, advertisement, promotional material, tour, or demonstration related to the City’s purchase or use of the Vendor’s product or any work performed pursuant to this Contract shall be produced, distributed or take place without the prior, specific approval of the City’s Project Manager or his/her designee.

37. Interlocal Agreement Act


RCW Chapter 39.34 allows cooperative purchasing between public agencies, non profits and other political subdivisions.  Public agencies that file an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City of Seattle may purchase from Contracts established by the City.  The seller agrees to sell additional items at the bid prices, terms and conditions, to other eligible governmental agencies that have such agreements with the City.  The City of Seattle accepts no responsibility for the payment of the purchase price by other governmental agencies.  Should the Vendor require additional pricing for such purchases, the Vendor is to name such additional pricing upon Offer to the City.

38. Background Checks


The City may require background/criminal checks during the term of the Contract for essential City purposes.  The City does not intend to request background checks/verifications unless essential in the opinion of the City.  For example:  For hosted systems, and similar services, due to the confidential nature of the information and materials which will be accessible to Vendor, the City, may also conduct a reference check, background/criminal check on Vendor Staff (which may include officers, employees, subcontractors and agents).to be used to provide the Services.  The City reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any proposed Staff as a result of information produced by such reference checks, background checks, or additional sources of information.  Note that, in particular, Seattle City Light has regulatory requirements promulgated by organizations with jurisdiction over Seattle City Light, which require any contract worker that has access to certain locations/systems/data (“SCL Designated Access”) to undergo a background/criminal check before that worker can have authorized cyber or authorized unescorted physical access to those locations/systems/data. The requirements apply to all Vendor workers and mandate an appropriate Personnel Risk Assessment and security awareness training as directed by Seattle City Light.  

This section covers background/criminal checks for Vendor workers before they work on certain City tasks, systems and/or locations, to include the discovery and verification of criminal convictions and civil findings.  The City may, at its option, determine that only a criminal history check will be performed.  This section also covers the requirements if cyber security training is required.


If the City notifies the Vendor to undergo background/criminal checks or cyber security training for vendor workers, the following shall apply.


38.1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 


38.1.1. The City shall alert the Vendor that the contract task is “High Security” at the time the work request is made to the Vendor or as soon as practical thereafter.


38.1.2. Should the Vendor believe it cannot meet these obligations by the scheduled work start dates, the Vendor may seek mutual agreement to a revised start date, or if none is reached, decline the work.


38.1.3. The City may require that any Vendor worker receiving SCL Designated Access undergo a background/criminal history check and receive appropriate cyber security training.  The Seattle Police Department (SPD) shall conduct all criminal history checks for Seattle Police Department services.  


38.1.4.  The Vendor shall provide a list of names, specified identification information (social security number, birth date and address) and a release signed by the worker for the City to perform a background/criminal history check.  Vendor must provide the information to the City before any worker will receive be cleared for work.  The list must be submitted at a date mutually agreed upon.    


38.1.5. The City will conduct a background check using either the Seattle Police Department or any agency with whom the City selects.  The City will review the resultant background/criminal history check results.  The City shall notify the Vendor of acceptance or rejection of personnel in a timely manner.   The City will perform the background check at City cost.


38.1.6. For workers rejected by the City, the Vendor will submit to the City alternative names for background checks.  Vendor will submit those names promptly, as mutually agreed upon between the Vendor and the City. 


38.1.7. The Vendor has responsibility to obtain City approval for a sufficient quantity of personnel to provide adequate coverage during the contract term.   The City may allow the Vendor to submit a greater number of individuals for background checks and approval than is necessary to accomplish the contract tasks, in order to assure adequate coverage for the contract work (i.e. receive authorization for back-up crew members in the event of an absence by a scheduled crew member).


38.1.8. Notwithstanding the schedules and responsibilities herein, the City and the Vendor may need to consider individuals for emergency replacement in the event a worker cannot perform or is terminated.  In such event, the City may allow the Vendor to submit additional names in anticipation of such future need.  


38.1.9. The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such individuals, although the City is not under the obligation to accept individuals that would otherwise be rejected as not suitable.


38.1.10. The Background/Criminal check must be renewed every four years for vendor workers.  If the worker was required by the City to undergo a background check and/or cyber security training, the Vendor must likewise notify the City when that worker approaches four years.  This notice to the City must be no less than sixty (60) days before the end of the four-year period. At that time, to comply with appropriate regulatory requirements, the City may require another background check/criminal.


38.1.11. The Vendor shall provide to the City, no less than eight (8) hours from when the status change becomes effective, notice of any Vendor worker who is: (i) reassigned or no longer requires Designated Access to perform the contract tasks, or (ii) terminated by the Vendor for any reason. In no case shall such notice be greater than eight (8) hours.


38.1.12. The Vendor shall immediately notify the City Project Manager to report if a worker has a change in criminal history or background status.  The City may initiate a new background/criminal check for this or other cause during the term of the worker’s access to the City.


38.1.13. For furniture moves, on the day(s) of service, at the job site, the Crew Chief is to submit the names of those present at the job site to the City Building Service Manager.  The City Project Manager is responsible for rejecting any individuals that have not been approved by the City.  Should such a rejection result in a failure by the Vendor to meet the Vendor obligations for a crew of sufficient size to complete the move, the Vendor assumes all resulting liabilities and damages in accordance with the contract and all terms and conditions.


38.2. CYBER TRAINING REQUIREMENTS


The City may require that any Vendor worker receive appropriate cyber security training.  Such workers must receive cyber security training once each year they work under the contract.


38.3. ROUTINE ELEMENTS OF A BACKGROUND/CRIMINAL REPORT


Routine background/criminal history check reports shall include identity verification (e.g. social security number verification) and a search of records from any federal, state or county court in the United States, an international records search, and records of all convictions or releases from prison within the last ten (10) years.


38.4. NON-ROUTINE ELEMENTS OF A BACKGROUND/CRIMINAL REPORT


38.4.1. The City may search for dependency actions.


38.4.2. The City may search for information on protection proceedings related to sex offender, assault, abuse, or exploitation of a minor, developmentally disabled person, or vulnerable adult, or domestic relations proceedings.


38.4.3. The City may search for additional information detail, as determined by the City, above and beyond the scope of a routine background/criminal history check as defined in Section C, General requirements.


38.4.4. If the required access for the worker is subject to NERC, the City will require all workers to undergo annual Cyber Security Training offered by Seattle City Light.  The workers will be paid for the time they spend in such training.  If this requirement applies, the City will require the Vendor to submit a list of such workers and their status of Cyber Training annually upon contract anniversary. 


38.5. SECURITY ACCESS REQUIREMENTS


38.5.1. VENDOR USE OF PREMISES


38.5.1.1. Vendor workers shall have only limited use of the premises for work, storage, access, and equipment.


38.5.1.2. Material/equipment staging areas will be limited to floors and areas designated within the Scope of Work.  Maintain clear access to site and building entrances.


38.5.1.3. Driveway use will be limited to loading and unloading only.


38.5.1.4. For furniture moves, the vendor shall be granted the use of up to two parking spaces in the Seattle Municipal Tower parking structure to be paid by the vendor.   Arrangements for the use of these two spaces must be made through the Building Management.  Other parking spaces in the structure are available at the regular rates.  Special parking arrangements may be made through IMPARK Inc., the garage operator at 628-9042.


38.5.1.5. Restrooms may have restricted access, as appropriate to the Scope of Work.


38.5.1.6. All workers who must provide services or delivery at a SCL facility must obtain prior permission from SCL and make arrangements for an SCL escort while on the facility site.


38.5.2. RELATED REQUIREMENTS AND DOCUMENTS


38.5.2.1. All Vendor employees at the job site shall wear identification that is prominent and clearly marked, which clearly identifies the individual as an employee with the building services company.


38.5.2.2. When appropriate, Vendors will be issued a Departmental Identification/Access Badge, for the designated contract period, giving them access to the facility for which they require access.  These Identification/Access Badges will be returned to the Department at the completion of the contract.


38.5.3. WORK AREA


38.5.3.1. Confine operations and storage to the designated work area.  Maintain the work area and building clean and in an orderly manner.


38.5.3.2. Safety Procedures:  Implement safety procedures as required by the Contract Documents, local codes and laws to ensure the safety of all site personnel and visitors to the site.


38.5.4. TEMPORARY CONTROLS



Vendor shall be responsible for proper supervision of personnel to prevent damage, loss or other unauthorized damage as a result of the work performed by the Contractor. 

39. Dispute Resolution

The parties shall endeavor to resolve any dispute or misunderstanding that may arise under this Contract concerning Vendor’s performance or City’s obligations between the Vendor’s representative and the City’s representative.  Either party may discontinue such discussions and may then pursue other means to resolve such disputes, or may by mutual agreement pursue other dispute alternatives such as alternate dispute resolution processes. Nothing in this dispute process shall in any way mitigate the rights, if any, of either party to terminate the Contract for cause or convenience.


The City and the Vendor agree that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, they will continue without delay to carry out all their respective responsibilities under this Contract that are not affected by the dispute.  If the subject of the dispute is the amount due and payable by the City for Services being provided by Vendor, Vendor shall continue providing Services pending resolution of the dispute provided City pays Vendor the amount the City, in good faith, believes is due and payable


40. Termination

40.1. For Cause:  The City may terminate this Contract if the Vendor is in material breach of any of the terms of this Contract, and such breach has not been corrected to the City’s reasonable satisfaction in a timely manner.


40.2. For City’s Convenience:  The City may terminate this Contract at any time, without cause and for any reason including the City’s convenience, upon written notice to the Vendor.  


40.3. Nonappropriation of Funds:  The City may terminate this Contract at any time without notice due to nonappropriation of funds, whether such funds are local, state or federal grants, and no such notice shall be required notwithstanding any notice requirements that may be agreed upon for other causes of termination.


40.4. Acts of Insolvency:  The City may terminate this Contract by written notice to Vendor if the Vendor becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffers or permits the appointment of a receiver for its business or assets, becomes subject to any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency law whether domestic or foreign, or is wound up or liquidated, voluntarily or otherwise. 


40.5. Termination for Gratuities and/or Conflict of Interest:  The City may terminate this Contract by written notice to Vendor if The City finds that a conflict of interest exists in violation of the city Ethics Code, or that any gratuity in the form of entertainment, a gift, or otherwise, was offered to or given by the Vendor or any agent therefore to any City official, officer or employee.


40.6. Notice:  The City is not required to provide advance notice of termination.  Notwithstanding, the City may issue a termination notice with an effective date later than the termination notice itself.  In such case, the Vendor shall continue to provide products and services as required by the City until the effective date provided in the termination notice. 


40.7. Actions Upon Termination:  In the event of termination not the fault of the Vendor, the following shall apply:


40.7.1. Upon termination, the Vendor shall wind down and cease its services as quickly and efficiently as reasonably possible, without performing unnecessary services or activities and by minimizing negative effects on the City from such winding down and cessation of services. 


40.7.2. Vendor shall be paid for all products and services that have been ordered and accepted prior to the effective termination date or ordered before the effective termination date and ultimately accepted by the City, together with any reimbursable expenses then due.


40.7.3. For System development projects, Vendor shall be paid for progress performed that has been accepted by the City on or prior to the effective termination date, but in no event shall such compensation exceed the maximum compensation to be paid under the Contract.  

40.7.4. Vendor agrees that such payment shall fully and adequately compensate Vendor and all subs for all profits, costs, expenses, losses, liabilities, damages, taxes, and charges of any kind whatsoever (whether foreseen or unforeseen) attributable to the termination of this Contract. 

40.7.5. Vendor shall provide to the City all City-owned data, Property and Deliverable in the possession of either the Vendor within ninety (90) business days, in the format originally used by the City prior to conversion and upload to the vendor, or in a format mutually agreed to by both the vendor and the City.  Where applicable, the Vendor shall provide the most current design documents, contract documents, writings and other product it has completed to the date of termination, along with copies of all project-related correspondence and similar items.  The City shall have the same rights to use these materials as if termination had not occurred.  
 In the event this Contract expires or is terminated for any reason, the City shall retain its rights in all Products, services and system progress that is in transit or delivered prior to the effective termination date.

40.8. Transition Support:  Vendor shall provide for a reasonable, mutually agreed period of time after the expiration or termination of this Contract, all reasonable transition assistance requested by the City, to allow for the expired or terminated portion of the services to continue without interruption or adverse effect, and to facilitate the orderly transfer of such Services to the City or its designees.  Such transition assistance will be deemed by the parties to be governed by the terms and conditions of this Contract, except for those terms or conditions that do not reasonably apply to such transition assistance.  The City shall pay Vendor for any resources utilized in performing such transition assistance at the rates in Attachment ___, Statement of Work.  

40.9. Actions for Non-Funding:


· The parties acknowledge and agree that this Contract is dependent upon the availability of City funding.  If funding to make payments in accordance with the provisions of this Contract is not available for this Contract, or is not allocated or allotted to the City for this Contract for periodic payment in the current or any future fiscal period, then the obligations of the City to make payments after the effective date of such non-allocation or non-funding will cease and terminate.

· If funding to make payments in accordance with the provisions of this Contract is delayed or is reduced from the City for this Contract, or is not allocated or allotted in full to the City for this Contract for periodic payment in the current or any future fiscal period, then the obligations of the City to make payments will be delayed or be reduced accordingly or the City shall have the right to terminate this Contract as provided in Section 42.c, Nonappropriation of Funds. 

· If such funding is reduced, the City in its sole discretion shall determine which aspects, if any, of this Contract shall proceed and which Services shall be performed, with Contractor’s Charges for such Services and Purchase Prices for associated Deliverables determined in accordance with those in the Statement of Work.  In these situations, the City will pay the Vendor for Services and Deliverables and certain of its costs in accordance with the terms of Section 42.g.  Any obligation to pay by the City will not extend beyond the end of the City’s then‑current funding period.

41. Force Majeure– Suspension and Termination


This section applies in the event that either party is unable to perform the obligations of this contract because of a Force Majeure event as defined herein, to the extent that the Contract obligations must be suspended in full.  A Force Majeure event is an event that prohibits performance and is beyond the control of the party.  Such events may include natural or man-made disasters, or an action or decree of a superior governmental body, which prevents performance.


Force Majeure under this Section shall only apply in the event that performance is rendered not possible by either party or its agents.  Should it be possible to provide partial performance that is acceptable to the City under Section #2 (Emergencies or Disasters), Section #2 below shall instead be in force.


Should either party suffer from a Force Majeure event and is unable to provide performance, such party shall give notice to the remaining party as soon as practical and shall do everything possible to resume performance. 


Upon receipt of such notice, the party shall be excused from such performance as is affected by the Force Majeure Event for the period of such Event.  If such Event affects the delivery date or warranty provisions of this Contract, such date or warranty period shall automatically be extended for a period equal to the duration of such Event.


42. Major Emergencies or Disasters:   

The City may undergo an emergency or disaster that may require the Vendor to either increase or decrease quantities from normal deliveries, or that may disrupt the Vendor’s ability to provide normal performance.  Such events may include, but are not limited to, a storm, high wind, earthquake, flood, hazardous material release, transportation mishap, loss of any utility service, fire, terrorist activity or any combination of the above.  In such events, the following shall apply.


42.1. The City shall notify the Vendor that the City is experiencing an emergency or disaster, and will request emergency and priority services from the Vendor.


42.2. Upon such notice by the City, the Vendor shall provide to the City goods and/or services in the quantities and schedule specified by the City, following the conditions named in this Section.


42.3. The City of Seattle shall be the customer of first priority for the Vendor.  The Vendor shall provide its best and priority efforts to provide the requested goods and/or services to the City of The City in as complete and timely manner as possible.  Such efforts by the Vendor are not to be diminished as a result of Vendor providing service to other customers.  


42.4. If the Vendor is unable to respond in the time and/or quantities requested by the City, the Vendor shall make delivery as soon as practical.  The Vendor shall immediately assist the City to the extent reasonable, to gain access to such goods and/or services. This may include:


42.5. Coordinating with other distributors or subsidiaries beyond those in the local region to fulfill order requests; 


42.6. Offering the City substitutions provided the Vendor obtains prior approval from the City for such substitution.


42.7. The Vendor shall charge the City the price determined in this Contract for the goods and services provided, and if no price has been determined, it shall charge the City a price that is normally charged for such goods and/or services (such as listed prices for items in stock).  However, in the event that the City’s request results in the Vendor incurring unavoidable additional costs and causes the Vendor to increase prices in order to obtain a fair rate of return, the Vendor shall charge the City a price not to exceed the cost/profit formula found in this Contract. 


43. Debarment


In accordance with SMC Ch. 20.70, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services or designee may debar a Vendor from entering into a Contract with the City or from acting as a sub on any Contract with the City for up to five years after determining that any of the following reasons exist: 

43.1. Vendor has received overall performance evaluations of deficient, inadequate, or substandard performance on three or more City Contracts.


43.2. Vendor failed to comply with City ordinances or Contract terms, including but not limited to, ordinance or Contract terms relating to small business utilization, discrimination, prevailing wage requirements, equal benefits, or apprentice utilization.  


43.3. Vendor abandoned, surrendered, or failed to complete or to perform work on or in connection with a City Contract.  


43.4. Vendor failed to comply with Contract provisions, including but not limited to quality of workmanship, timeliness of performance, and safety standards. 


43.5. Vendor submitted false or intentionally misleading documents, reports, invoices, or other statements to the City in connection with a Contract. 


43.6. Vendor colluded with another Vendor to restrain competition. 


43.7. Vendor committed fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Contract for the City or any other government entity.


43.8. Vendor failed to cooperate in a City debarment investigation. 


43.9. Vendor failed to comply with SMC 14.04, SMC Ch. 14.10, SMC Ch. 20.42, or SMC Ch. 20.45, or other local, State, or federal non-discrimination laws. 


The Director may issue an Order of Debarment following the procedures specified in SMC 20.70.050.   The rights and remedies of the City under these provisions are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract. 

44. Recycle Products Requirements


As required by Seattle Municipal Code 20.60, whenever practicable, Vendor shall use reusable products, recyclable products and recycled-content products including recycled content paper on all documents submitted to the City.  

Vendors are to duplex all materials that are prepared for the City under this Contract, whether such materials are printed or copied, except when impracticable to do so due to the nature of the product being produced.  Vendors are to use 100% post consumer recycled content, chlorine-free paper in such products that are produced for the City, whenever practicable, and to use other paper-saving and recycling measures in business they conduct with and for the City.  This directive is executed under the Mayor's Executive Order, issued February 13, 2005.

45. Section Headings, and Sub-Headings, Incorporated Documents and Order of Precedence


45.1. The headings used herein are inserted for convenience only and do not define or limit the contents.

45.2. No verbal agreement or conversation between any officer, agent, associate or employee of The City and any officer, agency, employee or associate of the Vendor prior to the execution of this Contract shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in this Contract.

45.3. The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Contract.  Where there is conflict or gap among these documents, the controlling document will be resolved in the following order of precedence (first listed being the precedent):


45.3.1. Applicable federal, state and local  statutes, laws and regulations;


45.3.2. This Contract


45.3.3. All Attachments to this Contract including Statement of Work, Service Level Agreement, Confidentiality Agreement, and pricing

45.3.4. Work Orders

45.3.5. Licensing and Maintenance Agreements, if applicable

45.3.6. RFP issued by the City


45.3.7. Vendor Proposal Response


45.3.8. Work Orders used, if any; and


45.3.9. Vendor or manufacturer publications or written materials Vendor made available to City and used to effect the sale.


46. Entire Agreement


This Contract sets forth the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  No changes to provisions, price, quality, or Statement of Work of this Contract will be effective without the written consent of both parties.


47. Authority for Modifications and Amendments

The Parties hereto reserve the right to make amendments or modifications to this Contract by written agreement, signed by an authorized representative of each party. No modification, amendment, alteration, or waiver of any section or condition of this Contract shall be effective or binding unless it is in writing and signed by the City RFP Coordinator and Vendor Contracting Officer.  Only the City RFP Coordinator shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, modify, add, or waive any section or condition of this Contract on behalf of the City.


48. Severability

If any term or provision of this Contract is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Contract shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

49. Miscellaneous Provisions 

49.1. Binding Contract:  This Contract shall not be binding until signed by both parties.  The provisions, covenants and conditions in this Contract shall bind the parties, their legal heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns.

49.2. Applicable Law/Venue:  This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  The venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior Court for King County.

49.3. Modifications:  Only the City’s Purchasing Buyer shall have the authority to alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this Contract on behalf of the City.  Furthermore, any alteration, amendment, modification, or waiver of any clause or condition of this Contract is not effective or binding until made in writing and signed by the purchasing agent(s) authorized by the City Project Director or authorized delegate in writing as aforesaid and Contractor, unless otherwise provided herein

49.4. Remedies Cumulative:  Rights under this Contract are cumulative and nonexclusive of any other remedy at law or in equity.  

49.5. Waiver:  No term or condition or breach thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written consent of the party against whom the waiver is claimed.  Any waiver of the breach of any term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term or condition.  Neither acceptance by The City of Vendor performance nor payment to Vendor for any portion of Work shall constitute a waiver by The City of the breach or default of any term or condition unless expressly agreed to by The City in writing.

49.6. Negotiated Contract:  The parties acknowledge that this is a negotiated Contract, that they have had the opportunity to have this Contract reviewed by their respective legal counsel, and that the terms and conditions of this Contract are not to be construed against any party on the basis of such party's draftsmanship thereof.

49.7. Attorneys’ Fees:  Subject to the indemnification provisions set forth in this Contract, if any action or suit is brought with respect to a matter or matters covered by this Contract, each party shall be responsible for all its own costs and expenses incident to such proceedings, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

49.8. Authority:  Each party represents that it has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract, and the person signing this Contract on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract.  Each party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and shall be bound by it.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and covenants contained herein, or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties have executed this Contract by having their authorized representatives affix their signatures below.


		 (Vendor)


By

		

		City of Seattle

By



		

		Signature

Date




		

		

		Signature
Date






		

		(Printed Name)




		

		

		NANCY LOCKE, City Purchasing Director





		

		Title
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TECHNOLOGY CONTRACT

Note:  This contract indicates terms and conditions required by The City. All submitting companies agree to the terms and conditions of this contract.  Vendors may submit requests for exceptions at the time of proposal submittal; and the City may consider such requests but is not obligated to accept such requests.  The City may also make changes to best reflect the project and interests of the City prior to submittal of the final Contract for signature.

City of Seattle


CONTRACT FOR MULTI-CITY BUSINES LICENSE AND TAX PORTAL SOLUTION


CONTRACT #3102

This Contract is made and entered into by and between City of Seattle (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation; and ________________ (Address: --), a corporation of the State of _______, and authorized to do business in the State of Washington.


Vendor Business:


Name of Representative: 





Vendor Address:




Vendor Phone:




Vendor Fax:




Vendor e-mail:




WHEREAS, the purpose of this contract is to procure a Multi City Business License and Tax Portal Solution; and


WHEREAS, Vendor was selected  as a result of a Request for Proposal process initiated by the City of Seattle and the Department of Finance and Administrative Services in January 2013​​ as  required by Seattle Municipal Code since costs are anticipated to exceed $44,000 in value; and


WHEREAS, the City of Seattle will join with other Washington cities in a municipal non-profit corporation for the development, Implementation, and oversight of an Multi-City Business License and Tax Portal; and 


WHEREAS, funds for this purpose are authorized through the City of Seattle annual budget. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performance of the Statement of Work contained herein, as attached and made a part hereof, the City and Vendor mutually agree as follows:

1. Term of Contract


The term of this contract shall begin on the date of the last party signature (“Effective Date”). This contract shall be for five (5) years with five (5) one (1)-year extensions allowed at the option of the City.  Such extensions shall be automatic, and shall go into effect without written confirmation, unless the City provides advance notice of the intention to not renew.  The vendor may also provide a notice to not extend, but must provide such notice at least 180 days prior to the otherwise automatic renewal date.


2. Survivorship


All purchase transactions and deliverables executed pursuant to the authority of this Contract shall be bound by all of the terms, conditions, prices and price discounts set forth herein, notwithstanding the expiration of the initial term of this Contract or any extensions thereof.  Further, the terms, conditions and warranties contained in this Contract that by their sense and context are intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Contract.  In addition, the terms of the sections titled Overpayments to Vendor, Warranties, Publicity, Section Headings, Incorporated Documents and Order of Precedence, Publicity, Review of Vendor Records, Patent and Copyright Indemnification, Disputes and Limitations of Liability, shall survive the termination of this Contract.

3. Statement of Work

Vendor shall provide the products services and tasks as described in the Contract attachments.  The Statement of Work may also be termed “work” herein.  

4. Expansion Clause


This contract may be expanded as mutually agreed, if such expansion is approved in writing by the Buyer from the City Purchasing Office of the Department of Finance and Administrative Services, City of Seattle.  No other City employee is authorized to make such written notices.  The Buyer will ensure the expansion meets the following criteria collectively:  (a)  it could not be separately bid, (b) the change is for a reasonable purpose, (c) the change was not reasonably known to either the City or vendors at time of bid or else was mentioned as a possibility in the bid (such as a change in environmental regulation or other law); (d) the change is not significant enough to be reasonably regarded as an independent body of work; (e) the change could not have attracted a different field of competition, and (f) the change does not vary the essential identity or main purpose of the contract.  The Buyer shall make this determination, and may make exceptions for immaterial changes, emergency or sole source conditions, or for other situations as required in the opinion of the Buyer.  Certain Work Orders or changes are not considered an expansion of scope, including an increase in quantities ordered, the exercise of options and alternates in the bid, change in design and specifications that does not expand the work beyond the limits provided for above, or ordering of work originally identified within the originating solicitation. If such changes are approved, changes are conducted as a written order issued by the City Purchasing Buyer in writing to the Vendor.


5. Work Order Process


The Vendor shall furnish all systems pursuant to work orders issued under this Contract. Each work order shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Contract, and incorporated into this Contract by this reference. The Vendor shall furnish all the goods and services (“deliverables”) specified in the Work Order in an aggregate, single, complete transaction and not as separate items.  For each work order under this Contract, Vendor shall commence work upon issuance of a notice to proceed by the City. Work orders under this Contract may be generated by the City under the following conditions:

(1) The Work Order is within the scope of the original solicitation and contract or is within the allowed conditions for expansions under Section 5 (Expansion Clause) above;


(2) A post-warranty annual maintenance agreement is accepted by the City;


(3) The City issues a request to upgrade equipment, software, or to change quantities of any deliverable;


(4) The City orders additional custom features or interfaces for the Systems prior to or after the acceptance period.

For any subsequent work order(s) requested by either party, the Vendor shall submit a detailed proposal for the change. The Vendor shall analyze, record, estimate and submit to the City, for its approval, the proposed scope for the changed or new work, a work schedule, and a rate or price adjustment for completion of the work to be changed or added.  Once this proposal is received and approved by the City, a new work order will be issued for the changed or additional work. Upon the City’s written approval and notice to proceed, the Vendor shall implement the change or additional work and invoice for the changed or additional work consistent with the City’s approval notice and the terms and conditions of this Contract. 


The City may, at its option, add, delete or modify any part of any work order by giving Vendor notice of such change within the time period specified in the applicable work order.  Within seven (7) days after the date of such notice, the Vendor shall deliver to the City an amended work order reflecting the change in description, schedule and/or dollar amount due using the unit prices as proposed for the specific work order in Vendor’s Proposal.

The Vendor shall not proceed unless authorized by a mutually agreed upon amendment.  Such extra work shall be in compliance with Section 4 (Expansion Clause) and shall be authorized in writing only by the City Purchasing Buyer, Department of Finance and Administrative Services.  Any costs incurred due to the performance of extra work will not be reimbursed until or unless an amendment is agreed upon.

The City does not guarantee utilization of goods and services provided for in this Contract for which the City has not issued a work order(s).  The City may itself provide these goods or services or may award contracts to other Vendors for similar goods and services.  In such instances, the Vendor shall not be responsible for the operation, performance or maintenance for equipment so obtained.

6. Documentation

Unless specified otherwise in Contract attachments, Vendor will provide two (2) complete sets of documentation for each Software/Hardware order or System delivered, including technical and maintenance information, and, where applicable, installation information.  Vendor shall also provide two (2) complete sets of documentation for each updated version of Software that vendor provides.  Vendor shall provide the documentation on or before the date Vendor delivers its respective Software.  There shall be no additional charge for this documentation or the updates, in whatever form provided.  Vendor’s Software documentation shall be comprehensive, well structured, and indexed for each reference.  If Vendor maintains its technical, maintenance and installation documentation on a web site, Vendor may fulfill the obligations set forth in this section by providing Purchaser access to its web-based documentation information.  


The City reserves the right to withhold payment for a deliverable, modification or enhancement until it receives all documentation associated with the same.  

7. Payment Procedures

Vendor shall only invoice upon the City’s approval of the deliverable and in a manner consistent with the payment schedule attached, if any.  Once the City has received and approved the invoice, the City will provide payment within thirty (30) days.  The aggregate amount represents the full and final amount to be paid by the City for all expenses incurred and incidentals necessary to complete the work. 


The City shall not be obligated to pay any other compensation, fees, charges, prices or costs, nor shall Vendor charge any additional compensation for completing the work order of the Statement of Work. All costs invoiced to the City, shall be associated with an active and open work order.

Invoices for hardware and software installed in City facilities and other work performed under this Contract shall be submitted, in writing to the City’s Project Manager.  Invoices shall include such information as prescribed in the Specifications or Statement of Work, and is necessary for the City to determine the exact nature of all expenditures and shall reference this Contract.  Additional payment terms or invoice instructions may be mutually agreed upon by the City and the Vendor. 


Payment does not constitute whole or partial acceptance; City acceptance of the System shall only occur by formal written notice to that effect.

7.1. Advance Payment Prohibited


The City does not accept requests for early payment, down payment or partial payment, unless the Bid or Proposal Submittal specifically allows such pre-payment proposals or alternates within the bid process.  Maintenance subscriptions may be paid up to one year in advance provided that should the City terminate early, the amount paid shall be reimbursed to the City on a prorated basis; all other expenses are payable net 30 days after receipt and acceptance of satisfactory compliance.

7.2. Travel and Other Direct Charges

If the specifications and scope of work for this purchase have specifically identified travel and/or other direct costs that the City intends to reimburse, then the following requirements shall apply.  All such expenses must be pre-approved in writing by the Project Manager. If the specifications and scope of work do not clearly identify such costs for compensation, than no compensation will be given.  


· City will reimburse the Contractor at actual cost for expenditures that are pre-approved by the City in writing and are necessary and directly applicable to the work required by this Contract provided that similar direct project costs related to the contracts of other clients are consistently accounted for in a like manner.  Such direct project costs may not be charged as part of overhead expenses or include a markup.  Other direct charges may include, but are not limited to the following types of items: travel, printing, cell phone, supplies, materials, computer charges, and fees of subconsultants or subcontractors.


· The billing for third party direct expenses specifically identifiable with this project shall be an itemized listing of the charges supported by copies of the original bills, invoices, expense accounts, subconsultant/subcontractor paid invoices, and other supporting documents used by the Contractor to generate invoice(s) to the City.  The original supporting documents shall be available to the City for inspection upon request.  All charges must be necessary for the services provided under this Contract.


· The City will reimburse the actual cost for travel expenses incurred as evidenced by copies of receipts (excluding meals) supporting such travel expenses, and in accordance with the City of Seattle Travel Policy, details of which can be provided upon request.  


· Airfare: Airfare will be reimbursed at the actual cost of the airline ticket.  The City will reimburse for Economy or Coach Fare only.  Receipts detailing each airfare are required.


· Meals:  Meals will be reimbursed at the Federal Per Diem daily meal rate (excluding the “Incidental” portion of the published Federal M&I Rate) for the city in which the work is performed.  Receipts are not required as documentation.  The invoice shall state “the meals are being billed at the Federal Per Diem daily meal rate”, and shall detail how many of each meal is being billed (e.g. the number of breakfasts, lunches, and dinners).  The City will not reimburse for alcohol at any time.


· Lodging:  Lodging will be reimbursed at actual cost incurred up to a maximum of the published Runzheimer Cost Index for the city in which the work is performed (the current maximum allowed reimbursement amount can be provided upon request).  Receipts detailing each day / night lodging are required.  The City will not reimburse for ancillary expenses charged to the room (e.g. movies, laundry, mini bar, refreshment center, sundry items, etc.)

As an alternative, lodging may be billed at the published Federal Per Diem daily lodging rate for the city in which the work is performed.  If this method is used, receipts are not required for documentation.  If this method is used, the invoice shall state that "the lodging is being billed at the Federal Per Diem daily lodging rate."

· Vehicle mileage:  Vehicle mileage will be reimbursed at the Federal Internal Revenue Service Standard Business Mileage Rate in affect at the time the mileage expense is incurred (currently that rate is 56.5 cents per mile.)  Please note: payment for mileage for long distances traveled will not be more than an equivalent trip round-trip airfare of a common carrier for a coach or economy class ticket.

· Rental Car: Rental car expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost of the rental.  Rental car receipts are required for all rental car expenses.  The City will reimburse for a standard car of a mid-size class or less.  The City will not reimburse for ancillary expenses charged to the car rental (e.g. GPS unit).

· Miscellaneous Travel (e.g. parking, rental car gas, taxi, shuttle, toll fees, ferry fees, etc.):  Miscellaneous travel expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Receipts are required for each expense of $10.00 or more.


· Miscellaneous other business expenses (e.g. printing, photo development, binding): Other miscellaneous business expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Receipts are required for all miscellaneous expenses that are billed.


· Subcontractor: Subcontractor expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred.  Copies of all subcontractor invoices that are rebilled to the City are required.

7.3. Disputed Work

Notwithstanding all above, if the City believes in good faith that some portion of Work has not been completed satisfactorily, the City may require Vendor to correct such work prior to The City payment.  In such event, the City will provide to Vendor an explanation of the concern and the remedy that the City expects.  The City may withhold from any payment that is otherwise due, an amount that the City in good faith finds to be under dispute, or if the Vendor does not provide a sufficient remedy, The City may retain the amount equal to the cost to The City for otherwise correcting or remedying the work not properly completed.


8. Taxes, Fees and Licenses


a. Taxes:  Where required by state statute, ordinance or regulation, Vendor shall pay for and maintain in current status all taxes that are necessary for contract performance.  Unless otherwise indicated, The City agrees to pay State of Washington sales or use taxes on all applicable consumer services and materials purchased.  No charge by the Vendor shall be made for federal excise taxes and The City agrees to furnish Vendor with an exemption certificate where appropriate.  


b. Fees and Licenses:  Vendor shall pay for and maintain in a current status, any license fees, assessments, permit charges, etc., which are necessary for contract performance.  It is the Vendor’s sole responsibility to monitor and determine any changes or the enactment of any subsequent requirements for said fees, assessments, or charges and to immediately comply with said changes during the entire term of this Contract. Vendor must pay all custom duties, brokerage or import fees where applicable as part of the contract price.  Vendor shall take all necessary actions to ensure that materials or equipment purchased are expedited through customs.  


c. Vendor is to calculate and enter the appropriate Washington State and local sales tax on the invoice.  Tax is to be computed on new items after deduction of any trade-in, in accordance with WAC 458-20-247. 


9. Timely Completion


a.  Time is of the Essence


The City has an immediate need to implement the System and/or Software and equipment for the management and operation of the City.  Therefore, time is of the essence in all matters relating to this Contract

10. License for Use 


As part of the price of the System, the Vendor grants to the City, and the City accepts from the Vendor, for so long as the City continues to use the System, a non-exclusive, fully paid, royalty free, perpetual license to unlimited use of the Software and related documentation for use on the System acquired by the City under this Contract, and to relicense to other Washington Cities.  

11. Software Upgrades and Enhancements and Optional Modules

Vendor shall:


a. Supply at no additional cost updated versions of the Software to operate on upgraded versions of operating systems, upgraded versions of firmware, or upgraded versions of hardware;


b. Supply at no additional cost updated versions of the Software that encompass improvements, extensions, maintenance updates, error corrections, or other changes that are logical improvements or extensions of the original Software supplied to City; and

c. Supply at no additional cost interface modules that are developed by Vendor for interfacing the Software to other Software products.

d. Supply additional optional modules that may be compatible with the system software per attached lis.

12. Warranties 


12.1 Warranty of the System

Commencing on the date that the City issues its Final Acceptance Certificate, and extending for a period of one (1) year, Vendor warrants that the Software furnished hereunder shall be free from programming errors and that the Software and hardware shall be free from defects in workmanship and materials and shall operate in conformity with the performance capabilities, Statement of Work, functions and other descriptions and standards applicable thereto and as set forth in this Contract including but not limited to the City’s Request for Proposals; that the services shall be performed in a timely and professional manner by qualified professional personnel; and that the services, Software and Hardware shall conform to the standards generally observed in the industry for similar services, Software and hardware. If Vendor is not the original Software or hardware manufacturer, Vendor shall obtain in writing the manufacturer’s consent to pass through all Software and hardware warranties for the City’s benefit.  During this warranty period, Vendor shall replace or repair any defect appearing in the Software or hardware, or deficiency in service provided at no additional cost to the City.


12.2 Warranty Against Planned Obsolescence 


The Vendor warrants that the products proposed to and acquired by the City under this Contract are new and of current manufacture, and that it has no current plans for announcing a replacement line that would be marketed by Vendor as a replacement for any of the products provided to the City under this Contract and would result in reduced support for the product line within which the System furnished to the City is contained.  The Vendor further warrants that, in the event that a major change in hardware, software, or operating system occurs that radically alters the design architecture of the System and makes the current design architecture obsolete within three (3) years after full execution of this Contract, and if the City continues its annual maintenance Contract with the Vendor, the Vendor shall provide the City with a replacement hardware, software, or operating system(s) that continues the full functionality of the systems, at no extra cost to the City.  


12.3 No Surreptitious Code Warranty

The Vendor warrants to the City that no copy of the licensed Software provided to the City contains or will contain any Self-help Code or any Unauthorized Code as defined below. This warranty is referred to in this Contract as the “No Surreptitious Code Warranty.”  


As used in this Contract, “Self-help Code” means any back door, time bomb, drop dead device, or other Software routine designed to disable a computer program automatically with the passage of time or under the positive control of a person other than the licensee of the Software.  The term “Self-help Code” does not include Software routines in a computer program, if any, designed to permit an owner of the computer program (or other person acting by authority of the owner) to obtain access to a licensee’s computer system(s) (e.g. remote access via modem) for purposes of maintenance or technical support.


As used in this Contract, “Unauthorized Code” means any “virus,” “Trojan horse,” “worm” or other Software routines or Equipment components designed to permit unauthorized access to disable, erase, or otherwise harm Software, Equipment, or data or to perform any other actions.  The term Unauthorized Code does not include Self-help Code.


The Vendor shall defend City against any claim, and indemnify the City against any loss or expense arising out of any breach of the No Surreptitious Code Warranty.


12.4 Title Warranty and Warranty against Infringement 


The Vendor warrants and represents that the hardware and Software provided under this Contract is the sole and exclusive property of the Vendor or that the Vendor is authorized to provide full use of the hardware and Software to the City as provided herein. The Vendor warrants that it has full power and authority to grant the rights granted by this Contract to the City without the consent of any other person or entity.  


In the event of any claim by a third party against the City for software used in the United States asserting a patent, copyright, trade secret, or proprietary right violation involving the System acquired by the City hereunder or any portion thereof, Vendor shall defend, at its expense, and shall indemnify the City against any loss, cost, expense, or liability arising out of such claim, whether or not such claim is successful; provided, however, that Vendor is notified by the City in writing within a reasonable time after the City first receives written notice of any such claim, action, or allegation of infringement. In the event a final injunction or order is obtained against the City’s full use of either the System or any portion thereof as a result of any such claim, suit or proceeding, and if no further appeal of such ruling is practicable, Vendor shall, as mutually agreed upon and at Vendor’s expense:


a. procure for the City the right to continue full use of the System; or


b. replace  or modify the same so that it becomes non‑infringing (which modification or replacement shall not affect the obligation to ensure the System conforms with applicable Statement of Work); or


c. if the product was purchased and the actions described in item (1) or (2) of Section 11.4, are not practicable, re-purchase the product from the City at a price mutually agreed upon, which shall relate to the value and utility of the product to the City; or


d. if  the System was leased, licensed, purchased or rented, and the actions described in item (1), (2), or (3) of Section 11.4, are not practicable, remove such System from the City’s site(s) and pay the City promptly after notification for all direct and consequential damages suffered by the City as a result of the loss of the infringing product and any other continued utility of which to the City is adversely affected by the removal of the infringing product, and hold the City harmless from any further liability therefore under any applicable Order, Settlement, or other Contract. 

In no event shall the City be liable to Vendor for any lease, rental, or maintenance payments after the date, if any, that the City is no longer legally permitted to use the System because of such actual or claimed infringement. In the event removal or replacement of the System is required pursuant to this paragraph, Vendor shall use reasonable care in the removal or modification thereof and shall, at its own expense, restore the City’s premises as nearly to their condition immediately prior to the installation of the System as is reasonably possible.


No settlement that prevents the City from continuing to use the Software, other products or Software documentation as provided in this Contract shall be made without the City’s prior written consent.  In all events, the City shall have the right to participate at its own expense in the defense of any such suit or proceeding through counsel of its own choosing.


The indemnification obligation set forth in this section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract.


12.5 No Liens


The Vendor warrants that the Software and Equipment is the sole and exclusive property of the Vendor and that the Vendor is authorized to provide full use of the Software to the City as provided herein and that such Software is not subject to any lien, claim or encumbrance inconsistent with any of the City’s rights under this Contract and that the City is entitled to and shall be able to enjoy quiet possession and use of the Software and Equipment without interruption by Vendor or any other person making a claim under or through the Vendor or by right of paramount title.


12.6 Maintenance Services Warranty


The Vendor warrants that, in performing the services under the Maintenance Agreement appended as Appendix [       ], a future Appendix.  The Vendor shall strictly comply with the descriptions and representations as to the services, including performance capabilities, accuracy, completeness, characteristics, Statement of Work, configurations, standards, function and requirements, which appear in this Contract and in the Vendor’s response to the City’s Request for Proposal. Its products shall be uniform in appearance and clean and presentable in accordance with generally applicable standards in the industry. Errors or omissions committed by the Vendor in the course of providing Services shall be remedied by the Vendor at its own expense.


12.7 Equipment Warranty

The Vendor warrants and represents that the Equipment provided to meet the requirements of the Statement of Work shall be free from all defects, shall be in good operating order, and shall operate in conformity with the descriptions and standards as set forth in the Vendor’s Proposal and the City’s RFP for a period of one (1) year from and after the Acceptance Date.  During the warranty period, Vendor shall promptly, without additional charge, repair or replace the equipment or any part thereof that fails to function according the Vendor’s Statement of Work or the Statement of Work of the manufacturer thereof.


12.8 Merchantability and Fitness Warranty


Vendor represents and warrants that the Software, other products and Software Documentation will be merchantable and will be fit for the particular purposes established in the City’s RFP and the Vendor’s response to the City’s RFP.


12.9 Warrant of Compliance with Applicable Law


The Vendor warrants that the System, and the manufacture and production thereof, are in compliance with any and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.


12.10  Date Warranty



The Vendor warrants that all Software provided under this contract:  (a) does not have a life expectancy limited by date or time format; (b) will correctly record, store, process, present calendar dates; (c) will lose no functionality, data integrity, or performance with respect to any date; and (d) will be interoperable with other software used by City that may deliver date records from the Software, or interact with date records of the Software (“Date Warrant”).  In the event a Date Warranty problem is reported to Vendor by City and remains unresolved after three calendar days, at City’s discretion, the Vendor shall send, at Vendor’s sole expense, at least one qualified and knowledgeable representative to City’s premises.  This representative will continue to address and work to remedy the failure, malfunction, defect, or nonconformity on City’s premises.  This Date Warranty shall last perpetually.  In the event of a breach of any of these representations and warranties, Vendor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from and against any and all harm, injury, damages, costs, and expenses incurred by Purchaser arising our of said Breach.


12.11  Physical Media Warranty


Vendor warrants to City that each licensed copy of Software provided by Vendor is and will be free from physical defects in the media that tangibly embodies the copy (the “Physical Media Warranty.”).  The Physical Media Warranty does not apply to defects discovered more than thirty (30) calendar day after the date of Acceptance of the Software copy by the City.  Vendor shall replace, at Vendor’s expense, including shipping and handling costs, any Software copy provided by Vendor that does not comply with this Warranty.



12.12  Survival of Warranties and Representations

The representations and warranties of the Vendor made pursuant to this Contract shall survive the delivery of the System, the payment of the purchase price, and the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract.

13. Reauthorization Code Required


If a reauthorization code must be keyed in by Vendor for any Software supplied under this Contract to remain functional upon movement to another computer system, Vendor shall provide the reauthorization code to City within one (1) Business Day after receipt of Purchaser’s notice of its machine upgrade or movement.


OR


If a reauthorization code must be keyed in by Vendor for Software supplied under this Contract to remain functional upon movement to another computer system, Vendor shall provide the reauthorization code to City:  (a) in connection with a machine upgrade or other movement for which City pays Vendor a machine upgrade fee as set forth in pricing agreement, immediately upon receipt of such fee; or (b) if City need not pay a fee or other charge in connection with the machine upgrade or other movement, within one (1) Business Day after receipt of City’s notice of its machine upgrade or movement.


OR (if City is acquiring a site license, unlimited CPU license, or other similar license, use the following:


Vendor’s Software shall not require a reauthorization code in order for the Software supplied through this Contract to remain functional upon City’s movement of the Software to another computer system.



14. Escrowing of Source Language of Licensed Software

14.1. Source Code Escrow Package Definition.  The term “Source Code Escrow Package” shall mean: 

a. A complete copy in machine-readable form of the source code and executable code of the licensed Software;


b. A complete copy of any existing design documentation and user documentation and/or


c. Complete instructions for r compiling and linking every part of the source code into executable code for purposes of enabling verification of the completeness of the source code as provided below.  Such instructions shall include precise identification of all compilers, library packages, and linkers used to generate executable code.


Delivery of Source Code Into Escrow.  Vendor shall deliver a Source Code Escrow Package to Escrow Agent, provided that Vendor, City and Escrow Agent shall first enter into a supplementary escrow agreement as attached.  Vendor and City shall use best efforts to enter into such an Escrow Agreement as soon as possible after the Effective Date of this Contract, but not later than 30 days after the Effective Date of this Contract.


14.2. Delivery of New Source Code into Escrow.  If during the term of this Contract, term of license, or term of maintenance and support, Vendor provides City with a maintenance release or upgrade version of the licensed Software, Vendor shall within then (10) Business Days deposit with Escrow Agent a Source Code Escrow Package for the maintenance release or upgrade version and give city notice of such delivery.


14.3. Verification of Source Code Escrow Package.  At its option and expense, City may request that the completeness and accuracy of any Source Code Escrow Package be verified.  


a. Such verification may be requested once per Source Code Escrow Package.  


b. Such verification will be conducted by Escrow Agent, or upon at least ten (10) Business Days’ prior notice to the Vendor, by another party (“verifier”) acceptable to Vendor, after full disclosure to Vendor of information reasonably requested by Vendor about Verifier. 


c. Prior to conducting the verification, Verifier shall first execute a confidentiality agreement prepared by Vendor that precludes Verifier from disclosing any information to City about the Source Code Escrow Package other than whether the Source Code Escrow Package was found to be complete and accurate.


d. Unless otherwise agreed at the time y Vendor and City, verification will be performed on-site at Vendor’s premises, utilizing Vendor’s equipment and software, at a time reasonably acceptable to Vendor.  Vendor shall make technical and support personnel available as reasonably necessary for the verification. At its discretion, Vendor may designate a representative to accompany the Source Code Escrow Package at all times, and to be present at the verification.  Verifier will be City’s sole representative at the verification.


e. Verifier is solely responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the verification.  Neither the Escrow Agent, if different from the Verifier, nor Vendor shall have any responsibility or liability to City for any incompleteness or inaccuracy of any verification.


14.4. Escrow Fees.  All fess and expenses charged by Escrow Agent will be borne by Vendor.


14.5. Release Events for Source Code Escrow Packages.  The Source Code Escrow Package may be released from escrow to City, temporarily or permanently, solely upon the occurrence of one or more of the following “Escrow Release Events:”


a. Vendor becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy, suffers or permits the appointment of a receiver for business or assets, or becomes subject to any proceeding under any bankruptcy or solvency law, whether domestic or foreign;


b. Vendor has wound up or liquidated its business voluntarily or otherwise and City has compelling reasons to believe that such events will cause Vendor to fail to meet its warranties and maintenance obligations in the foreseeable future; or


c. Vendor has wound up or liquidated its business voluntarily or otherwise and City has compelling reasons to believe that such events will cause Vendor to fail to meet its warranties and maintenance obligations in the foreseeable future; or


d. Vendor has voluntarily or otherwise discontinued support of the Software or fails to support the Software in accordance with its warranties and maintenance obligations.


14.6. Release Event Procedures.  If City desires to obtain the Source Code Escrow Package   from Escrow Agent:


a. City shall comply with the procedures set forth in the Escrow Agreement to document the occurrence of the Release Event;


b. City shall maintain all materials and information comprising the Source Code Escrow Package in confidence in accordance with the Contract section titled Vendor’s Proprietary Information;


c. If release is temporary, City shall promptly return all released materials to Vendor when the circumstances leading to the release are no longer in effect; and


d. City shall promptly, fully, and completely respond to any and all requests for information from Vendor concerning City’s use or contemplated use of the Source Code Escrow Package.


15. Title to Equipment


Upon successful completion of Acceptance Testing and receipt of City’s letter of Acceptance (or upon delivery, if there is no Acceptance Testing), Vendor shall convey to City good title to the Equipment free and clear of all liens, pledges, mortgages, encumbrances, or other security interests.


Transfer of title to the Equipment shall include an irrevocable, fully paid-up, perpetual license to use the internal code (embedded software) in the Equipment.   If City subsequently transfers title to the Equipment to another entity, City shall have the right to transfer the license to use the internal code with the transfer of Equipment title.  A subsequent transfer of this software license shall be at no additional cost or charge to either City or City’s transfer.

16. Ownership of Deliverables 

Except for the licensed System Software and its related documentation, all data and work products produced under this Contract shall be considered work made for hire under the U.S. Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. 101 et seq, and shall be owned by the City.  

17. Risk of Loss, Freight, Overages or Underages

Regardless of FOB point, Vendor agrees to bear all risks of loss, injury, or destruction of goods and materials ordered herein which occur prior to delivery and acceptance.  Such loss, injury, or destruction shall not release Vendor from any obligations under.  Prices include freight prepaid and allowed.  Vendor assumes the risk of every increase, and receives the benefit of every decrease, in delivery rates and charges.  Shipments shall match the Work Order; any unauthorized advance or excess shipment is returnable at Vendor’s expense.

18. Protection of Persons and Property


18.1. Person

The Vendor and the City shall each take reasonable precautions for the safety of employees of the other, and shall each comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations to prevent or avoid any accident or injury to a person on, about or adjacent to any premises where work under this Contract is being performed.

18.2. Property


The Vendor shall take reasonable steps to protect the City’s property from injury or loss arising in connection with the Vendor’s performance or failure of performance under this Contract.

18.3. No Smoking

The Vendor shall not allow any employee of the Vendor or any sub or agent thereof to smoke inside any City facility.


18.4. OSHA/WISHA

The Vendor certifies that products are designed and manufactured to meet the current federal and state safety and health regulations, including Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA), the Washington Industrial Safety and Health act of 1973 (WISHA).  Vendor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from all damages assessed against the City as a result of the failure of the products furnished under this Contract to so comply.

18.5. Workers Right to Know


“Right to Know” legislation required the Department of Labor and Industries to establish a program to make employers and employees more aware of the hazardous substances in their work environment.  WAC 296-62-054 requires among other things that all manufacturers/distributors of hazardous substances, including any of the items listed on this ITB, RFP or contract bid and subsequent award, must include with each delivery completed Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for each hazardous material.  Additionally, each container of hazardous material must be appropriately labeled with:  the identity of the hazardous material, appropriate hazardous warnings, and the Name and Address of the chemical manufacturer, improper, or other responsible party.


Labor and Industries may levy appropriate fines against employers for noncompliance and agencies may withhold payment pending receipt of a legible copy of the MSDS.  OSHA Form 20 is not acceptable in lieu of this requirement unless it is modified to include appropriate information relative to “carcinogenic ingredients: and “routes of entry” of the product(s) in question.


19. Notices

Official Contract notices shall be delivered to the following addresses (or such other address (es) as either party may designate in writing):

19.1 Contract Notices

 If to the City


delivered by the U.S. Postal Service, it must be addressed to:
 
Carmalinda Vargas
 
City of Seattle Purchasing and Contracting Services 



PO Box 94687

Seattle, WA  98124-4687


If delivered by any other company, it must be addressed to:
 

Carmalinda Vargas
 

City of Seattle Purchasing and Contracting Services 




Seattle Municipal Tower




700 5th Ave., #4112


Seattle, WA  98104-5042




Phone: 206-615-1123




Fax:  206-233-5155




E-Mail: Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov




If to the Vendor:


delivered by the U.S. Postal Service or any other company, it must be addressed 


To:


Address:



Phone:


19.2 Project work, invoices and communications shall be delivered to the City Project Manager: 


City of Seattle  


Attention:




If to the Vendor:


by the U.S. Postal Service or any other company, it must be addressed 


To:



Address:




Phone:


21 Representations 


Vendor represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and experience necessary to provide Work and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities.


22 Inspection


Work shall be subject, at all times, to inspection by and with approval of the City, but the making (or failure or delay in making) such inspection or approval shall not relieve Vendor of responsibility for performance of the Work in accordance with this Contract, notwithstanding the City’s knowledge of defective or noncomplying performance, its substantiality or the ease of its discovery.  Vendor shall provide sufficient, safe, and proper facilities and equipment for such inspection and free access to such facilities.

23 Affirmative Efforts for Utilization of Women and Minority Subcontracting, Non-Discrimination 


· Employment Actions:  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, creed, age, color, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, political ideology, ancestry, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification.  Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their creed, religion, race, age, color, sex, national origin, marital status, political ideology, ancestry, sexual orientation, gender identity, or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to employment, upgrading, promotion, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay, or other forms of compensation and selection for training.  


· In accordance with Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 20.42, Contractor shall actively solicit the employment and subcontracting of women and minority group members when there are commercially useful purposes for fulfilling the scope of work.  


· In the event Subcontracting is considered appropriate and feasible to contract performance, the Contractor shall develop a Subcontracting Plan, which also may be referred to as an Inclusion Plan.  The Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan shall specify the Contractor’s affirmative efforts and an agreement to the City for subcontracting to women and minority businesses, and/or diverse employment.  The Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan, as submitted and/or as agreed upon with the City thereafter, shall be incorporated as a material part of the Contract. In preparing the Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan, Contractors shall actively solicit qualified, available and capable women and minority-owned businesses to perform the subcontracting work for the contract.  The Contractor shall submit the Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan to the City with the solicitation and/or prior to contract execution. At the request of the City, Contractor shall promptly furnish evidence of the Contractor’s compliance with these requirements, which may include a list of all subcontractors and/or WMBE subcontractors, and may include a request for copies of the executed agreements between the Contractor and subcontractors, invoices and/or performance reports.


· If upon investigation, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services finds probable cause to believe that the Contractor has failed to comply with the requirements of this Section, the Contractor shall be notified in writing.  The Director of Finance and Administrative Services shall give Contractor an opportunity to be heard with ten calendar days’ notice.  If, after the Contractor’s opportunity to be heard, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services still finds probable cause, s/he may suspend the Contract and/or withhold any funds due or to become due to the Contractor, pending compliance by the Contractor with the requirements of this Section.


· Any violation of the mandatory requirements of this Section, or a violation of Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 14.04 (Fair Employment Practices), Chapter 14.10 (Fair Contracting Practices), Chapter 20.45 (City Contracts – Non-Discrimination in Benefits), or other local, state, or federal non-discrimination laws, shall be a material of contract for which the Contractor may be subject to damages and sanctions provided for by the Vendor Contract and by applicable law.   In the event the Contractor is in violation of this Section shall be subject to debarment from City contracting activities in accordance with Seattle Municipal Code Section 20.70 (Debarment).


24. Assignment and Subcontracting


Vendor shall not assign or subcontract any of its obligations under this Contract without mutual written consent, which shall not be granted or withheld without reasonable cause.  Any subcontract made by Contractor shall incorporate by reference all the terms of this Contract except for Equal Benefit provisions. Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors comply with the obligations and requirements of the subcontract, except for Equal Benefit provisions.  Seattle’s consent to any assignment or subcontract shall not release the Contractor from liability under this Contract, or from any obligation to be performed under this Contract, whether occurring before or after such consent, assignment, or subcontract. 


25. Key Persons and Subcontractors.  Contractor shall not transfer, reassign or replace any individual or subcontractor that is determined to be essential or that has been agreed upon in the Contractor’s Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan, without express written consent of Seattle.  If during the term of this Contract, any such individual leaves the Contractor’s employment or any named subcontract is terminated for any reason, Contractor shall notify Seattle and seek approval for reassignment or replacement with an alternative individual or subcontractor. Upon Seattle’s request, the Contractor shall present to Seattle, one or more subcontractors or individual(s) with greater or equal qualifications as a replacement.  Continued achievement of the Subcontracting (Inclusion) Plan that was incorporated into this Contract by reference, if any, and the associated subcontract awards, aspirational goals and efforts, will be one of the considerations in approval of such changes. Seattle’s approval or disapproval shall not be construed to release the Contractor from its obligations under this Contract.  


26. Equal Benefits

a. Compliance with SMC Ch. 20.45: The Vendor shall comply with the requirements of SMC Ch. 20.45 and Equal Benefits Program Rules implementing such requirements, under which the Vendor is obligated to provide the same or equivalent benefits (“equal benefits”) to its employees with domestic partners as the Vendor provides to its employees with spouses.  At The City’s request, the Vendor shall provide complete information and verification of the Vendor’s compliance with SMC Ch. 20.45.   Failure to cooperate with such a request shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.  (For further information about SMC Ch. 20.45 and the Equal Benefits Program Rules call (206) 684-0430 or review information at http://www.seattle.gov/contracting/equalbenefits.htm.

b. Remedies for Violations of SMC Ch. 20.45:  Any violation of this Section shall be a material breach of Contract for which the City may:

· Require the Vendor to pay actual damages for each day that the Vendor is in violation of SMC Ch. 20.45 during the term of the Contract; or

· Terminate the Contract; or 

· Disqualify the Vendor from bidding on or being awarded a City contract for a period of up to five (5) years; or

· Impose such other remedies as specifically provided for in SMC Ch. 20.45 and the Equal Benefits Program Rules promulgated thereunder.


27. General Legal Requirements

a. General Requirement:  Vendor, at no expense to The City, shall comply with all applicable laws of the United States and the State of Washington; the Charter and ordinances of The City; and rules, regulations, orders, and directives of their administrative agencies and the officers thereof.  Without limiting the generality of this paragraph, the Vendor shall specifically comply with the following requirements of this section.

b. Licenses and Similar Authorizations:  Vendor, at no expense to The City, shall secure and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Contract all required licenses, permits, and similar legal authorizations, and comply with all requirements thereof.


c. Performance Standard.   All duties by Vendor or designees shall be performed in a manner consistent with accepted practices for other similar Work. 


28. Indemnification

Vendor shall defend, indemnify, and save City harmless from and against all claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees resulting from such claims, by third parties for any or all injuries to persons or damage to property of such third parties arising from intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions of Vendor, its officers, employees, or agents, or Subcontractors, their officers, employees or agents.  Vendor’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and save City harmless shall not be eliminated or reduced by any alleged concurrent City negligence.

29. Insurance

Except as specified otherwise, Vendor shall obtain at time of award and maintain in force, minimum coverages and limits of liability of insurance specified below.  If the Vendor fails to obtain or maintain these coverages, the City may withdraw its intent to award.  All costs are borne by the Vendor.

1.
MINIMUM COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY. Vendor shall at all times during the term of this Contract maintain continuously, at its own expense, minimum insurance coverages and limits of liability as specified below:

1.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance, including:




- Premises/Operations





- Products/Completed Operations




- Personal/Advertising Injury




- Contractual 



- Independent Contractors 


- Stop Gap/Employers Liability

- Products/Completed OPNS.  Add’l Inusred for Three (3) Years Following End Of     Contract

with minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage (“CSL”), except:





$1,000,000   Personal/Advertising Injury




$2,000,000   Products/Completed Operations Aggregate





$2,000,000  General Aggregate


$1,000,000    Each Accident/Disease/Employee Stop Gap/Employer’s 



Liability

1.2.  Automobile Liability insurance, including coverage for owned, non-owned, leased or hired vehicles with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 CSL.

1.3.  Worker’s Compensation for industrial injury to Vendor’s employees in accordance with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington. 

1.4.  Professional Liability Errors and Omissions, with coverage of not less than $10 million per occurrence.


1.5. Technology Errors & Omissions (E&O) with coverage of $10,000,000



1.6. Crime Fidelity, Theft, Disappearance & Destruction Liability (to include Employee Dishonesty, wire transfer, forgery & mail coverage) WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $5,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate.

1.7. Information Technology -Network Security (Cyber) Liability WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $10,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate. This shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for any actual or alleged breach of duty, neglect, error, act, mistake, omission, or failure arising out of Service Provider's Internet and Network Activities including coverage for, but not limited to, the following events:


· An attack that has the intent to affect, alter, copy, corrupt, destroy, disrupt, damage, or provide unauthorized access or unauthorized use of Service Provider's or Vendor’s computer system;

· Computer Crime or Information Theft;


· Denial of Service;


· Extortion;


· Introduction, implantation, or spread of a Computer Virus;


· Loss of Service;


· Identity Theft;


· Infringement


· Electronic data loss and restoration;


· Unauthorized Access or Use, including the gaining of access to Service Provider's or  participating cities computer systems by an unauthorized person or persons or an authorized person in an unauthorized manner


2. 
CITY AS ADDITIONAL INSURED.  The CGL/MGL insurance and all other coverages as specified herein must be endorsed to include “The City of Seattle as Additional Insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability without any exclusion, restriction, or other limitation upon the existence of coverage thereunder for claims or suits brought by the Vendor and/or any of the Additional Parties against the Vendor and/or any of the Additional Parties.”  In addition, the Contractor’s liability insurance shall contain either a cross liability endorsement or separation of insureds provision which permits the limits of liability under the Contractor's policies to apply separately to each Additional Insured.


3. 
NO LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  The limits of liability specified herein in subparagraph 25.1 are minimum limits of liability only and shall not be deemed to limit the liability of Vendor or any Vendor insurer except as respects the stated limit of liability of each policy.  Where required to be an additional insured, the City of Seattle shall be so for the full limits of liability maintained by Vendor, whether such limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.


4. 
MINIMUM SECURITY REQUIREMENT.  All insurers must be rated A- VII or higher in the current A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide and licensed to do business in the State of Washington unless coverage is issued as surplus lines by a Washington Surplus lines broker.


5. 
SELF-INSURANCE.  Any self-insured retention not fronted by an insurer must be disclosed.  Any defense costs or claim payments falling within a self-insured retention shall be the responsibility of Vendor.


6. 
EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE. Prior to performance of any scope of work under this Contract, Vendor shall provide certification of insurance acceptable to the City evidencing the minimum coverages and limits of liability and other requirements specified herein.  Such certification must include a copy of the policy provision documenting that the City of Seattle is an additional insured for commercial general liability insurance on a primary and non-contributory basis.  Certification should be issued to The City of Seattle, Risk Management Division, and Seattle, WA and shall be delivered in electronic form either as an email attachment to riskmanagement@seattle.gov or faxed to (206) 470-1270.


30. Review of Vendor Records

Vendor and its Subcontractors shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence relating to this Contract, including but not limited to protection and use of City’s Confidential Information, and accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature invoiced in the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall retain all such records for six (6) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract.  Records involving matters in litigation related to this Contract shall be kept for six (6) years from the date the litigation is settled or complete.

All such records shall be subject at reasonable times and upon prior notice to examination, inspection, copying or audit by personnel so authorized by the City’s Contract Administration and/or the Office of the Auditor and federal officials so authorized by law, rule, regulation or contract, when applicable, at no additional cost to the City.  During this Contract’s term, Vendor shall provide access to these items at a mutually agreeable time and place.  Vendor shall be responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by Vendor or any of its Subcontractors. Vendor shall incorporate in its subcontracts this section’s records retention and review requirements.


It is agreed that books, records, documents and other evidence of accounting procedures and practices related to Vendor’s cost structure, including overhead, general and administrative expenses, and profit factors shall be excluded from City’s review unless the cost or any material issue under this Contract is calculated or derived from these factors.


31.  Independent Contractor 

The relationship of Vendor to The City by reason of this Contract shall be that of an independent Vendor.  This Contract does not authorize Vendor to act as the agent or legal representative of the City for any purpose whatsoever.  Vendor is not granted any express or implied right or authority to assume or create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of or in the name of The City or to bind The City in any manner or thing whatsoever.


It is the intention and understanding of the Parties that Vendor shall be an independent Vendor and that the City shall be neither liable for nor obligated to pay sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of employment, nor to pay any social security or other tax that may arise as an incident of employment.  The Vendor shall pay all income and other taxes as due.  Industrial or other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the Vendor shall not be deemed to convert this Contract to any employment contract.  It is recognized that Vendor may or will be performing professional Work during the term for other parties and that The City is not the exclusive user of the Work that Vendor will provide.


32. No Conflict of Interest.

Contractor confirms that Contractor does not have a business interest or a close family relationship with any City officer or employee who was, is, or will be involved in the Contractor selection, negotiation, drafting, signing, administration, or evaluating the Contractor's performance.  


33. No Gifts or Gratuities.

Contractor shall not directly or indirectly offer anything of value (such as retainers, loans, entertainment, favors, gifts, tickets, trips, favors, bonuses, donations, special discounts, work or meals) to any City employee, volunteer or official, that is intended, or may appear to a reasonable person to be intended, to obtain or give special consideration to the Vendor.  Promotional items worth less than $25 may be distributed by the vendor to City employees if the Vendor uses the items as routine and standard promotions for business. Any violation of this provision may result in termination of this Contract.  Nothing in this Contract prohibits donations to campaigns for election to City office, so long as the donation is disclosed as required by the election campaign disclosure laws of the City and of the State.

34. Current and Former City Employees, Officers, and Volunteers.


Throughout the life of the contract, Contractor shall provide written notice to City Purchasing and the City Project Manager of any current or former City employees, officials or volunteers, that are working or assisting on solicitation of City business or on completion of the awarded contract.  The Vendor must be aware of the City Ethics Code, Seattle Municipal Code 4.16 and advise Contractor workers as applicable.


35. Contract Workers with 1,000 Hours


Throughout the life of the Contract, Contractor shall provide written notice to City Purchasing and the City Project Manager of any contract worker that shall perform more than 1,000 hours of contract work for the City within a rolling 12-month period.  Such hours include those that the contract worker performs for the Contract, and any other hours that the worker performs for the City under any other contract.  Such workers are subject to the requirements of the City Ethics Code, Seattle Municipal Code 4.16.  The Contractor shall advise their Contract workers as applicable.


36. Errors & Omissions:  Correction

Vendor shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, and the coordination of all designs, drawings, Statement of Work, and other services furnished by or on the behalf of the Vendor under this Contract.  The Vendor, without additional compensation, shall correct or revise any errors or omissions in the designs, drawings, Statement of Work, and/or other Vendor services immediately upon notification by The City.  The obligation provided for in this section with respect to any acts or omissions during the term of this Contract shall survive any termination or expiration of this Contract and shall be in addition to all other obligations and liabilities of the Vendor.

37. Intellectual Property Rights 

Patent:  Vendor hereby assigns to The City all rights in any invention, improvement, or discovery, together with all related information, including but not limited to, designs, Statement of Work, data, patent rights and findings developed in connection with the performance of Contract or any subcontract hereunder.  Notwithstanding the above, the Vendor does not convey to The City, nor does The City obtain, any right to any document or material utilized by Vendor that was created or produced separate from this Contract or was preexisting material (not already owned by The City), provided that the Vendor has clearly identified in writing such material as preexisting prior to commencement of the Work.  To the extent that preexisting materials are incorporated into the Work, the Vendor grants The City an irrevocable, non-exclusive, fully-paid, royalty-free right and/or license to use, execute, reproduce, display, and transfer the preexisting material, but only as an inseparable part of the Work.


Copyright:  All materials and documents prepared by Vendor in connection with the Contract and Vendor shall retain the copyright (including the right of reuse) whether or not the Contract Statement of Work is completed.  Vendor grants to The City a non-exclusive, irrevocable, unlimited, fully-paid, royalty-free license to use every document and all other materials prepared by the Vendor for The City under this Contract.  If requested by The City, a copy of all drawing, prints, plans, field notes, reports, documents, files, input materials, output materials, the media upon which they are located (including cards, tapes, discs and other storage facilities), software programs or packages (including source code or codes, object codes, upgrades, revisions, modifications, and any related materials) and/or any other related documents or materials which are developed solely for, and paid for by, The City in connection with the performance of the Work, shall be promptly delivered to The City. 


The City may make and retain copies of such documents for its information and reference in connection with their use on the project.  The Vendor does not represent or warrant that such documents are suitable for reuse by The City, or others, on extensions of the project, or on any other project. Vendor represents and warrants that it has all necessary legal authority to make the assignments and grant the licenses required by this Section.

38. Confidentiality 

1.  Contractor understands that any records (including but not limited to bid or proposal submittals, the Agreement,  and any other contract materials) it submits to the City, or that are used by the City even if the Contractor possesses the records, are public records under Washington State law, RCW Chapter 42.56. Public records must be promptly disclosed upon request unless a statute exempts them from disclosure. The Contractor also understands that even if part of a record is exempt from disclosure, the rest of that record generally must be disclosed.


2.  If the City receives a public disclosure request made pursuant to RCW 42.56, the City will not assert an exemption from disclosure on behalf of the Contractor. For materials that the Vendor has properly marked, the City may notify the Contractor of the request and postpone disclosure for ten business days to allow the Contractor to file a lawsuit seeking an injunction preventing the release of documents pursuant to RCW 42.56.540.  Any notification is provided as a courtesy and is not an obligation on behalf of the City. Unless the Contractor obtains and serves an injunction upon the City before the close of business on the tenth business day after the date of the notification, the City may release the documents. It is the Contractor’s discretionary decision whether to file the lawsuit.


3.  In order to request that material not be disclosed until receipt of notification of a public disclosure request, you must identify the specific materials and citations very clearly on the City Vendor Questionnaire that you believe are exempt from disclosure.  The City will not withhold material for notification if the Contractor simply marked confidential on the document header, footer, stamped on all pages, or offered a generic statement that the entire document is protected.  Only material specifically listed and properly cited on the Vendor Questionnaire will be temporarily withheld until the City provides notification of a public disclosure request.   


4.  If the Contractor does not obtain and serve an injunction upon the City within 10 business days of the date of the City’s notification of the request, the Contractor is deemed to have authorized releasing the record.


5.  If the Contractor does not submit a request within the Vendor Questionnaire, the Contractor is deemed to have authorized releasing any and all information submitted to the City. 


6.  Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor must not take any action that would affect (a) the City’s ability to use goods and services provided under this Agreement or (b) the Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement.


7.  The Contractor will fully cooperate with the City in identifying and assembling records in case of any public disclosure request.


39. Publicity

No news release, advertisement, promotional material, tour, or demonstration related to the City’s purchase or use of the Vendor’s product or any work performed pursuant to this Contract shall be produced, distributed or take place without the prior, specific approval of the City’s Project Manager or his/her designee.

40. Interlocal Agreement Act

RCW Chapter 39.34 allows cooperative purchasing between public agencies, non profits and other political subdivisions.  Public agencies that file an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City of Seattle may purchase from Contracts established by the City.  The seller agrees to sell additional items at the bid prices, terms and conditions, to other eligible governmental agencies that have such agreements with the City.  The City of Seattle accepts no responsibility for the payment of the purchase price by other governmental agencies.  Should the Vendor require additional pricing for such purchases, the Vendor is to name such additional pricing upon Offer to the City.

41. Background Checks


The City may require background/criminal checks during the course of the contract for essential City purposes.  The City does not intend to request background checks/verifications unless essential in the opinion of the City.  Note that, in particular, Seattle City Light has regulatory requirements promulgated by organizations with jurisdiction over Seattle City Light, which require any contract worker that has access to certain locations/systems/data (“SCL Designated Access”) to undergo a background/criminal check before that worker can have authorized cyber or authorized unescorted physical access to those locations/systems/data. The requirements apply to all Vendor workers and mandate an appropriate Personnel Risk Assessment and security awareness training as directed by Seattle City Light.  See the City Contract (Terms and Conditions).

This section covers background/criminal checks for Vendor workers before they work on certain City tasks, systems and/or locations, to include the discovery and verification of criminal convictions and civil findings.  The City may, at its option, determine that only a criminal history check will be performed.  This section also covers the requirements if cyber security training is required.


If the City notifies the Vendor to undergo background/criminal checks or cyber security training for vendor workers, the following shall apply.


A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 


1. The City shall alert the Vendor that the contract task is “High Security” at the time the work request is made to the Vendor or as soon as practical thereafter.


2. Should the Vendor believe it cannot meet these obligations by the scheduled work start dates, the Vendor may seek mutual agreement to a revised start date, or if none is reached, decline the work.


3. The City may require that any Vendor worker receiving SCL Designated Access undergo a background/criminal history check and receive appropriate cyber security training.  The Seattle Police Department (SPD) shall conduct all criminal history checks for Seattle Police Department services.  


4.  The Vendor shall provide a list of names, specified identification information (social security number, birth date and address) and a release signed by the worker for the City to perform a background/criminal history check.  Vendor must provide the information to the City before any worker will receive be cleared for work.  The list must be submitted at a date mutually agreed upon.    


5. The City will conduct a background check using either the Seattle Police Department or any agency with whom the City selects.  The City will review the resultant background/criminal history check results.  The City shall notify the Vendor of acceptance or rejection of personnel in a timely manner.   The City will perform the background check at City cost.


6. For workers rejected by the City, the Vendor will submit to the City alternative names for background checks.  Vendor will submit those names promptly, as mutually agreed upon between the Vendor and the City. 


7. The Vendor has responsibility to obtain City approval for a sufficient quantity of personnel to provide adequate coverage during the contract term.   The City may allow the Vendor to submit a greater number of individuals for background checks and approval than is necessary to accomplish the contract tasks, in order to assure adequate coverage for the contract work (i.e. receive authorization for back-up crew members in the event of an absence by a scheduled crew member).


Notwithstanding the schedules and responsibilities herein, the City and the Vendor may need to consider individuals for emergency replacement in the event a worker cannot perform or is terminated.  In such event, the City may allow the Vendor to submit additional names in anticipation of such future need.  


8. The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such individuals, although the City is not under the obligation to accept individuals that would otherwise be rejected as not suitable.


9. The Background/Criminal check must be renewed every four years for vendor workers.  If  the worker was required by the City to undergo a background check and/or cyber security training, the Vendor must likewise notify the City when that worker approaches four years.  This notice to the City must be no less than sixty (60) days before the end of the four-year period. At that time, to comply with appropriate regulatory requirements, the City may require another background check/criminal.


10. The Vendor shall provide to the City, no less than eight (8) hours from when the status change becomes effective, notice of any Vendor worker who is: (i) reassigned or no longer requires Designated Access to perform the contract tasks, or (ii) terminated by the Vendor for any reason. In no case shall such notice be greater than eight (8) hours.


11. The Vendor shall immediately notify the City Project Manager to report if a worker has a change in criminal history or background status.  The City may initiate a new background/criminal check for this or other cause during the term of the worker’s access to the City.


12. For furniture moves, on the day(s) of service, at the job site, the Crew Chief is to submit the names of those present at the job site to the City Building Service Manager.  The City Project Manager is responsible for rejecting any individuals that have not been approved by the City.  Should such a rejection result in a failure by the Vendor to meet the Vendor obligations for a crew of sufficient size to complete the move, the Vendor assumes all resulting liabilities and damages in accordance with the contract and all terms and conditions.


B. CYBER TRAINING REQUIREMENTS


The City may require that any Vendor worker receive appropriate cyber security training.  Such workers must receive cyber security training once each year they work under the contract.


C. ROUTINE ELEMENTS OF A BACKGROUND/CRIMINAL REPORT


Routine background/criminal history check reports shall include identity verification (e.g. social security number  verification) and a search of records from any federal, state or county court in the United States, an international records search, and records of all convictions or releases from prison within the last ten (10) years.


D. NON-ROUTINE ELEMENTS OF A BACKGROUND/CRIMINAL REPORT


1. The City may search for dependency actions.


2. The City may search for information on protection proceedings related to sex offender, assault, abuse, or exploitation of a minor, developmentally disabled person, or vulnerable adult, or domestic relations proceedings.


3. The City may search for additional information detail, as determined by the City, above and beyond the scope of a routine background/criminal history check as defined in Section C, General requirements.


4. If the required access for the worker is subject to NERC, the City will require all workers to undergo annual Cyber Security Training offered by Seattle City Light.  The workers will be paid for the time they spend in such training.  If this requirement applies, the City will require the Vendor to submit a list of such workers and their status of Cyber Training annually upon contract anniversary. 

42. Security Access Requirements

VENDOR USE OF PREMISES


1. Vendor workers shall have only limited use of the premises for work, storage, access, and equipment.


2. Material/equipment staging areas will be limited to floors and areas designated within the Scope of Work.  Maintain clear access to site and building entrances.


3. Driveway use will be limited to loading and unloading only.


4. For furniture moves, the vendor shall be granted the use of up to two parking spaces in the Seattle Municipal Tower parking structure to be paid by the vendor.   Arrangements for the use of these two spaces must be made through the Building Management.  Other parking spaces in the structure are available at the regular rates.  Special parking arrangements may be made through IMPARK Inc., the garage operator at 628-9042.


5. Restrooms may have restricted access, as appropriate to the Scope of Work.


6. All workers who must provide services or delivery at a SCL facility must obtain prior permission from SCL and make arrangements for an SCL escort while on the facility site.

B.
RELATED REQUIREMENTS AND DOCUMENTS


1. All Vendor employees at the job site shall wear identification that is prominent and clearly marked, which clearly identifies the individual as an employee with the building services company.


2. When appropriate, Vendors will be issued a Departmental Identification/Access Badge, for the designated contract period, giving them access to the facility for which they require access.  These Identification/Access Badges will be returned to the Department at the completion of the contract.

C.
WORK AREA


1. Confine operations and storage to the designated work area.  Maintain the work area and building clean and in an orderly manner.


2. Safety Procedures:  Implement safety procedures as required by the Contract Documents, local codes and laws to ensure the safety of all site personnel and visitors to the site.


D.
TEMPORARY CONTROLS



Vendor shall be responsible for proper supervision of personnel to prevent damage, loss or other unauthorized damage as a result of the work performed by the Contractor.  

43. Dispute Resolution

The parties shall endeavor to resolve any dispute or misunderstanding that may arise under this Contract concerning Vendor’s performance, if mutually agreed to be appropriate, through negotiations between the Vendor’s Project Manager and the City’s Project Manager, or if mutually agreed, referred to the City’s named representative and the Vendor’s senior executive(s).  Either party may discontinue such discussions and may then pursue other means to resolve such disputes, or may by mutual agreement pursue other dispute alternatives such as alternate dispute resolution processes. Nothing in this dispute process shall in any way mitigate the rights, if any, of either party to terminate the contract for cause or convenience.

44. Termination

a. For Cause:  The City may terminate this Contract if the Vendor is in material breach of any of the terms of this Contract, and such breach has not been corrected to the City’s reasonable satisfaction in a timely manner.


b. For City’s Convenience:  The City may terminate this Contract at any time, without cause and for any reason including the City’s convenience, upon written notice to the Vendor.  


c. Nonappropriation of Funds:  The City may terminate this Contract at any time without notice due to nonappropriation of funds, whether such funds are local, state or federal grants, and no such notice shall be required notwithstanding any notice requirements that may be agreed upon for other causes of termination.


d. Acts of Insolvency:  The City may terminate this Contract by written notice to Vendor if the Vendor becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffers or permits the appointment of a receiver for its business or assets, becomes subject to any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency law whether domestic or foreign, or is wound up or liquidated, voluntarily or otherwise. 


e. Termination for Gratuities and/or Conflict of Interest:  The City may terminate this Contract by written notice to Vendor if The City finds that a conflict of interest exists in violation of the city Ethics Code, or that any gratuity in the form of entertainment, a gift, or otherwise, was offered to or given by the Vendor or any agent therefore to any City official, officer or employee.


f. Notice:  The City is not required to provide advance notice of termination.  Notwithstanding, the RFP Coordinator may issue a termination notice with an effective date later than the termination notice itself.  In such case, the Vendor shall continue to provide products and services as required by the RFP Coordinator until the effective date provided in the termination notice. 


g. Actions Upon Termination:  In the event of termination not the fault of the Vendor, the following shall apply:

1. Vendor shall be paid for all products and services that have been ordered and accepted prior to the effective termination date or ordered before the effective termination date and ultimately accepted by the RFP Coordinator, together with any reimbursable expenses then due.

2. For System development projects, Vendor shall be paid for progress performed that has been accepted by the City on or prior to the effective termination date, but in no event shall such compensation exceed the maximum compensation to be paid under the Contract.  

3. Vendor agrees that such payment shall fully and adequately compensate Vendor and all subs for all profits, costs, expenses, losses, liabilities, damages, taxes, and charges of any kind whatsoever (whether foreseen or unforeseen) attributable to the termination of this Contract. 

4. Upon termination for any reason, Vendor shall provide The City with the most current design documents, contract documents, writings and other product it has completed to the date of termination, along with copies of all project-related correspondence and similar items.  The City shall have the same rights to use these materials as if termination had not occurred. 

5. In the event this Contract expires or is terminated for any reason, the City shall retain its rights in all Products, services and system progress that is in transit or delivered prior to the effective termination date.

45. Force Majeure– Suspension and Termination


This section applies in the event that either party is unable to perform the obligations of this contract because of a Force Majeure event as defined herein, to the extent that the Contract obligations must be suspended in full.  A Force Majeure event is an event that prohibits performance and is beyond the control of the party.  Such events may include natural or man-made disasters, or an action or decree of a superior governmental body, which prevents performance.


Force Majeure under this Section shall only apply in the event that performance is rendered not possible by either party or its agents.  Should it be possible to provide partial performance that is acceptable to the City under Section #2 (Emergencies or Disasters), Section #2 below shall instead be in force.


Should either party suffer from a Force Majeure event and is unable to provide performance, such party shall give notice to the remaining party as soon as practical and shall do everything possible to resume performance. 


Upon receipt of such notice, the party shall be excused from such performance as is affected by the Force Majeure Event for the period of such Event.  If such Event affects the delivery date or warranty provisions of this Agreement, such date or warranty period shall automatically be extended for a period equal to the duration of such Event.


46. Major Emergencies or Disasters:   

The City may undergo an emergency or disaster that may require the Vendor to either increase or decrease quantities from normal deliveries, or that may disrupt the Vendor’s ability to provide normal performance.  Such events may include, but are not limited to, a storm, high wind, earthquake, flood, hazardous material release, transportation mishap, loss of any utility service, fire, terrorist activity or any combination of the above.  In such events, the following shall apply.


a. The City shall notify the Vendor that the City is experiencing an emergency or disaster, and will request emergency and priority services from the Vendor.


b. Upon such notice by the City, the Vendor shall provide to the City goods and/or services in the quantities and schedule specified by the City, following the conditions named in this Section.


c. The City of Seattle shall be the customer of first priority for the Vendor.  The Vendor shall provide its best and priority efforts to provide the requested goods and/or services to the City of The City in as complete and timely manner as possible.  Such efforts by the Vendor are not to be diminished as a result of Vendor providing service to other customers.  


d. If the Vendor is unable to respond in the time and/or quantities requested by the City, the Vendor shall make delivery as soon as practical.  The Vendor shall immediately assist the City to the extent reasonable, to gain access to such goods and/or services. This may include:


· Coordinating with other distributors or subsidiaries beyond those in the local region to fulfill order requests; 


· Offering the City substitutions provided the Vendor obtains prior approval from the City for such substitution.


e. The Vendor shall charge the City the price determined in this Contract for the goods and services provided, and if no price has been determined, it shall charge the City a price that is normally charged for such goods and/or services (such as listed prices for items in stock).  However, in the event that the City’s request results in the Vendor incurring unavoidable additional costs and causes the Vendor to increase prices in order to obtain a fair rate of return, the Vendor shall charge the City a price not to exceed the cost/profit formula found in this Contract. 


47. Debarment


In accordance with SMC Ch. 20.70, the Director of Finance and Administrative Services or designee may debar a Vendor from entering into a Contract with the City or from acting as a sub on any Contract with the City for up to five years after determining that any of the following reasons exist: 

a. Vendor has received overall performance evaluations of deficient, inadequate, or substandard performance on three or more City Contracts.


b. Vendor failed to comply with City ordinances or Contract terms, including but not limited to, ordinance or Contract terms relating to small business utilization, discrimination, prevailing wage requirements, equal benefits, or apprentice utilization.  


c. Vendor abandoned, surrendered, or failed to complete or to perform work on or in connection with a City Contract.  


d. Vendor failed to comply with Contract provisions, including but not limited to quality of workmanship, timeliness of performance, and safety standards. 


e. Vendor submitted false or intentionally misleading documents, reports, invoices, or other statements to the City in connection with a Contract. 


f. Vendor colluded with another Vendor to restrain competition. 


g. Vendor committed fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Contract for the City or any other government entity.


h. Vendor failed to cooperate in a City debarment investigation. 


i. Vendor failed to comply with SMC 14.04, SMC Ch. 14.10, SMC Ch. 20.42, or SMC Ch. 20.45, or other local, State, or federal non-discrimination laws. 


The Director may issue an Order of Debarment following the procedures specified in SMC 20.70.050.   The rights and remedies of the City under these provisions are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract. 

48. Recycle Products Requirements


As required by Seattle Municipal Code 20.60, whenever practicable, Vendor shall use reusable products, recyclable products and recycled-content products including recycled content paper on all documents submitted to the City.  

Vendors are to duplex all materials that are prepared for the City under this Contract, whether such materials are printed or copied, except when impracticable to do so due to the nature of the product being produced.  Vendors are to use 100% post consumer recycled content, chlorine-free paper in such products that are produced for the City, whenever practicable, and to use other paper-saving and recycling measures in business they conduct with and for the City.  This directive is executed under the Mayor's Executive Order, issued February 13, 2005.

49. Section Headings, Incorporated Documents and Order of Precedence


a. The headings used herein are inserted for convenience only and do not define or limit the contents.

b. No verbal agreement or conversation between any officer, agent, associate or employee of The City and any officer, agency, employee or associate of the Vendor prior to the execution of this Contract shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in this Contract.

c. The following documents are incorporated.  Where there is conflict or gap between or among these documents, the controlling document will be resolved in the following order of precedence (first listed being the precedent):

a. Applicable federal, state and local  statutes, laws and regulations;


b. This Contract

c. All Attachments to this Contract, including Pricing, Management, and Technical Specification Agreements

d. Licensing and Maintenance Agreements


e. RFP issued by the City


f. Vendor Proposal Response


g. City Purchase Order documents issued, if any; and


h. Vendor or manufacturer publications or written materials Vendor made available to City and used to effect the sale.


50. Entire Agreement


This Contract sets forth the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  No changes to provisions, price, quality, or Statement of Work of this Contract will be effective without the written consent of both parties.


51. Authority for Modifications and Amendments


The Parties hereto reserve the right to make amendments or modifications to this Contract by written agreement, signed by an authorized representative of each party. No modification, amendment, alteration, or waiver of any section or condition of this Contract shall be effective or binding unless it is in writing and signed by the City RFP Coordinator and Vendor Contracting Officer.  Only the City RFP Coordinator shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, modify, add, or waive any section or condition of this Contract on behalf of the City.


52. Severability


If any term or provision of this Contract is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Contract shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.


53. Miscellaneous Provisions 

a. Binding Contract:  This Contract shall not be binding until signed by both parties.  The provisions, covenants and conditions in this Contract shall bind the parties, their legal heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns.


b. Applicable Law/Venue:  This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  The venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior Court for King County.


c. Remedies Cumulative:  Rights under this Contract are cumulative and nonexclusive of any other remedy at law or in equity.  


d. Waiver:  No term or condition or breach thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written consent of the party against whom the waiver is claimed.  Any waiver of the breach of any term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term or condition.  Neither acceptance by The City of Vendor performance nor payment to Vendor for any portion of Work shall constitute a waiver by The City of the breach or default of any term or condition unless expressly agreed to by The City in writing.

e. Negotiated Contract:  The parties acknowledge that this is a negotiated Contract, that they have had the opportunity to have this Contract reviewed by their respective legal counsel, and that the terms and conditions of this Contract are not to be construed against any party on the basis of such party's draftsmanship thereof.


f. Attorneys’ Fees:  Subject to the indemnification provisions set forth in this Contract, if any action or suit is brought with respect to a matter or matters covered by this Contract, each party shall be responsible for all its own costs and expenses incident to such proceedings, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.


g. Authority:  Each party represents that it has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract, and the person signing this Contract on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract.  Each party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and shall be bound by it.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and covenants contained herein, or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties have executed this Contract by having their authorized representatives affix their signatures below.


		 (Vendor)


By

		

		City of Seattle

By



		

		Signature

Date




		

		

		Signature
Date






		

		(Printed Name)




		

		

		NANCY LOCKE, City Purchasing Director





		

		Title
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2013 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND TRANSMITTAL SHEET 

PURCHASING SERVICES
REF:  RFP-FAS 3021 

City of Seattle


Attachment No. 21A

VENDOR: SEND THIS FORM TO YOUR INSURANCE PROFESSIONAL

INSURANCE AGENT/BROKER: 

( PLEASE COMPLETE THESE FIELDS SO THAT WE MAY CONTACT YOU IF NECESSARY.                 *REQUIRED FIELDS


*NAME:      


TITLE:      


*NAME OF COMPANY         


*EMAIL:      

*TELEPHONE:      

FAX:        

( SEND ORIGINAL CERTIFICATION WITH COPY OF CGL ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL   INSURED POLICY WORDING TO:
THE CITY OF SEATTLE PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

                                      

ATTN:      

 





PO Box 94687

                                       

SEATTLE, WA 98124-4678

( SEND COPY OF CERTIFICATION (INCLUDING COPY OF ADDITIONAL INSURED PROVISION) BY FAX TO (206) 470-1279 OR AS AN EMAIL ATTACHMENT IN ADOBE PDF FORMAT TO RISKMANAGEMENT@SEATTLE.GOV .


1.  In the “Certificate Holder” field of the certificate of insurance, write “Attention:  “City of Seattle, Bellevue, Tacoma, Everett and Bellingham”.  (See Paragraph 1 – Terms and Conditions).

2. Upon award of the contract, Vendor shall, at its sole expense and for the entire term of the contract, provide evidence of insurance to the City of Seattle (“City”) as checked below in 15 days or the city may withdraw its intent to award:

· ( COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (CGL), MARINE GENERAL LIABILITY (MGL) OR EQUIVALENT INCLUDING: 


( PREMISES 


( PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 



( CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY  



( STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY (UNLESS NO OBLIGATION TO INSURE WA STATE WC)

   XCU AND SUBSIDENCE PERILS NOT EXCLUDED

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPNS. ADD’L INSURED FOR THREE (3) YEARS FOLLOWING END OF CONTRACT

· MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE:   


		    $1,000,000

		EACH OCCURRENCE COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE (CSL)



		    $2,000,000   

		PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE



		    $2,000,000   

		GENERAL AGGREGATE



		    $1,000,000   

		EACH ACCIDENT/ DISEASE—POLICY LIMIT/ DISEASE—EACH EMPLOYEE STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY 





( AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR OWNED, NON-OWNED AND HIRED VEHICLES AS APPROPRIATE   
       WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $1,000,000 CSL.

· NOTE: GARAGE LIABILITY WITH APPROPRIATE COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY MAY SUBSTITUTE FOR CGL AND AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE:

·    Garage Keeper’s Legal Liability (GKLL) insurance to cover vehicles in vendor’s bailment.  Minimum limit of liability of   

  $        each vehicle and $       each occurrence.   


·         “On-Hook” GKLL coverage required with minimum limit of liability of $      each vehicle.


 IN-TRANSIT POLLUTION LIABILITY CA 99 48/MCS-90 (N/A IF COVERED UNDER AN IN-TRANSIT EXTENSION OF     A CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY)


· (  WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE FOR WASHINGTON STATE AS REQUIRED BY TITLE 51 RCW.

  UMBRELLA/EXCESS/BUMBERSHOOT LIABILITY INSURANCE OVER CGL/MGL/AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY SHALL BE 4,000,000 $ $1,000,000 CSL  CSL ($5,000,000 MINIMUM TOTAL LIMITS REQUIREMENT)


   CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE. MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE  $1,000,000  $      EACH CLAIM WITH A MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT OF 200% OF THE EACH CLAIM LIMIT.  THERE SHALL BE NO REQUIREMENT FOR A DEDICATED PROJECT AGGREGATE LIMIT PROVIDED THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL (1) SUBMIT TO THE CITY WITH ITS INSURANCE CERTIFICATION A WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM ITS AUTHORIZED INSURANCE REPRESENTATIVE THAT THE FULL MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT IS AVAILABLE AND HAS NOT BEEN IMPAIRED BY ANY CLAIMS RESERVED ON ANOTHER PROJECT, AND (2) THEREAFTER, UNTIL THE COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTICE IN WRITING TO THE CITY WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWLEDGE OF ANY PENDING OR ACTUAL IMPAIRMENT OF THE AGGREGATE LIMIT.

   AVIATION LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF $1,000,000 CSL OR  $      CSL

   PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY $10,000,000 EACH CLAIM


 
   WATERCRAFT/P&I LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY $     

   SHIP REPAIRER’S OR MARINA OPERATOR’S LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERING THE VENDOR’S LIABILITY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, TO OWNERS OF WATERCRAFT WHILE IN THE VENDOR’S CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING REPAIRED OR SERVICED.  


MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH VESSEL


   JONES ACT LIABILITY WITH MINIMUM LIMITS   $1,000,000 OR $     .

   U.S.L. & H. LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY $     

   TECHNOLOGY ERRORS & OMISSION (E&O):  WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $10,000,000

   OTHER: 
A)  Crime Fidelity, Theft, Disappearance & Destruction Liability (to include Employee Dishonesty, wire 
transfer, forgery & mail coverage) WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $5,000,000 per occurence and in the aggregate.

B)
Information Technology -Network Security (Cyber) Liability WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $10,000,000 per occurence and annual aggregate. This shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for any actual or alleged breach of duty, neglect, error, act, mistake, omission, or failure arising out of Service Provider's Internet and Network Activities including coverage for, but not limited to, the following events, :

· An attack that has the intent to affect, alter, copy, corrupt, destroy, disrupt, damage, or provide unauthorized access or unauthorized use of Service Provider's or Vendor’s computer system;

     Computer Crime or Information Theft;


      Denial of Service;


      Extortion;


      Introduction, implantation, or spread of a Computer Virus;


      Loss of Service;

· Identity Theft;


· Infringement


· Electronic data loss and restoration;

      Unauthorized Access or Use, including the gaining of access to Service Provider's or  participating cities computer systems by an unauthorized person or persons or an authorized person in an unauthorized manner

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. City as Additional Insured: The CGL/MGL insurance and all other coverages required  herein must be endorsed to include “The City of Seattle” as an Additional Insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability. 

2. No Limitation of Liability: Insurance coverage and limits of liability as specified herein are minimum coverage and limit of liability requirements only.  They shall not be construed to limit the liability of Vendor or any insurer for any claim that is required to be covered hereunder to less than the applicable limits of liability stated in the declarations.  Moreover, the City shall be an additional insured, where additional insured status is required, for the full available limits of liability maintained by vendor, whether those limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.  Vendor expressly understands and agrees that this provision shall override any limitation of liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and Vendor.

3. Claims Made Form:  If any policy is written on a claim made from, the retroactive date shall be prior to or coincident with the effective date of this contract.  Claims made coverage shall be maintained by the Vendor for a minimum of three (3) years following the expiration or earlier termination of this contract, and the Vendor shall provide the City with evidence of insurance for each annual renewal.  If renewal of the claims made form of coverage becomes unavailable or economically prohibitive, the Vendor shall purchase an extended reporting period (“tail”) or execute another form of guarantee acceptable to the City to assure financial responsibility for liability assumed under the contract.


4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Any self-insurance retention or deductible in excess of $ 25,000 that is not “fronted” by an insurer and for which claims the vendor or its third-party administrator is directly responsible for defending and indemnifying must be disclosed on the certificate of liability insurance.  Vendor agrees to defend and indemnify the City under its self-insured or deductible layer and upon City’s request advise the full delivery address of the individual or department to whom a tender of a claim should be directed.   


5. Notice of Cancellation:   Under RCW 48.18.290 (1) (a) and (b) (“Cancellation by insurer”) applicable to insurers licensed to do business in the State of Washington, the City, as a certificate holder for the insurance requirements specified herein and an additional insured, has an interest in any loss which may occur; written notice of cancellation must therefore be actually delivered or mailed to the City not less than 45 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).  As respects surplus lines placements, written notice of cancellation shall be delivered not less than 30 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).


6. Qualification of Insurers:  Insurers shall maintain A.M. Best’s ratings of A- VII unless procured as a surplus lines placement under RCW chapter 48.15, or as may otherwise be approved by the City.


7. Changes in Insurance Requirements: The City shall have the right to periodically review the adequacy of coverages and/or limits of liability in view of inflation and/or a change in loss exposures and shall have the right to require an increase in such coverages and/or limits upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the Vendor.  Should Vendor, despite its best efforts, be unable to maintain any required insurance coverage or limit of liability due to deteriorating insurance market conditions, it may upon thirty (30) days prior written notice request a waiver of any insurance requirement, which request shall not be unreasonably denied.


8. Evidence of Insurance:  


a. A certificate of liability insurance evidencing coverages, limits of liability and other terms and conditions as specified herein;


b. An attached designated additional insured endorsement or blanket additional insured wording to the CGL/MGL and (if required) Contractor’s Pollution Liability insurance policy.


At any time upon the City’s request, Vendor shall also cause to be timely furnished a copy of declarations pages and schedules of forms and endorsements.  In the event that the City tenders a claim or lawsuit for defense and indemnity invoking additional insured status, and the insurer either denies the tender or issues a reservation of rights letter, Vendor shall in addition cause a complete and certified copy of the requested policy to be timely furnished.

Send evidence of insurance to the City at the addresses at the top of this form. If any questions or issues, contact the City of Seattle Risk Management Division at direct telephone extension (206) 386-0071 or by email at riskmanagement@seattle.gov .

NOTE: CERTIFICATES WITHOUT ATTACHED ADDITIONAL INSURED (for each City) ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED WORDING WILL NOT BE APPROVED![image: image1][image: image2][image: image3][image: image4][image: image5][image: image6]
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